
Waste 
SONOMA COUNTY 

Management 
Agency 

SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

June 16, 2010 

9:00 a.m. 


City of Santa Rosa Utilities Department 

Subregional Water Reclamation System Laguna Plant 


4300 Llano Road, Santa Rosa, CA 95407 

Estuary Meeting Room 


Estimated Ending Time 12:00 p.m. 
...........".....,',.".,",..,',...,..,..."...".....,..,.. ", .. ,.,.,." ..."."",,1 


"UNANIMOUS VOTE ITEM #8 

AGENDA 
ACTION 

1. 	 Call to Orderllntroductions 

2. 	 Agenda Approval 

3. 	 Attachments/Correspondence: 
Director's Agenda Notes 
Letter of Support for Amended Bill AB 2139 

4. 	 On file w/Clerk: for copy call 565-3579 
Resolutions approved in May 2010 

2010-011 Resolution Approving the Submittal of a Regional Application for the 
Used Oil Payment Program from the Department of Resources Recycling and 
Recovery (CalRecycle) 
2010-012 Resolution Approving the 3'd Amendment with VBN Architects for 
Professional Services 
2010-013 Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director to Sign the Letter 
Agreement for Composting Educational Services with the Sonoma County 
University of California Extension 

5. 	 Public Comments (items not on the agenda) 

CONSENT (w/attachments) 	 Discussion/Action 
6.1 Minutes of May 19, 2010 
6.2 Carryout Bag Update 
6.3 FY 08-09 Audit 
6.4 SCC Monthly Report for March 2010 
6.5 Appropriation Transfer - Planning 

2300 County Center Drive, Suite 8100 Santa Rosa, California 95403 Phone: 707/565-2231 Fax: 707/565-3701 www.recyclenow_orq 

1

www.recyclenow_orq


REGULAR CALENDAR 
7. 	 Sonoma County/City Solid Waste Advisory Discussion/Action 

[Barbose] PLANNING 

8. 	 Yard Debris Appropriation Transfer UNANIMOUS VOTE 
[Fisher](Attachment) YARD 

9. 	 Virginia Porter, incoming Executive Director, RRWA. Presentation 
Presentation "The Russian River Watershed Awareness 
Survey" 

10. 	 Presentation by Organics Diversion Subcommittee Presentation 
of the AB 939 Local Task Force ORGANICS 

11. 	 Confirmation of AB 939 Local Task Force Bylaws Discussion/Action 
Amendment (continued from May) DIVERSION 
rCa rte r] (Attach me nt) 

12. 	 SCWMA Alternative Funding Discussion/Action 
rCa rter] (Atta ch me nt) ADMINISTRATION 

13. 	 Award E-waste Collection Event Contract Discussion/Action 
[Steinman](Attachment) HHW 

14. 	 Revised 6th Amendment to Household Hazardous Discussion/Action 
Waste and AB 939 Program Servic;:es Agreement ADMINISTRATION 
with Petaluma 
[Klassenj(Attachment) 

15. 	 Award Spanish Outreach Contract Discussion/Action 
[Chilcott](Attachment) EDUCATION 

16. 	 Boardmember Comments 

17. 	 Staff Comments 

18. 	 Next SCWMA Meeting July 21,2010 at new location 

19. 	 Adjourn 

CONSENT CALENDAR: These matters include routine financial and administrative actions and are usually 
approved by a single majority vote. Any Boardmember may remove an item from the consent calendar. 

REGULAR CALENDAR: These items Include significant and administrative actions of special interest and are 
classified by program area. The regular calendar also includes "Set Matters," which are noticed hearings, work 
sessions and public hearings. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Pursuant to Rule 6, Rules of Governance of the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency. 
members of the public desiring to speak on items that are within the jurisdiction of the Agency shall have an 
opportunity at the beginning and during each regular meeting of the Agency. When recognized by the Chair, each 
person should give his/her name and address and limit comments to 3 minutes. Public comments will follow the 
staff report and subsequent Boardmember questions on that Agenda item and before Boardmembers propose a 
motion to vote on any item. 

2300 County Center Drive, Suite 8100 Santa Rosa, California 95403 Phone: 707f565-2231 Fax: 707f565-3701 \WIW.recycienow.orq 

2



DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternative 
format or requires an interpreter or other person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact the 
Sonoma County Waste Management Agency Office at 2300 County Center Drive, Suite B100, Santa Rosa, (707) 565
3579, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, to ensure arrangements for accommodation by the Agency. 

NOTICING: This notice is posted 72 hours prior to the meeting at The Board of Supervisors, 575 Administration 
Drive, Santa Rosa, and at the meeting site the City of Santa Rosa Utilities Department Subregional Water 
Reclamation System Laguna Plant, 4300 Llano Road, Santa Rosa. It is also available on the internet at 
www.recyclenow.org 

2300 county Center Drive, Suite 8100 Santa Rosa, California 95403 Phone: 707/565-2231 Fax: 7071565-3701 WlNW recyclenow.orq 

3

http:www.recyclenow.org


Waste 
Hanagemenl 
Agency 

TO: SCWMA Board Members 

FROM: Susan Klassen, Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: JUNE 16, 2010 AGENDA NOTES 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
These items include routine financial and administrative items and staff recommends that they 
be approved en masse by a single vote. Any Board member may remove an item from the 
consent calendar for further discussion or a separate vote by bringing it to the attention of the 
Chair. 

6.1 	 Minutes of May 19, 2010 
6.2 	 Carryout Bag Update Updates Board members on the status of carryout bag ordinances 

and related recycling and reduction efforts 
6.3 	 FY 08-09 Audit The FY 08-09 audit of SCWMA financial activities is attached for 

Board information. 
6.4 	 SCC Monthly Report for March 2010 This monthly report is submitted as a condition of 

the composting agreement with Sonoma Compost Company. 
6.5 	 Appropriation Transfer - Planning During the FY 09-10 budget development, the 

expenses of the Countywide Integrated Waste Management Plan amendment were 
calculated using estimates based on information available at that time. With continued 
evolution, the planned funding proved to be inadequate. In preparing for the end of the 
fiscal year, it will be necessary to use reserve funding to cover the expenditures that were 
not included as a part of the planned project. Since the Household Hazardous Waste 
Element was included in the amendment, staff is proposing to use reserve funds from the 
Household Facility Reserve by submitting an appropriation transfer in the amount of 
$15,000 for Board approval. 

REGULAR CALENDAR 

7. Sonoma County/City Solid Waste Advisory Verbal report from Steve Barbose, City of 
Sonoma, serving as SCWMA liaison to the recently convened advisory group. No action 
required. 

8. Yard Debris Appropriation Transfer At the time the FY 09-10 Budget was prepared the 
anticipated tonnage of material to be processed by Sonoma Compost Company and hauled by 
West Sonoma County Transport was 87,800. There are three impacts to the Yard Debris cost 
center that necessitate an appropriation transfer of funds from the undesignated fund balance in 
the Yard Debris cost center into Contract Services. They are: payment of invoices from FY 08
09, underestimating the cost of processing organics at the composting facility and increased 
costs for transportation of green waste from the transfer stations to the composting site. The 
total of the appropriation transfer is $538,273. Recommended Action: Staff recommends 
approving the appropriation transfer with a UNANIMOUS VOTE, 

9. Presentation by Virginia Porter, incoming Executive Director, "The Russian River 
Watershed Awareness Survey" 

2300 County Center Drive, Room 8100 Santa Rosa, California 95403 Phone: 707/565·2231 Fax: 707/565·3701 www,recyclenow.org 4

http:www,recyclenow.org


10. Presentation by Organics Diversion Subcommittee of the AB 939 Local Task Force The 
subcommittee will discuss their findings regarding volumes of organic waste currently landfilled 
and the current and future capacity of facilities needed to divert organic materials. 

11. Confirmation of AB 939 Local Task Force Bylaws Amendment This item was continued 
from the May 19, 2010 meeting. The transmittal includes a membership list, brief history of the 
committee, and discussion of the statutory requirements of the L TF membership. A 
representative of the L TF will be present to discuss the rationale of the L TF recommended 
approved changes. Staff recommendation: Confirmation of the amended Sonoma County 
Local Task Force on Integrated Waste Management Bylaws. 

12. SCWMA Alternative Funding Staff has prepared a presentation to illustrate the 
proposed changes to the Agency revenue collection system. If the recommended system is 
chosen by the Board, staff has outlined a series of next steps for the Board to consider, 
including cursory research of franchise agreements throughout the county, meeting with in
county haulers and processors, and developing an ordinance which would accomplish the 
Board's direction. Staff recommendation: Selection of Scenario 3 as the funding model for 
the new Agency Fee and giving staff direction to proceed with the next steps as outlined 
above. 

13. Award E-waste Collection Event Contract On May 3, 2010, the Agency issued a RFP for 
Electronic Waste Collection Event Services. The RFP was seeking both a primary Contractor 
and "back-up" Contractor to hold E-waste Collection Events. Four proposals were received by 
the deadline of May 26, 2010. Goodwill Industries of the Redwood Empire was the highest 
ranking proposer and ECS Refining ranked second. Staff recommendation: Awarding to 
Goodwill Industries of the Redwood Empire, the highest ranking Proposer, the two year 
Contract for E-waste Collection Event Services and authorizing the Chair to sign the 
Agreement. Awarding ECS Refining, the second ranking proposer, the "back-up" 
Contract for E-waste Collection Event Services and authorizing the Chair to sign the 
Agreement. 

14. Revised 6th 

th 

Amendment to Household Hazardous Waste and AB 939 Program Services 
Agreement with Petaluma At the request of Vince Marengo, representative from the City of 
Petaluma, the Revised Sixth Amendment to Petaluma Services Agreement is being brought 
back for Board consideration. The City of Petaluma will continue to pay directly for Agency 
services as it has for the past five years. The requested change is modification of the basis for 
charging for the services; changing from using tonnage from the prior calendar year to a 
monthly calculation during the current fiscal year. Recommended Action: Staff recommends 
approving the Revised 6 Amendment to Household Waste and AB 939 Program 
Services Agreement with Petaluma. 

15. Award Spanish Outreach Contract On April 30, 2010, the Agency issued a RFP for 
Spanish Language Outreach Services. One proposal was received from the current contractor, 
C2 Alternative Services. Staff recommendation: Awarding to C2 Alternative Services a 
two-year Contract for Spanish Language Outreach Services and authorizing the Chair to 
sign the Agreement. 

2300 County Center Drive, Room 8100 Santa Rosa, California 95403 Phone: 707/565-2231 Fax: 707/565-3701 www.recyclenow.ora 5

www.recyclenow.ora


I 

SONOMA COUNTY 
Waste
HilnLlgemenl 
Agency 

6

June 2, 2010 

The Honorable Felipe Fuentes 
Chair of the Assembly Appropriations Committee 
Room 2114, State Capitol 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
FAX: (916) 319-2139 

RE: AB 2139 (Chesbro) Product Stewardship Act - Support 

The Honorable Chair Fuentes: 

The Sonoma County Waste ManagementAgency (SCWMA) is a California Integrated Waste Management Board 
(CIWMB)-approved Regional Agency comprised of all the jurisdictions in Sonoma County tasked with many of 
the responsibilities of AB 939, including management of household hazardous wastes. In June 2001, the 
SCWMA, recognizing that Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is a waste management approach that 
significantly improves our ability to manage discarded hazardous products, approved a resolution supporting 
EPR policies and efforts by governmental and non-governmental organizations to develop such policies. 

The SCWMA supports Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) policies that shift California's product 
waste management system from one focused on local government funded and ratepayer financed to one 
that relies on producer responsibility in order to reduce public costs and drive improvements in product 
design that promote environmental sustainability. 

On behalf of the SCWMA, I am pleased to inform you that the SCWMA has taken a Support position on AS 
2139, a bill that will require product stewardship approach to better manage specified wastes banned 
from landfill disposal: anti-freeze, sharps, and propane tanks of 1.5 quarts and under. 

Manufacturers of these products are the only ones who can change the product design to reduce end of life 
dangers and costs to manage. Currently, the costs of managing these products has been externalized onto 
the general taxpayer and ratepayers so producers have no financial incentive to be concerned about how 
much it costs to safely dispose of their products. Stewardship will ensure that the cost for end of life 
management is included in the product price where consumers can make a fully informed decision on 
lifecycle costs, not a burden externalized onto the general taxpayers or garbage ratepayers. 

AB 2139 will also create green jobs collecting and recovering these products in the private sector and will 


managed. 

public health and California's environment protecthelp by ensuring that these products are safely 


AB 2139 envisions a program funded/operated by the private sector with limited governmental 
involvement, thereby saving money for both state and local governments. 

For the above reasons, the SCWMA strongly suppqrts AB 2139. 

Sincerely, 

Director 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

Cc: Assemblymember Wesley Chesbro (FAX: 916-319-2101) 

2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California 95403 Phone: 707.565.223 J Fax: 707.565.3701 

Visit our website at www.rccyclcnow.org Printed on Recycled roper @ 35% post·consumer content 

http:www.rccyclcnow.org


WilSIe 

Hilnilgement 

Agency 

7

Agenda Item # 6.1 

MINUTES OF MAY 19, 2010 

The Sonoma County Waste Management Agency met on May 19, 2010, at the City of Santa Rosa 
Utilities Department's Subregional Water Reclamation System Laguna Plant, 4300 Llano Road, Santa 
Rosa, California. 

PRESENT: 

Town of Windsor Christa Johnson, Chair 

City of Cloverdale Nina Regor 

City of Cotati Marsha Sue Lustig 

City of Healdsburg Mike Kirn 

City of Petaluma Vince Marengo 

City of Rohnert Park Linda Babonis 

City of Santa Rosa Dell Tredinnick 

City of Sebastopol Jack Griffin 

City of Sonoma Steve Barbose 

County of Sonoma Phil Demery 


STAFF PRESENT: 

Interim Executive Director Susan Klassen 

Counsel Janet Coleson 

Staff Patrick Carter 


Karina Chilcott 
Charlotte Fisher 
Lisa Steinman 

Recorder 	 Elizabeth Koetke 

1. 	 CALL TO ORDER MEETING/INTRODUCTIONS 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. 

Chair Christa Johnson welcomed returning Agency Boardmember Linda Babonis, representing 
Rohnert Park. 

2. 	 AGENDA APPROVAL 
Chair Christa Johnson rearranged the agenda so that unanimous vote item #9 would be 

addressed following item #7, and item #13 would be addressed prior to item #12. The minutes will 
reflect those changes. 

3. 	 ATTACHMENTS/CORRESPONDENCE 
Chair Christa Johnson, called attention to the Director's Agenda Notes. 

4. 	 ON FILE WITH CLERK 
Chair Johnson noted the resolutions approved in April, 2010, on file with the clerk. 

5. 	 PUBLIC COMMENTS (items not on the agenda) 
None. 

CONSENT 
6.1 	 Minutes of April 21, 2010 
6.2 	 FY 09-10 Third Quarter Financial Report 

May 19, 2010 SCWMA Meeting Minutes 



6.3 Adoption of AB 939 Local Task Force Revised By-laws 
6.4 Resolution of Oil Payment Program 
6.5 Proof of Designation for Non-profit E-waste Collection 
6.6 Carryout Bag Update 
6.7 SCC Monthly Report for February 2010 
6.B 3,d Amendment to VBN Contract 

Vince Marengo, Petaluma, pulled Item #6.3 for questions. 

Steve Barbose, City of Sonoma, moved to approve the remaining items on the Consent 
Calendar. Dell Tredinnick, City of Santa Rosa, seconded. Consent items 6.1,6.2, 6.4, 6.5, 6.6, 
6.7, 6.B approved with a unanimous vote. 

6.3 Adoption of AB 939 Local Task Force Revised By-laws 
Patrick Carter presented the history of the AB 939 Local Task Force (LTF). At the February meeting, 
the advisory group voted to amend the by-laws. When the by-laws are amended, they have to be 
confirmed by both the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors (BaS) and the Board of Directors of the 
Sonoma County Waste Management Agency. The membership is confirmed by the BaS every three 
years. 

The amendment addresses the membership section of the by-laws, specifically concerning some 
positions, which are outdated. The commercial garbage haulers in the rural areas and the urban 
areas are proposed to be replaced with franchised haulers and non-franchised haulers. The Sonoma 
County Environmental Forum position is proposed to be replaced with a climate change organization 
because the Sonoma County Environmental Forum no longer exists. The recommending agency for 
some of the other positions was replaced with the BaS. 

The L TF also proposed to be able to recommend interested candidates for positions to the BaS. 

Public Comments 
Ken Wells, Guiding Sustainability, explained the intent of the composition of the L TF's membership 
was to have a wide variety of representation of all the stakeholders in the solid waste industry. 

Susan Klassen, Interim Executive Director, asked Mr. Wells if he could comment about the 
development and purpose of these positions. 

Ken Wells confirmed the Sonoma County Environmental Forum no longer exists. Climate protection 
is clearly a bigger issue now than it was in 1992 when the L TF began. The membership positions 
have evolved over the past 20 years and have changed a number of times 

Ernie Carpenter stated there are non-exclusive franchise haulers who collect construction and 
demolition materials and as well as single stream commercial recycling. 

Discussion 
Staff was given direction to return to the June SCWMA meeting with the original AB 939 LTF 
membership list, a red-line version of the proposed changes to the membership and an 
explanation of the rationale behind the proposed changes to the membership. The Chair or 
Vice Chair of the LTF will be invited to attend the meeting to answer questions. This item 
continued to June meeting. 

Phil Demery requested that staff provide a comparison of the statutory requirement of AB 939 
versus the other duties that have been assigned to the group. 

May 19, 2010 SCWMA Meeting Minutes 8



REGULAR CALENDAR 
7. SONOMA COUNTYICITY SOLID WASTE ADVISORY GROUP 
Steve Barbose, City of Sonoma, is serving as liaison for SCWMA to the SWAG. His report is as 
follows: 

County Counsel gave an update on the status of the tolling agreement. The proposals have been 
received and the BOS will select a contractor in June. 

There was discussion about adding additional representatives on behalf of the City Managers and 
City Attorneys group. 

There were two reports from community groups, The Garbage Group and the Local Task Force. 

Next SWAG meeting is June 11, 2010 at 2:00 p.m., location yet to be determined. 

9. CONTRACT EXTENSION WITH CLEAN HARBORS 
Lisa Steinman explained the current contract with Clean Harbors expires on January 6, 2011. In a 
letter dated 3/26/2010, Clean Harbors offered to extend the current contract rates and terms for an 
additional two-year period. The letter also offered three additional one-year extension options. Prior 
to each one year optional extension period, Clean Harbors requested a rate increase based on the 
Consumer Price Index and the ability to request fuel cost recovery if the national average cost of 
diesel rises above $3.50 per gallon. The requested rate increases would be mutually agreed upon 
between SCWMA and Clean Harbors at the time of the proposed extension. 

Vince Marengo, City of Petaluma, moved to approve an extension of the term of the Agreement 
until January 6, 2013 without any changes to the current terms or conditions. Steve Barbose, 
City of Sonoma, seconded. Motion was approved with a unanimous vote. 

Jack Griffin, City of Sebastopol, proposed amending the motion to extend the term of the 
Agreement until January 6,2013, with the option of three, one-year extensions. Amended 
motion approved. 

8. PRESENTATION BY YVONNE HUNTER, PROGRAM DIRECTOR, CALIFORNIA CLIMATE 
ACTION NETWORK, AND INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
"COMMERCIAL RECYCLING: DISCUSSION OF SAMPLE COMMERCIAL RECYCLING 
ORDINANCE FROM THE INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT" 
Yvonne Hunter, Program Director, California Climate Action Network, and Institute for Local 
Government gave a PowerPoint presentation and distributed copies of a sample of a Mandatory 
Commercial Recycling Ordinance. 

Public Comments 
Ken Wells, Guiding Sustainability, felt this would be a perfect opportunity to get the AB 939 Local 
Task Force involved and use their expertise. 

Santa Rosa left the meeting at 10:35 a.m. (e.k.) 

Recess from 10:35 to 10:45 

11. UCCE AGREEMENT 
Ms. Klassen explained SCWMA has worked in cooperation with UCCE for composting education 
services since June, 1997. The letter agreement has the goals of reducing organic matter by teaching 
home composting, and reducing the amount of toxics and pesticides that are used by home 
gardeners. 

May 19, 2010 SCWMA Meeting Minutes 9



The letter proposed Agreement is for $49,980 for three years, which is $16,660 per year and is 

included in the FY 10-11 Work Plan and Budget. 


Public Comments 

Pam Davis, Northbay Corporation, complimented the Master Gardener's program and website. 


Marsha Sue Lustig, City of Cotati, moved to approve the motion. Linda Babonis, City of 

Rohnert Park, seconded. The motion passed. (Santa Rosa absent) 


10. SUSTAINABLE FUNDING PRESENTATION BY R3 
Mr. Carter explained the Agency's programs for HHW, Education, Planning and Diversion are 
cwrently funded by a surcharge on the tip fee at the County-owned waste facilities in Sonoma County. 
A combination of increased diversion, decreased generation of waste due to the downturn of the 
economy, and an increasing competitiveness of solid waste facilities which receive the benefit of 
Agency services, but are not subject to the Agency surcharge has resulted in unsustainable 
decreases in Agency revenues. 

R3 was hired in April 2009, to create a sustainable funding mechanism for the Agency. The resulting 
report details three scenarios for reconfiguring the Agency's revenue structure. Richard Tagore, R3, 
presented a visual overview and elaborated on the final report, which had been distributed to 
Boardmembers earlier. 

Due to the complex nature of this topic, and meeting time constraints, this item was continued 
to the June 16, 2010 Agency meeting. 

Public Comments 
Ernie Carpenter commented on keeping the tipping fee surcharge at $5.40/ton and impose a fee on 
the all haulers taking their waste out of the County. 

Steve McCaffrey, Northbay Corporation, asked if the Consultant had looked at other counties who had 
tried a similar funding mechanism and failed. He stated a number of self-hauls are businesses like 
Costco and Safeway with large amounts of material leaving the County. 

Tim Smith, former SCWMA Board member, said changing the funding mechanism only delays the 
death spiral but doesn't solve the problem if zero waste is the goal. The Agency will cease to exist in 
2017 and this is a short term solution. 

13. STAFFING SERVICES 
Ms. Klassen explained this item was approved by the Agency Board at the April 2010 Agency 
meeting, however, when it was brought to the County Administrators Office they requested a 
modification to one section of the Agreement for the provision of staffing services. In the original 
Agreement, the Executive Director (ED) would be the appointing authority for support staff in its 
entirety. He/she would appoint new hires, supervise, review and discipline including potential 
termination. The modification is upon recommend termination of existing County staff, or future 
County staff, the Director of Public Works would need to concur with that decision as the appointing 
authority. 

Janet Coleson said this modification was implied in the original Agreement with the definition of 
appointing authority found in the County's personnel rules which the ED has to follow. The ED will 
also be a County employee. In the Agreement, along with the appointing authority is implied the 
authority to terminate, the County Administrators Office is concerned about that one particular aspect. 
The modification says "with the exception of the power to terminate which shall be retained by the 
Director of the Department of Transportation and Public Works". The County wants that final check 
on the termination of an employee. 

May 19, 2010 SCWMA Meeting Minutes 10



Ms. Coleson clarified the document put forth for approval is the Agreement with the modified 
language, not an amendment to the Agreement approved previously. 

Nina Regor, City of Cloverdale, moved to approve the motion. Marsha Sue Lustig, City of 
Cotati, seconded. The motion passed. (Santa Rosa, absent) 

County of Sonoma left the meeting at 11:40 a.m. (e.k.) 

12. ESTABLISHING INTERVIEW PROCESS 
Ms. Klassen presented information about screening potential applicants and provided different 
interview styles for the Agency Board to consider. 

The Boardmembers agreed that Mike Kirn, City of Healdsburg, would assist the County of Sonoma, 
Human Resources Department screen the applications for minimum qualifications. 


The interview panel will consist of Christa Johnson, Susan Klassen, Nina Regor, Vince Marengo and 

a technical expert to be invited. 


The final interview of the top two or three candidates will be conducted by the entire Agency Board. 


The interview panel members will recommend the interview style. 


City of Cotati left the meeting at 11:45 a.m. (e.k.J 


14. BOARDMEMBER COMMENTS 
There were no Boardmember comments. 

15. STAFF COMMENTS 
Ms. Klassen asked if the Board desired to meet in July, which is traditionally a hiatus. As the Public 
Hearing for Receiving Comments on the Compost Relocation Project would not be available for the 
June 16, 2010 Agency meeting, it was decided to meet in July for the Public Hearing. 

16. NEXT SCWMA MEETING JUNE 16, 2010, which is the last meeting to be held at the 
Laguna location. 

17. ADJOURNMENT 
Meeting adjourned at 11 :44 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Elizabeth Koetke 

Copies of the following were distributed andlor submitted at this meeting: 

• 	 Sample Mandatory Commercial Recycling Ordinance Powerpoint handout, 
Yvonne Hunter 

• 	 Sample Commercial Recycling Ordinance, Institute for Local Government 
• 	 Final Report - Sonoma County Waste Management Agency Funding Study by R3 

May 19, 2010 SCWMA Meeting Minutes 11



Agenda Item #: 6.2 
Cost Center: Diversion 
Staff Contact: Carter 
Agenda Date: 6/16/2010 

ITEM: Carryout Bag Update 

I. 	 BACKGROUND 

The SCWMA Board of Directors requested staff to provide updates at each SCWMA meeting 
subsequent to the March 2008 meeting. Staff researches new developments in California 
and out-of-state legislation regarding paper and plastic carryout bags. 

II. 	 DISCUSSION 

AB 1998 was heard by the Assembly Appropriations Committee on May 28,2010. The bill 
has been amended to again ban plastic and compostable plastic carryout bags, impose a fee 
on paper bags, and regulate reusable bags. The bans and fees would be implemented 
January 1, 2012, and a biennial reusable bag manufacturer certification process would begin 
January 1, 2013. The bill also includes a provision preempting local government from 
enforcing any new or existing "ordinance, resolution, regulation, or rule on any store as 
defined by this chapter relating to reusable bags, single-use carryout bags, recycled paper 
bags, or any other bag referred to in this chapter unless expressly authorized by this 
division1." A hearing is set for the bill in the full Assembly on June 1, 2010. 

III. 	 FUNDING IMPACT 

There are no funding impacts resulting from this transmittal. 

IV. 	 RECOMMENDED ACTION 1ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION 

This transmittal is forinformational purposes only. There is no requested action. 

Approved b 
Susan Klassffir,lnferim ExeYutiVe Director, SCWMA 

Wasle 
Hana(l~merll 

~ency 

1 hUp:/Iwww.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postguery?bili number=ab '1998&sess=CUR&house-8&author=brownley, retrieved June 1, 2010 
2300 County Center Drive, Suite 8100 Santa Rosa, California 95403 Phone: 707/565-3579 www.recyclenow.org 12

http:www.recyclenow.org


 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 


Annual Report 

for the Fiscal Year Ended 


June 30, 2009 


RODNEY A. DOLE 
SONOMA COUNTY 
AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 
TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 

13



 

 
 

 
 
     
 

 
 

 

  
  
  
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

Annual Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 


June 30, 2009 


T a b l e  o f  c o n t e n t s  


.  Page  

Auditor-Controller’s Report 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis .............................................................................. 1 – 4 


Basic financial statements: 

Statement of Net Assets .................................................................................................. 5 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets............................. 6 

Statement of Cash Flows................................................................................................. 7 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ........................................................................  8 – 16 


Roster of Board Members .................................................................................................... 17
 

14



  
  

     
 

  
  
    
     
   
    
    
   
   

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Auditor-Controller 

Treasurer-Tax Collector 


RODNEY A. DOLE 
AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 

County of Sonoma
585 FISCAL DRIVE 

DONNA M. DUNK 
ASSISTANT 

TREASURER -TAX COLLECTOR SUITE 101F AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 
SANTA ROSA, CALIFORNIA 

95403-2819 ROBERT BOITANO 
(707) 565-2631 ASSISTANT 

FAX (707) 565-3489 TREASURER 

PAM JOHNSTON 
ASSISTANT 

TAX COLLECTOR / AUDITOR 

Members of the Board 
Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER’S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Sonoma County Waste 
Management Agency, (the Agency) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009,  as listed in 
the table of contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the 
management of the Agency.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic 
financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the basic financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As described in Note IV.B of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, the Auditor-
Controller is mandated by various statutes within the California Government Code to perform 
certain accounting, auditing and financial reporting functions.  These activities, in themselves, 
necessarily impair the auditor's independence.  However, we believe adequate safeguards and 
divisions of responsibility exist. 

In our opinion, except for the effects, if any, of the impairment to auditor independence, the 
basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Agency as of June 30, 2009 and the respective changes in its financial position 
for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

15



 

 

 
 
 

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) on pages 1 through 4 is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the 
Government Accounting Standards Board.  We have applied certain limited procedures, which 
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and 
presentation of the MD&A. However, we did not audit the information and express no 
opinion on it. 

June 1, 2010 

16



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency (the Agency) we offer 
readers of the Agency’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial 
activities of the Agency for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.  We encourage readers to 
consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Agency’s financial statements 
and the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

Financial Highlights 

•	 The assets of the Agency exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 
$7,811,297 (net assets). Of this amount, $7,811,297 (unrestricted net assets) or 100% may be 
used to meet the agency’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

•	 The Agency’s total net assets increased by $674,128 or 9 %.  This increase is a result of 
revenues exceeding expenses in the agency activities. 

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Agency's basic 
financial statements.  The Agency's basic financial statements are comprised of two components:  
1) proprietary fund financial statements and 2) notes to the financial statements. 

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements:  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used 
to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  
The Agency, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  The Agency maintains one 
type of proprietary fund.  The Agency uses enterprise funds to account for its agency activities, 
which include waste management. 

Notes to the Financial Statements:  The notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the fund financial statements.   

- 3 -

17



 

 

   

   

      

      

   

   
  

 
 
 
 

 

 

Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of financial position.  In the 
case of the Agency, assets exceeded liabilities by $7,811,297 at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year. 

Net Assets 

2009 2008 

Current and other assets 

Total assets 

$ 8,536,366 $ 

8,536,366 

7,732,676 

7,732,676 

Liabilities outstanding 

Total liabilities 

725,069 

725,069 

595,507 

595,507 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets $ 

7,811,297 

7,811,297 $ 

7,137,169 

7,137,169 

The Agency’s unrestricted net assets ($7,811,297) may be used to meet the Agency’s ongoing 
obligations to citizens and vendors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Agency is able to report a positive balance in its net 
assets. The same held true for the prior fiscal year. The Agency’s Net Assets increased by 
$674,128 during the current fiscal year. 

- 4 -

18



 

 

 

Investment income and other 191,684 279,471 
Total revenues    5,913,019    6,312,121 

Expenses: 
Program Expenses: 

 Municipal waste management 
Total expenses 

5,238,891 5,289,260 
   5,238,891    5,289,260 

 Increase (decrease) in net assets       674,128    1,022,861 
 Net assets - beginning of the year, as restated 

  Net assets - end of the year 
   7,137,169    6,114,308 

$    7,811,297    7,137,169 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Business-type activities:  Business-type activities increased the Agency’s net assets by 
$674,128. This increase is a result of revenues exceeding expenses in the business-type 
activities.   

Changes in Net Assets 
2009 2008 

Revenues: 
Program Revenues: 

Municipal waste management $ 5,721,335 6,032,650 

General Revenues: 

Capital Assets:  The Agency has no investment in capital assets, as of June 30, 2009. 

- 5 -

19



 
 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 

•	 The Agency has a goal to stabilize the surcharge tipping fees in the next four years in order to 
mitigate effects on each of the jurisdictions' individual budget plans. 

•	 The Agency will set aside reserve funds, when possible, as part of its long-term financial 
planning. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the Agency’s budget for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2010. 

Request for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Agency’s finances for all 
those with an interest in the agency’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the 
Sonoma County Waste Management Agency, 2300 County Center Drive Ste. B-100, Santa Rosa, 
CA 95403. 

- 6 -

20



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency
 
Statement of Net Assets
 

Enterprise Fund
 
June 30, 2009
 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and investments $ 8,262,994 
Accounts receivable 196,829 
Due from Other Governments 76,543 

Total assets 8,536,366 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 668,761 
Deferred revenue 56,308 

Total liabilities 725,069 

Net Assets 

Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

7,811,297 

$ 7,811,297 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

- 7 -

21



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
 

Enterprise Fund
 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009
 

Operating Revenues 
Tipping fees and surcharges 
Service agreements 
Grants and other contributions 

$ 4,755,461 
737,363 
228,511 

Total operating revenues 5,721,335 

Operating Expenses 
Contract services 
Professional services 
Administration 
Other services and supplies 

4,216,805 
232,963 
540,279 
248,844 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

5,238,891 

482,444 

Nonoperating Revenues (expenses) 
Investment earnings 191,684 

Change in net assets 674,128 

Net assets, beginning of year 7,137,169 

Net assets, end of year $ 7,811,297 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

- 8 -

22



 
 
 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency
 
Statement of Cash Flows


 Enterprise Fund
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008
 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers 

$ 5,678,920 
(5,109,329) 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 569,591 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest received on investments 191,684 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1 

761,275 
7,501,719 

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30 $ 8,262,994 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided (used) by operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities: 
Decrease in accounts receivable 
Increase in due from other governments 
Increase in accounts payable 
Decrease in deferred revenue 

$ 482,444 

34,128 
(76,543) 
130,113 

(551) 

Total adjustments 87,147 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 569,591 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

- 9 -

23



 
 

 
 
   
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2009 


I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Sonoma County Waste Management Agency (the Agency) was formed in April 
1992 to assist the cities and County with the implementation of programs necessary to 
satisfy the requirements of AB939, the Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989. 
This Act requires that every jurisdiction in California plan for and implement 
programs that reduce the amount of waste disposed in landfills by 25% by 1995 and 
50% by 2000. The Agency was granted a three-year extension to 2003 by the State. 
The State has determined that the Agency has met its 2003 goal.  The Agency is 
continuing its efforts to reduce the amount of waste disposed in landfills, beyond the 
current 50% required by AB939. As of the date of this report, no new laws requiring 
waste reduction beyond 50% have been enacted. 

The Agency’s activities include a regional composting program, household hazardous 
waste collection, and countywide efforts towards waste reduction and recycling. 

The Agency is governed by ten board members, with one member from each city (9), 
and one from the County.  The Recycling Manager of the Transportation and Public 
Works Department serves as the Executive Director for the Agency.  The staffing for 
the Agency is provided by the County through a contract with the Agency.   

The Agency’s programs are funded through garbage disposal fee surcharges, charges 
for services, and grants.  Each program of the Agency is accounted for with a separate 
cost center. The composting program is entirely funded by charges for delivery of 
material to its program.  The household hazardous waste, education and waste 
diversion efforts are funded through a surcharge on garbage brought to County 
disposal sites along with support from State Grants.   

Since its creation in April of 1992, the Agency has added two new components to its 
scope of work: the Planning and Diversion Programs.  Planning efforts currently 
include preparation of Annual Reports submitted to the California Integrated Waste 
Management Board.  The Diversion Program is a cost center established to track the 
expenditures of those Agency programs that have direct measurable diversion.  Both 
of these programs are funded through the disposal fee surcharge.  

As discussed in Note I.A, the basic financial statements of the Agency are intended to 
present only the financial position and results of operations of only the Agency, 
which are held in trust by the Agency. They do not purport to, and do not, present 
fairly the financial position of the County of Sonoma as of June 30, 2009, and the 

- 10 -

24



 
 

 
 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2009 


respective changes in its financial position for the year then ended, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  This means that all assets and all liabilities 
(whether current or noncurrent) associated with this activity are included on the 
statement of net assets.  Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures 
or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements, 
regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

The Agency has elected under GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use 
Proprietary Fund Accounting, to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well 
as any applicable pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board or 
any Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 20, 1989 unless 
those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  The 
GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB 
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for 
governmental units. 

The Agency’s Enterprise Fund financial statements report business-type activities 
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. 
Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises -- where the intent of the governing body is that 
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the 
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user 
charges -- or where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of 
revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

The accrual basis of accounting is used by enterprise funds. Under this method, 
revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. 

Operating revenues and expenses are distinguished from nonoperating items in the 
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets.  Operating revenues, such 
as tipping fees and sales of recycled products result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund.  Exchange transactions are those in 
which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating 

- 11 -

25



 
 

  

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2009 


revenues, such as grants and investment earnings, result form nonexchange 
transactions or ancillary activities. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include 
services and supplies, and depreciation on capital assets.  All expenses not falling 
within these categories are reported as nonoperating expenses. 

C. 	 Accounting System Maintained by Sonoma County Financial Accounting and 
Management Information System (FAMIS) 

The Agency uses the County’s FAMIS and its budgetary recording and accounting 
control policies to account for all financial transactions affecting Agency funds.  The 
County, through the Integrated Waste Management Division of the Department of 
Transportation and Public Works Department, tracks each load of yard and wood 
waste entering the county disposal system. A tonnage tipping fee is collected to pay 
for operating costs of the organics program.  A surcharge on the solid waste tipping fee 
entering the county disposal system is used to fund the other programs, such as 
household hazardous waste, education, diversion, and planning. 

D. 	 Staff Services Performed by County of Sonoma 

The Agency reimburses the County for services provided by the County as outlined in 
a Memorandum of Understanding between the County and the Agency dated 
September 18, 2007. 

Staff services include Agency Director, professional staff, secretarial and as requested 
by the Agency, reasonable and necessary services from other County departments. 

E. 	 Assets, Liabilities and Equity 

1. Cash and Investments 

The Agency applies the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment Pools, 
which require governmental entities, including governmental external 
investment pools, to report certain investments at fair value in the balance sheet 
and recognize the corresponding change in the fair value of investments in the 
year in which the change occurred.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 
31, the Agency has stated certain investments at fair value. 

- 12 -

26



  

   

 
 

           
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
  

   

   

 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2009 


2. 	 Receivables and Payables 

Transactions representing accrual of revenues and expenses at year-end are 
referred to as either accounts receivable or accounts payable. 

3. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, and equipment, 
are reported in the statement of net assets.  Capital assets are defined by the 
Agency as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000.  Such 
assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated 
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.   

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.   

The Agency’s policy is to capitalize assets with acquisition costs of at least 
$5,000. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over estimated 
useful lives of 5 years for equipment. The Agency does not own land, buildings 
or improvements. 

4. Deferred Revenue 

This represents advanced payments to the Agency for services it will perform in 
the future. 

5. Net assets 

Net assets are classified into three components - invested in capital asset (net of 
related debt), restricted and unrestricted.  These classifications are defined as 
follows: 

o	 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (if any) - This component of 
net assets consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of 
any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to 
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.   

o	 Restricted net assets (if any) - This component of net assets consists of 
net assets with limits on their use that are imposed by outside parties. 

o	 Unrestricted net assets - This component of net assets consists of net 
assets that are not restricted for any project or other purpose. 

- 13 -

27



   

       

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2009 


6. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

II. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

A. Budgetary Information 

Budgetary revenue estimates represent original estimates modified for any 
authorized adjustment which was contingent upon new or additional revenue 
sources. Budgetary expenditure amounts represent original appropriations 
adjusted by budget transfers and authorized appropriation adjustments made 
during the year. All budgets are adopted on a non-GAAP basis.  Annual 
appropriations that have not been encumbered lapse at year-end. 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis that differs from generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) in which encumbrances are treated as budgeted 
expenditures in the year of incurrence of the commitment to purchase for the 
purpose of a budgetary presentation.  Actual GAAP expenditures have been 
adjusted to exclude current year encumbrances and to include expenditures 
against prior year encumbrances.  This allows a comparison of a fiscal year’s 
expenditures and commitments with related appropriations. 

B. Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements 

In fiscal year 2009, the Agency adopted two new statements of financial 
accounting standards issued by the GASB: Statement No. 45 – Accounting and 
Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-employment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions, and Statement No. 50 – Pension Disclosures – An Amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 27. 

GASB Statement No. 45 – In addition to pensions, many state and local 
governmental employers provide other post-employment benefits (OPEB) as part 
of the total compensation offered to attract and retain the services of qualified 

- 14 -

28



 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

   
   

 

 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2009 


- 15 -

29

employees.  OPEB includes post-employment health care, as well as other forms 
of post-employment benefits, such as life insurance, when provided separately 
from a pension plan.  This statement establishes standards for the measurement, 
recognition, and display of OPEB expense/supplementary information (RSO) in 
the financial reports of state and local governmental employers. 

GASB Statement No. 50 – This Statement more closely aligns the financial 
reporting requirements for pensions with those for other post-employment 
benefits and enhances information disclosed in notes to financial statements or 
presented as required supplementary information by pension plans and by 
employers that provide pension benefits.   

The Agency’s employees are employees of the County of Sonoma.  The County’s 
financial statements include the required information and disclosures relating to 
these statements.  Please see the County of Sonoma annual comprehensive 
financial report for additional information. 

III. Detailed Notes 

A. Cash and Investments 

The Agency follows the County's practice of pooling cash and investments with the 
County Treasurer, except for a petty cash fund. 

The amount of cash at June 30 is as follows: 

Cash and investment in County Treasury $ 8,262,994 

Investment in the Sonoma County Treasurer’s Investment Pool 

The Agency’s cash is pooled with the Sonoma County Treasurer, who acts as a 
disbursing agent for the Agency. The fair value of the Agency’s investment in this 
pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the 
Agency’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the Treasury Pool for the entire 
Treasury Pool portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The 
balance available for withdrawal is based on accounting records maintained by the 
Treasury Pool, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.  Interest earned on 
investments pooled with the County is allocated quarterly to the appropriate fund 



 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 

   
 

 

 
 

 

  

 

  

  
 

 

 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2009 


- 16 -

30

based on its respective average daily balance for that quarter.  The Treasury Oversight 
Committee has regulatory oversight for all monies deposited into the Treasury Pool. 

As of June 30, 2009, the Agency’s share of the decrease in fair value of investments 
was immaterial. 

Investment Guidelines 

The Agency’s pooled cash and investments are invested pursuant to investment 
policy guidelines established by the County Treasurer and approved by the Board of 
Supervisors. The objectives of the policy are, in order of priority: safety of capital, 
liquidity and maximum rate of return.  The policy addresses the soundness of 
financial institutions in which the County will deposit funds, types of investment 
instruments as permitted by the California Government Code 53601, and the 
percentage of the portfolio that may be invested in certain instruments with longer 
terms to maturity.    

A copy of the Treasury Pool investment policy is available upon request from the 
Sonoma County Treasurer at 585 Fiscal Drive, Room 100, Santa Rosa, California, 
95403-2871. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect 
the fair value of an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, 
the greater the sensitivity of its fair value is to changes in market interest rates.  As a 
means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, 
one of the ways that the Treasury Pool manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by 
purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing 
cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming 
close to maturing evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity 
needed for operations. 

As of June 30, 2009, approximately 74 percent of the securities in the Treasury Pool 
had maturities of one year or less.  Of the remainder, only 3 percent had a maturity of 
more than five years. 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its 
obligation to the holder of the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a 
rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  The Treasury Pool 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2009 


- 17 -

31

does not have a rating provided by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits 
or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of 
the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to 
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
another party. The California Government Code and the Treasury Pool’s investment 
policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to 
custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision 
for deposits and securities lending transactions:   

¾ The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure 
deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an 
undivided collateral pool held by depository regulated under stated law.  The market 
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the 
total amount deposited by the public agencies.   
¾ The California Government Code limits the total of all securities lending 
transactions to 20% of the fair value of the investment portfolio.   

With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct 
investments in marketable securities.  Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local 
government’s indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or 
government investment pools (such as the Treasury Pool). 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The investment policy of the County contains no limitations on the amount that can 
be invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government 
Code. For a listing of investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury 
securities, mutual funds, or external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of 
total County investments, refer to the 2009 Sonoma County CAFR.  



 
 

 
  

 

 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2009 


- 18 -

32

IV. Other Information 

A. Risk Management 

The Sonoma County Waste Management Agency is exposed to various risks for which 
the Agency carries insurance with coverage for bodily injury, property damage, 
personal injury, auto liability, and errors and omissions.  SCWMA is covered through 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc for $5,000,000 per occurrence. 

B. Auditor Independence 

As required by various statutes within the California Government Code, County 
Auditor-Controllers are mandated to perform certain accounting, auditing and financial 
reporting functions. These activities, in themselves, necessarily impair the auditor's 
independence. Specifically, “Auditors should not audit their own work or provide non-
audit services in situations where the amounts or services involved are significant or 
material to the subject matter of the audit.”  Although the office of the Auditor-
Controller is statutorily obligated to maintain accounts of departments, districts or 
funds that are contained within the County Treasury, we believe that adequate 
safeguards and divisions of responsibility exist.  Therefore, we believe that subject to 
this qualification and disclosure, the reader can rely on the auditor’s opinion contained 
in this report. 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
  
 

 
 

Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

Board Members
  

As of February 10, 2009, the Agency Board consisted of the following members: 

Gus Wolter City of Cloverdale 

Damien O’bid City of Cotati 

Mike Kirn City of Healdsburg 

Vince Marengo (chair) City of Petaluma 

Dan Schwarz City of Rohnert Park 

Dell Tredinnick City of Santa Rosa 

Dave Brennan City of Sebastopol 

Phil Demery County of Sonoma 

Stephen Barbose City of Sonoma 

Christa Johnson Town of Windsor 

Meetings are held at the City of Santa Rosa Utilities Department’s Subregional Water 
Reclamation System Laguna Plant, 4300 Llano Road, Santa Rosa every third Wednesday of each 
month at 9:00 A.M. 

- 19 -

33



Item #6.4 

34

SONOMA COMPOST COMPANY 	 March-IO 
MONTHLY REPORT 

a) Tonnages of Each Material Delivered to Facility 

total tons of yard debris: 7,366.02 tons 
average tons per day of yard debris: 325.09 tOilS 
total tons of wood debris: 359.93 tons 
average tons per day of wood debris: 13.33 tons 
total tons of yard debris to Laguna * lA11.43 tons 
Total tons of food discards ** 9"1.37 tOilS 
* This tonnaue is not included in total tons of 'ard debris" 	 )
** This tormage is included in the total yard debris tonnage above 

b) Deviations From Normal Operating Plans 

Willdrow Clznracteristics 
~~'v~i~d~tlc1---r---'1~1e~i~gIC1~t---'----Tle~n~T~tCh-------, 

normal lS' 7' 	 700' 

lictltioll 	
None 	
NOlle 	

Moisture Additioll/A Moisture Content (%) 
by feel: lab results: 

55-65% 59.7% 
(acti ve compost) (finished compost) 

Additives 	
Feathers, Food Discards, Ilatchery Waste 	

Tel1lperatIlre NT eaSIl1'e111eJJ ts 
(dnla all file al SCC office) 
Has temperuh.u·e of finished compost 
reached 131 degrees Fahrenheit for at 
least 15 days, dming whicl1 time the 
material Was h.lrned 5 times? YES 

Aeratioll (ill mill!:) 
type: frequency: 5 times in 15 days or longer during pathogen reduction, 

SCARAB plus additional h.lrnings to enhance the composting process 
(weather permitting). 

® RECYCLED PAPER 

http:7,366.02


c) Highlights a1ld Anonwlies of Program 
Weather/Raillfall: 
total inches: 4.375 
1/ of storm events: 5 

Operatiollal Problems: 
None 

d) Lab tests 

Monthly tests: Nutriellt/Pathogell Reductioll/Heavy Metals 

analysis: NUTRIENT 
next date due: Apr-l0 
date sample taken: 3/5/10 
1/ of sub-samples: 12 
location of samples: 32,33,35 

analysis: HEAVY METALS 
next date due: Apr-l0 
date sample taken: 3/5/10 
# of sub-samples 18 
location of samples: 29,31,34,41,42,48 

analysis: PATHOGEN REDUCTION 
next date due: Apr-ll) 
date sample taken: 3/5/10 
1/ of sub samples: 18 
locations of samples: 29,31,34,41,42,48 

Quarter/lf Test· .. 
analysis: PESTICIDE RESIDUES 
next da te due: Apr-Ill 
date sample taken: 3/5/10 
II of sub-samples: 18 
localions of samples: 29,31,34,41,42,48 

e) Sales and Distribution ofFinished Prodllct 

Yard Debris Sold 
monthly total, cubic yards of all yard debris products sold: 5,865.00 cubic yds. 
total cubic yards of screened compost: 3,989.00 cubic yds. 
total cubic yards of earl~mulch: 43.00 cubic yds. 
total cubic yards of screened mulch: 1,833.00 cubic yds. 
Iyard debris product allocalions: 70.00 cubic yds. 
Iym'd debris product donations: 31.00 cubic yds. 

Wood Debris Sold 
monthly total, tons of wood debris products sold: 2,641.00 tons 
total tons of wood to non-fuel markets: 226.00 tons 
total tons of wood bio-fuel*: 2,415.00 tons 
wood debris product allocations: 55.00 cubic Vds. 
wood debris product donalions: 0.00 cubic yds. 
* ElO-fuel tonnage mcludes overs from compost process 

35

http:2,415.00
http:2,641.00
http:1,833.00
http:3,989.00
http:5,865.00


Shipment Log 

A shipment log showing date, compost product description, volume and 
destination of each load leaving the facility is on file at the Sonoma Compost 
office and is available for review by the Agency for purposes of verifying 
compensation records or other audiling functions, 

f) Complaillts alld EIlV;"OIII1Ielltal COllcel'lls 
NOlle 

g) COlltamillallts Lalldfilled, Recovered 01' Recl/c/ed 
tons overall % 

I disposed 102,00 1.12~;,

l recycled

It) Illvelltory o/Tollllage, Volume alld Compositioll 

0/Fillished Pl'Oducts 


FINISH 'D MATERIALS E CLl le yards 
unscrccned compost 5,500 cy 
screened compost 7,500 cy 
mulch 550 cy 
"intern1ediates" 2,200 cy 

INTEIDvIEDIA'IELY COMPOSTED MA'l'ERIALS 
laged over 2 weeks I 26,000 cy 

FRESH MATERIAL 
lon-site under 2 weeks 3,930 cy 

EXPERl'vIENTAL MATERIAL 
IBiodynamic I 300 cy 

36



Agenda Item #: 6.5 
Cost Center: Planning 
Staff Contact: Klassen 
Agenda Date: 6/16/2010 

WilSIe 
H.:lnagemenl 
Agency 

37

ITEM: Appropriation Transfer for Planning Cost Center 

I. BACKGROUND 

The Sonoma County Waste Management Agency (SCWMA) is responsible for any 
update, revisions or amendments to the Countywide Integrated Waste Management 
Plan (CoIWMP) as a part of the AB 939 statues. The most recent amendment process 
began January 2008. The process evolved during the process as more information 
became available. 

During the FY 09-10 budget development, the expenses of the ColWMP were 
calculated using estimates based on information available at that time. With the 
continued evolution, the planned funding proved to be inadequate. The total cost for 
the amendment was $284,839. 

II. DISCUSSION 

The amendment is now complete and has been submitted to CalRecycle, the 
organization that will be reviewing and approving it. 

In preparing for the end of the fiscal year, it will be necessary to use reserve funding to 
cover the expenditures that were not included as a part of the planned project. Since 
planning for Household Hazardous Waste was a component of the amendment, staff is 
proposing to use reserve funds from the Household Facility Reserve by submitting an 
appropriation transfer for Board approval. 

The reserve policy developed by the SCWMA Board allows for use of reserves for one 
time or special projects. While updating, revising or amending the ColWMP is a 
responsibility of the SCWMA, these amendments were developed in response to 
changes in the Sonoma County's solid waste system and are considered special. The 
amendment also contains language that would allow for additional household 
hazardous waste collection facilities to be built if the SCWMA desires. 

III. FUNDING IMPACT 

The breakdown for the amendment expenses are as follows: 

Category Actual Cost 

Consultant $ 163,948 

Staff $ 69,713 

Administration Costs' $ 7,287 

Noticing 

Press Democrat Noticing (NOP) $ 220 

Press Democrat Noticing (DEIR) $ 245 

Environmental Filing Fee (Notice of Determination) $ 2,842 

Permit Resource Management Department $ 1,700 

Legal Services $ 38,884 

Total $ 284,839 



Category 

Consultant 

Staff 

Permit Resource Management Department 

Legal Services 

Total 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

Budget Cost 

175,000 

69,713 

7,964 

2,000 

254,677 

* included insurance, County services, 

accounting, audit and information system assistance 

In order to successfully fund the amendment for FY 09-10, an appropriation transfer of 
$15,000 will be necessary. There will be no contribution from the Planning cost center 
to the Contingency Reserve this fiscal year. 

IV. 	 RECOMMENDED ACTION I ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval of the appropriation transfer of $15,000 to Legal Services 
in the Planning cost center from the retained earnings in the Household Hazardous 
Waste Facility reserve. The appropriation transfer of $15,000 represents 5% of the 
total cost of the ColWMP amendment. 

V. 	 ATTACHMENTS 

Appropriation Transfer for the Planning Cost Center 

Approved by: 
Susan Klassen, Interim Exe tiv Director, SCWMA 

38



SPECIAL DISTRICTS GOVERNED BY 
LOCAL BOARDS - BUDGETARY REVISIONS 

Resolution No. 2010
Auditor's Office Use Only 

District Name: Sonoma County Waste Management Agency (JPA) DOCUMENT# 
Address: 2300 County Center Dr., Rm. 100B BATCH # 

Santa Rosa, CA 95403 BATCH DATE 
Phone: 565-2413 
FY: 2009-10 

TC INDEX SUB-OBJECT PROJECT SUB-OBJECT TITLE AMOUNT 

TO: 	 203 799619 6610 	 Funding to 
Year End 

Planning Legal Services $15,000

FROM: 	 799338 310 	 Funding to 

Year End 

Household Hazardous Facility Reserve $15,000 

WHEREAS, the reserve policy for the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency allows for the use of funds for 
one time and/or special projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Countywide Integrated Waste Management Plan (CoIWMP) amendment, required by AB 939 
legislation, required more funding than was budgeted due to complications; and 

WHEREAS, the Household Hazardous Waste Element section of the ColWMP was amended as a part of this 
project; and 

WHEREAS, funding is available from the Household Hazardous Waste Facility for transfer to the Planning cost 
center in order to meet the end of the fiscal year needs, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the County Auditor is hereby authorized and directed to make all 
necessary operating transfers and the above transfer within the authorized budget of the Sonoma County Waste 
Management Agency (JPA). 

The foregoing resolution was introduced by DIRECTOR (x ) TRUSTEE ( 

______________' who moved its adoption, seconded by 

______________~, and adopted on roll call by the following vote: 

Cloverdale Cotati Healdsburg Rohnert Park Petaluma 

Santa Rosa Sebastopol Sonoma Windsor County 

WHEREUPON, the Chairperson declared the foregoing resolution adopted, and SO ORDERED. 

Date: 

Attested: _---"E""li"'za"'b"'e"'thC!...!.:K""o"'et"'k"'e____ 


Signature: Signature: =-,-__________ 

~S~ec-r~et~a-~~/C~le-r~k~of~t~he~B~o-a-rd~--- Chairperson 

39



Wa~le 
ManagemenT 
Agency 

Agenda Item #: 8 
Cost Center: Yard 
Staff Contact: Klassen 
Agenda Date: 6/16/2010 

ITEM: 

I. 

II. 

Appropriation Transfer for Yard Debris cost center 

BACKGROUND 

At the time the FY 09-10 Budget was prepared the anticipated tonnage of material to 
be processed by Sonoma Compost Company (SCC) was 87,800 (9,720 tons to 
Laguna and 78,080 processed for sale). There were estimates for the green hauling 
contract with West Sonoma County Transport, Inc. For Central the tonnage was 
projected to be 52,680 and from the Transfer Stations the estimate was 35,120 tons. 
Using the budgeted rates the expense for Contract Services is as follows: 

Operation Tonnage Rate Operation Total 

Laguna 9,720 $29.31 $284,893 
SCC facility 78,080 $26.79 $2,091,763 
Hauling(Central) 52,680 $2.10 $110,628 
Hauling(Transfer Stations) 35,120 $4.20 $147,504 

Total $2,634,788 

DISCUSSION 

There are three impacts to the Contract Services portion of the Yard Debris cost center 
that have evolved during the FY 09-10 fiscal year. 

The first impact is the payment of invoices from FY 08-09 being paid with FY 09-10 
funds. The invoices include: 

Sonoma Compost Company May 2009 $225,401.38 
West Sonoma County Transport May 2009 $27,539.11 
West Sonoma County Transport June 2009 $25,502.03 
Sonoma Compost Company June 2009 $207,653.45 

The total for these invoices is $486,096. The lack of appropriations was discovered too 
late last year for an appropriation transfer prior to the end of FY 08-09. 

Secondly, the FY 09-10 budgeted amount, including Laguna, for the composting facility 
operation is $2,376,656 and the estimated funding necessary for payment through the 
end of the year is $2,400,465. This leaves a difference of $23,809 needed to be 
included in the appropriation transfer. 

The third impact on the Contract Services is the agreement with West Sonoma County 
Transport, who hauls organic material from the transfer stations to the composting site 
at Central. The actual expense through April is $228,014. It is estimated that the two 
remaining invoices for the fiscal year will total $53,041 with $30,118 remaining in the 
appropriation; therefore it will be necessary to appropriate an additional $22,923. 

40

http:207,653.45
http:25,502.03
http:27,539.11
http:225,401.38


III. 	 FUNDING IMPACT 

The fund balance remaining within the cost centers can be used for operations unlike 
the funds that have already been transferred to the designated reserve centers. In 
order to have appropriations for payment of the anticipated contract payments for the 
Yard Debris cost center, it is necessary to approve an appropriation transfer bringing a 
portion of the fund balance into Contract Services. The amount of the appropriation 
transfer is calculated as follows: 

Prior Year Invoices $486,096 

SCC facility $23,809 

Green Hauling $22,923 

UCCE (final payment) $5,445 


This results in an appropriation transfer of $538,273. 

The budgeted contribution to the Organics Reserve for FY 09-10 is $1,388,953. Using 
$538,273 from the planned contribution to the Organics Reserve will leave $850,680 
being transferred from Yard Debris to the Organics Reserve from the current (FY 09
10) operations. 

IV. 	 RECOMMENDED ACTION I ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval of the appropriation transfer of $538,273 to Contract 
Services from the retained earnings in the Yard Debris cost center. 

The alternative would be to allow the remaining expenditures for composting to be 
carried into the next fiscal year. 

V. 	 ATTACHMENTS 

Appropriation Transfer 

Approved b,I!.'~:
 
Susan Klassen, Interim E 


41



SPECIAL DISTRICTS GOVERNED BY 
LOCAL BOARDS - BUDGETARY REVISIONS 

Resolution No. 2010

District Name: Sonoma County Waste Management Agency (JPA) 
Address: 2300 County Center Dr., Rm. 100B 

Santa Rosa, CA 95403 
Phone: 565-2413 
FY 2009-10 

Auditor's Office Use Only 
DOCUMENT # 
BATCH # 
BATCH DATE 

TC INDEX SUB-OBJECT PROJECT SUB-OBJECT TITLE AMOUNT 

TO: 203 799213 6540 Funding to 
Year End 

Yard Debris 
Contract Services 

$538,273

FROM: 799213 310 Funding to 

Year End 

Yard Debris 
Retained Earnings 

$538,273 

. 

WHEREAS, budget process for the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency allows for the fund balance 
remaining in the specific cost center(s) to be used for operations; and 

WHEREAS, the Yard Debris cost center's Contract Services is requiring more funds than as originally anticipated, 
partly due to a composting invoice from the previous year (FY 08-09) being paid in the current fiscal year (FY 09-10); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the County Auditor is hereby authorized and directed to make all 
necessary operating transfers and the above transfer within the authorized budget of the Sonoma County Waste 
Management Agency (JPA). 

The foregoing resolution was introduced by DIRECTOR (x ) TRUSTEE ( 

______________' who moved its adoption, seconded by 

______________~, and adopted on roll call by the following vote: 

Cloverdale Cotati Healdsburg Rohnert Park Petaluma 

Santa Rosa Sebastopol Sonoma Windsor County 

WHEREUPON, the Chairperson declared the foregoing resolution adopted, and SO ORDERED. 

Date: 

Attested: _--"E""Ii""za",b""e,.,t!.!.h.!.-'K"'o"'et"'k"'e____ 

Signature: -;:;----;-=-c-=:-:-==-- Signature: -oc---,---------
Secretary/Clerk of the Board Chairperson 

42



Wa;!e Agenda Item #: 11 
Hanagcmcnt 
Agenry Cost Center: County 

Staff Contact: Carter 
Agenda Date: 6/16/2010 

2300 County Center Drive, Suite 100 B, Santa Rosa, California 95403 Phone: 707.565.2231 Fax: 707.565.3701 www.recyclenow.org 

43

ITEM: Local Task Force Bylaws Amendment 

I. BACKGROUND 

The Sonoma County Local Task Force on Integrated Waste Management (LTF) is an advisory group 
to the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors and the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency. 
The LTF Bylaws were amended in 1996,2003, and 2005. The 2003 amendments changed the Bylaw 
amendment process to include confirmation by the Agency in addition to the Board of Supervisors. 

At the May 19, 2010 Agency Meeting, the Board requested staff return with a representative of the 
L TF at the June Agency Meeting to describe the rationale behind the position changes, a list of the 
membership and to describe whether any members would be displaced through the changes, and to 
describe the role of the L TF and how that has changed from what is required by AB 939. 

II. DISCUSSION 

L TF History and Membership Statutory Reguirement: 

The County Board of Supervisors enacted a Solid Waste Management Plan on May 31,1977. The 

Board of Supervisors created Solid Waste Management and Resource Recovery Committee on April 

25, 1978 to act as an advisory committee for the implementation of the Solid Waste Management 

Plan. The committee's membership included representatives from the County, the Cities, garbage 

haulers, recyclers, and environmental groups. 


In 1989, the passage of AB 939 required the creation of Local Task Forces as defined in Section 

40950 of the Public Resources Code. According to the Public Resources Code, membership of the 

L TF "shall be determined by the county and by a majority of the cities within the county which contain 

a majority of the population of the incorporated area ofthe county'" and "may include representatives 

of the solid waste industry, environmental organizations, the general public, special districts, and 

affected governmental agencies." These are suggestions for membership; there are no statutory 

membership requirements. 


On March 13, 1990, the Solid Waste Management and Resource Recovery Committee membership 

was expanded to include agriculture, manufacturing, marketing, and scientific representatives and 

established to fill the role of the Local Task Force as defined by AB 939. 


Bylaw Revision: 

As reported at the May 19, 2010 SCWMA Meeting, the proposed 2010 L TF Bylaws amendment 

requires Agency confirmation. Changes in the 2010 L TF Bylaws amendment are limited to Article IV: 

Membership. The Agency's role in this process is limited to confirming the changes to the bylaws, 

which in this instance include revising position titles, not individual members. The L TF-approved 

amendments include: 


• 	 The positions of Commercial Garbage Hauler (Rural Haulers) and Commercial Garbage 
Hauler (Urban Haulers) were removed and replaced with Franchised Hauler and Non
Franchised Hauler; 

1 The majority of the cities with the majority of the population confirmation of memberShip is now accomplished through 
the Agency's confirmation. 

http:www.recyclenow.org


• The Sonoma County Environmental Forum position was replaced by the Climate Change 
Organization position; 

• 
Division Manager"; 

• The recommending agency was removed from the Marketing Specialist, Scientist, and 
Education Representative (defaulting the recommending agency to the Board of Supervisors); 
and 

• A clause allowing the L TF to make recommendations to the Board of Supervisors to fill vacant 
positions was added. 

If approved by the Agency, the amended bylaws would be forwarded to the Board of Supervisors for 
consideration. 

III. FUNDING IMPACT 

There is no funding impact as a result of this item. 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION I ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends confirmation of the amended Sonoma County Local Task Force on Integrated 
Waste Management Bylaws. 

V. ATTACHMENTS 

Sonoma County Local Task Force on Integrated Waste Management Bylaws (Changes Noted) 
2010 LTF Membership 
Resolution 

The title of the "Integrated Waste Manager" was replaced with "Integrated Waste Operations 

2300 County Center Drive, Suite 100 B, Santa Rosa, California 95403 Phone: 707.565,2231 Fax: 707.565.3701 www.recyclenow.org 

44

http:www.recyclenow.org


SONOMA COUNTY LOCAL TASK FORCE 

ON 


INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT 


BYLAWS 

Article I: NAME 

The name of the organization is the AB 939 Local Task Force on Integrated Waste 
Management, commonly referred to as the "LTF." 

Article II: AUTHORITY 

This organization is created and its members appointed by resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors, which has the authority to establish and disband the Local Task Force on 
Integrated Waste Management. 

Article III: PURPOSES 

The purposes of the Local Task Force on Integrated Waste Management are to: 

• 	 Perform those duties assigned to the Local Task Force (LTF) as defined by AB 939 and 
other related state laws. 

• 	 Provide advice to the jurisdictions of Sonoma County on the implementation of the 
Countywide Integrated Waste Management Plan. 

• 	 Provide a forum for the public discussion of solid waste management, waste reduction, 
and recycling issues. To ensure this opportunity exists, time will be provided on the 
agenda for public comment. 

• 	 Perform other advisory tasks as requested by the jurisdictions of Sonoma County. 

Article IV: MEMBERSHIP 

A. 	 Membership of the Local Task Force on Integrated Waste Management shall be 
comprised of representatives from each city and the County, organizations with technical 
expertise, and other interested parties as listed below: 

City of Cloverdale 

City of Cotati 

City of Healdsburg 

City of Petaluma 

City of Rohnert Park 

City of Santa Rosa 

City of Sebastopol 

City of Sonoma 

Town of Windsor 


Local Enforcement AgentJ,recommending agency - Environmental Health Division) 

45



Integrated Waste Operations Division Manager, Sonoma County Dept. of Transportation and 
Public Works 
EelTllTleFcial GaFbage Association (UFban HauleFS) Franchised Hauler 
COlTllTleFcial GaFbage Association (Rural HauleFs) Non-Franchised Hauler 
Non-Profit Recycling Organization 
SonolTla County EnlliFonlTlental FOFUITl Climate Change Organization 
Sonoma County Recycling Association 
League of Women Voters 
Sierra Club 
Agriculture Industry (recommending agency - Sonoma County Ag. Commissioner) 
Chamber of Commerce (recommending agency - Council of C. of C. Directors) 
Major Manufacturer (recommending agency - Sonoma County Manufacturing Group) 
Marketing Specialist (FecolTllTlending agency SonolTla County Ad Club) 
Scientist (FecolTllTlending agency HazaFdous ~4ateFials ~4anagelTlent COlTllTlission) 
Education Representative (FecolTllTlending agency SonolTla County BoaFd of SUl'leFllisoFs) 
Community Representatives (five - one selected by each County Supervisor) 

B. 	 Each member and an alternate shall be identified first by their organization or recommending 
agency. If there is no organization or recommending agencv. the Task Force will make 
recommendations of qualified and interested individuals to the Board of Supervisors. Failing 
this recommendation, the Board of Supervisors will appoint from interested parties for this 
position. The Board shall confirm the appointment of all members. The city representative 
may be an elected official or staff person. A citizen of the city may serve as an alternate 
representative. 

C. 	 The term of membership shall be a renewable three-year term. 

D. 	 A member's absence for three consecutive meetings will constitute grounds for review of 
membership by the Membership Committee. 

Article V: VOTING 

The Local Task Force on Integrated Waste Management shall adopt and adhere to Robert's 
Rules ofOrder for voting and meeting procedures. A quorum, defined as eleven (11) of the 
appointed membership, shall be required to take action on any agenda item; however, meetings 
may be held to exchange information with less than a quorum. Actions taken with a quorum, 
but less than one half of the appointed membership, shall be confirmed by a second vote at the 
next meeting. 

Article VI: OFFICERS 

A. 	 The Local Task Force for Integrated Waste Management shall have a Chair, Vice-Chair and 
Chair Pro Tem. 

B. 	 The duties of the officers are as follows: 

1. 	 The Chair shall: 
a. Chair meetings. 
b. Sign letters and correspondence and represent the Local Task Force. 

46



c. 	 Appoint members as necessary to perform the tasks agreed upon by the Local Task 
Force. 

2. 	 The Vice-Chair shall: 
a. 	 Perform the duties of the Chair in the absence of the Chair. 
b. 	 Serve as Chair of the Membership Committee. 

3. 	 The Chair Pro Tem shall: 
a. Perform the duties of the Chair in the absence of the Chair and Vice-Chair. 

Article VII: MEETINGS 

At the first annual meeting of the LTF, LTF members shall approve a schedule for meetings for 
the current year. Meetings will generally be held every other month on the second Thursday of 
the month. Additional meetings may be scheduled throughout the current year as determined 
by the LTF. 

Article VIII: ELECTIONS 

Elections shall occur each year as the first order of business at the April meeting. 

Article IX: COMMITTEES 

A. Committees of the Local Task Force on Integrated Waste Management are: 

1. 	 Membership Committee. The Membership Committee shall be responsible for review of 
membership attendance to ensure the presence of a quorum. The Membership 
Committee shall assist in the identification and selection of qualified and interested 
individuals for membership openings on the LTF. 

2. 	 Other Committees shall be created as determined by the LTF. 

Article X: BYLAWS 

The Local Task Force on Integrated Waste Management may adopt, amend, or repeal its Bylaws 
at any meeting by two-thirds vote of the members present. Any changes of the Bylaws shall be 
confirmed by the Board of Supervisors and the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency. 

47



L TF Membership List 

Member Organization 	 Member 
(No Primary) 

City of Cloverdale 
Gus Wolter - Alternate 

linda Christopher - Primary
City of Cotati 

Marsha Sue Lustig Alternate 

Ma~ie Pettus - Primary 
City of Healdsburg 

Mike Kim AUemate 
Susan Lackie Primary

City of Petaluma 
Vince Marengo Alternate 

Chris Rogers Primary
City of Rohnert Park 

(No Allemate) 


Dell Tredinnick Primary

City of Santa Rosa 

Elise Howard - Alternate 

Sue Kelly - Primary
City of Sebastopol 

(No Alternate) 


William Pier, Jr. Primary

City of Sonoma 

Linda Kelly Alternate 

Christa Johnson Primary
Town of Windsor 

(No Allernate) 


Susan Klassen Primary

Sonoma County Public Works 

Trish Pisenti Alternate 

Christine Sosko Primary
Environmental Health Division 

John Anderson - Alternate 

Sal San Filippo Primary
Commercial Garbage Service (Urban) 

(No Alternate) 


Pam Davis Primary
Commerci~1 Garbage Service {Rural} 
Steve McCaffrey Alternate 

Portia Sinnott (Vice Chair) Primary
Non~Profit Recycling Organization 

(No Alternate) . 

Lisa Hardin (Chair Pro Tempore) - Pnmary


Sonoma County Recycling Association 
Delyn Kies Alternate 

Will Bakx - Primary
Agriculture Industry 

Alan Siegle Alternate 

Dawna Gallagher Primary
Education Representative 

(No Alternate) 


Ken Wells - Primary

Sierra Club 

Don Sanders Alternate 

Bob Hawthorne Primary
League of Women Voters 

Max Bridges Alternate 

Michael Anderson (Chair) Primary
Marketing Specialist 

Natalie Timm - Alternate 

Mike Dittmore - Primary
Sonoma County Manufacturing Group 

(No Alternate) 


Paul Palmer ~ Primary

Scientific Representative 

Kelley Keogh Alternate 

Paul Brophy Primary
Chamber of Commerce 

(No Alternate) 


Jeff Baptista - Primary 

1 

st District Representative 
Greg Carr Alternate 


2nd District Representative Primary I Alternate - Vacant 


Richard Zimmer Primary

3rt! District Representative 

(No Alternate) 


Bill Massey - Primary 

4th District Representative 

(No Alternate) 


June Michaels - Primary 

5th District Representative 

(No Alternate) 

48



RESOLUTION NO.: 

DATED: June 16, 2010 

49

RESOLUTION OF THE 

SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY ("AGENCY") 

CONFIRMING THE SONOMA COUNTY LOCAL TASK FORCE ON 


INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT ("L TF") BYLAWS 


WHEREAS, according to Article X of the existing L TF Bylaws, "Any 
changes of the Bylaws shall be confirmed by the Board of Supervisors and the 
Sonoma County Waste Management Agency."; and 

WHEREAS, the AGENCY has reviewed and approves of the amended 
Sonoma County Local Task Force on Integrated Waste Management Bylaws. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the AGENCY hereby 
confirms amended Sonoma County Local Task Force on Integrated Waste 
Management Bylaws. 

MEMBERS: 

Cloverdale Cotati County Healdsburg Petaluma 

Rohnert Park Santa Rosa Sebastopol Sonoma Windsor 

AYES NOES ABSENT ABSTAIN 

SO ORDERED. 

The within instrument is a correct copy 
of the original on file with this office. 

ATTEST: DATE: 

Elizabeth Koetke 
Clerk of the Sonoma County Waste Management 
Agency of the State of California in and for the 
County of Sonoma 



~ONOMA (OUNTY 	 Agenda Item #: 12 
Wa~!E 	 Cost Center: Administration 
lojanil!;l'ment 
Agency 	 Staff Contact: Carter 

Meeting Date: 6/16/2010 

ITEM: SCWMA Alternative Funding 

I. 	 BACKGROUND 

In October 2006, the Board discussed the Agency's legal authority to adopt and implement a Fee. 
The Board expressed an interest in a fee based on the quantity of solid waste disposed that would 
be imposed on haulers via an Agency Ordinance. On November 14, 2006, staff held a meeting with 
all Sonoma County haulers, including the independent debris box business owners. The haulers' 
concerns were addressed and passed on to the Board, but it was decided to continue with the 
tipping fee surcharge for the FY 2007-08. 

The issue was revisited in 2008, and in January 2009 staff presented the Board with a Request for 
Proposals for a financial consultant to develop an alternative Agency Funding Model. R3 
Consulting Group was the selected consultant and the Agency entered into an agreement with R3 
on April 15, 2009. 

At the May 19, 2010 SCWMA meeting, the Board of Directors received the Sonoma County Waste 
Management Agency Funding Study from R3 Consulting Group. The report detailed three funding 
scenarios for the Agency: 1) the current funding scenario in which revenues are collected on waste 
collected at County-owned waste facilities in Sonoma County, 2) the current funding model with the 
fee extended to customers of in-county construction and demolition (C&D) material recovery 
facilities, and 3) a generation-based funding model in which customers of franchised haulers, C&D 
facilities, and self haulers would be charged an Agency Fee based on the tonnage of solid waste 
generated. Staff believes only Scenario 3 has the potential to significantly mitigate the detrimental 
impact of declining garbage tonnage on the Agency's revenues. The Board requested additional 
information regarding the impacts on their individual jurisdictions. 

II. 	 DISCUSSION 

Staff has prepared a presentation and accompanying handout to illustrate the background of the 
Agency's existing surcharge structure and how Scenario 3 from the Funding Study would displace 
the existing surcharge and implement the new fee. 

If Scenario 3 is chosen as the preferred funding model, staff proposes the following plan for 
implementation: 

• 	 Perform a cursory review of each jurisdiction's franchise agreement, looking for three 
specific items: 

o 	 How is price indexing addressed? 
o 	 Does the agreement contain a provision allowing for changes in law? 
o 	 How is waste defined and would that definition affect the proposed Agency fee? 

• 	 Meet with haulers and C&D MRF operators to discuss the plan with the goals of helping 
them understand the changes and receiving their feedback to ensure the Agency Fees is as 
equitable as possible. 

• 	 Develop a draft ordinance for Board consideration. 

The Board may give direction at any point listed above including to proceed as planned, proceed 

50



with alternative direction, or to halt the process altogether. 

III. 	 FUNDING IMPACT 

If an alternative funding model is chosen, additional staff time will be required to implement the next 
steps of the project. 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION I ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends selection of Scenario 3 as the funding model for the new Agency Fee and giving 
staff direction to proceed with the next steps as outlined above. 

V. 	 ATIACHMENTS 

None. 

Approved by: 

Susan Klassen, 


51



Waste 
Management Agenda Item #: 13 
Agency 

Cost Center: HHW 
Staff Contact: Steinman 
Agenda Date: 6/16/2010 

ITEM: Award E-Waste Collection Event Contract 

I. BACKGROUND 

The Sonoma County Waste Management Agency (Agency) has been holding electronic waste 
(E-waste) collection events since 2007. These events provide opportunities for residents and 
businesses of Sonoma County to bring electronics to specified city centered locations for proper 
recycling. 

In 2009, ECS Refining and the Agency entered into an Agreement for Electronic Waste 
Management Services for the Agency's E-waste Collection Events after the previous contractor, 
ASL Recycling, went out of business. At the September 16, 2009 Agency Board meeting, the 
Board approved continuing with ECS Refining for all of the publicized events through March 
2010 and then going out for Request for Proposals (RFP) for a two year period thereafter with 
the addition of adding some scoring points for local and/or non-profit status. The Agency Board 
also directed staff to seek a "back-up" E-waste Contractor to hold Agency sponsored E-waste 
Collection Events, in the event that the Primary Contractor is unable to provide the E-waste 
recycling services required by its contract with the Agency. The back-up Contractor shall not be 
guaranteed any amount of work. 

II. DISCUSSION 

On May 3, 2010, the Agency issued a RFP for Electronic Waste Collection Event Services. Four 
proposals were received by the deadline of May 26, 2010. Following is the list of Proposers: 

ECS Refining and United Datatech Distributors, Santa Clara, CA 

Electronic Recyclers International Inc., Fresno, California 

Goodwill Industries - Redwood Empire, Santa Rosa, CA 

Universal Waste Management, Inc., Oakland CA 

The proposals were reviewed and evaluated by the Interim Agency Director and Agency staff. 
Scoring Criteria was used to enable staff to evaluate potential Electronic Waste Collection Event 
Contractors. Evaluations were based on twelve questions which were included in the Proposed 
Scope of Services (see attached Exhibit A). Each category was scored with a maximum score of 
100 points being possible. The final ranking was based upon the comparison of proposals by 
category. Of the four Proposers, Goodwill Industries of the Redwood Empire was the highest 
ranking Proposer and ECS Refining ranked second. Both Contractors are well qualified to 
provide E-waste collection services in partnership with the Agency. 

A table listing all of the Proposers and their ranking is included in this staff report as the Request 
for Proposals-Comparison attachment. The proposed Agreements with both Contractors are also 
included. Finalized versions of both Agreements, with the Scope of Work incorporated, will be 
signed by the respective Contractor and brought to this meeting for the Chair's signature if 
approved. 

52



III. FUNDING IMPACT 

The Agency will be paid by the Contractor per pound for E-waste which qualifies for 
reimbursement under the State's covered electronic waste recovery and recycling payment 
program. 

Goodwill's proposed payment to the Agency for recycling covered electronic waste 

(Cathode Ray Tubes) was $0.15/Ib. 


ECS's proposed rate to be paid to the Agency is: 

$0.06I1b for events collecting 10,000 Ibs. or less of covered electronic material (Cathode Ray 
Tubes) 
$0.12I1b for events collecting over 10,000 Ibs. of covered electronic material (Cathode Ray 
Tubes) 
$O.OB/lb for Central Processing Units 

There will be a cost to the Agency for the necessary public outreach and staff time for other 
logistical requirements to hold the events. Revenues generated from the E-waste collection 
events are expected to offset Agency costs. The revenues generated in excess of these costs 
will help offset other HHW program costs. 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION I ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends: 

1) 	 Awarding to Goodwill Industries of the Redwood Empire, the highest ranking Proposer, 
the two year Contract for E-waste Collection Event Services and authorizing the Chair to 
sign the Agreement. 

2) 	 Awarding ECS Refining, the second ranking Proposer, the "back-up" Contract for E-waste 
Collection Event Services and authorizing the Chair to sign the Agreement. 

V. ATIACHMENTS 

1. 	 RFP Exhibit A-Proposed Scope of Services 
2. 	 Request for Proposals-Comparison 
3. 	 Agreement with Goodwill Industries of the Redwood Empire (including Proposed Scope of 

Services) 
4. 	 Goodwill Industries of the Redwood Empire Resolution 
5. 	 Agreement with ECS Refining (including Proposed Scope of Services) 
6. 	 ECS Refining Resolution 

Approve d by: --
Susan Klassen, Interim Exe ti e Director, SCWMA 

53



Exhibit A 

Proposed Scope of Services 

The Contractor shall provide all waste collection selVices needed for the operation of 
successful Electronic Waste Collection Events. SelVices will include all staffing, 
necessary packaging, materials, transportation, and equipment. The Contractor is 
expected to perform all collection, transportation, and processing selVices consistent 
with all local, state, and Federal laws and regulations. 

The Contractor shall be required to hold monthly (calendar) E-waste collection events. 
Event locations should vary to most conveniently selVe population centers and the 
unincorporated areas of Sonoma County. The Contractor shall provide the necessary 
venues to host the events. 

To enable the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency (SCWMA) to evaluate 
potential Electronic Waste Collection Event Contractors, please address each of the 
items below. SCWMA staff will evaluate the Proposals based on completeness of 
answers to the items below and use of the following scoring criteria. Each item (1-12) will 
be scored with a maximum score of 100 points being possible. Proposals must score at 
least 75 points to be considered for the contract. 

(1) 	 (12 points) Please list in detail the collection selVices proposed to be provided in 
connection with the SCWMA Electronic Waste Collection Events. 

(2) 	 (12 points) Please describe the Proposer's qualifications and experience as an 
E-waste collector and/or recycler. Include information on approximate pounds of 
E-waste collected during a single event. Please specify the duration of the event. 

(3) 	 (5 points) A maximum of 5 points will be given to Proposers who qualify as local 
and/or non-profit or partner with a non-profit for selVices proposed to be provided 
in connection with the SCWMA Electronic Waste Collection Events. Please 
specify which category below the Proposer qualifies as. 

1. 	 Proposer is a 501 (c)(3) Nonprofit Corporation or Association and has a 
business location in Sonoma County, California. (5 points) 

2. 	 Proposer is a 501 (c)(3) Nonprofit Corporation or Association and does not 
have a business location in Sonoma County, California. (3 points) 

3. 	 Proposer is not a 501 (c)(3) Nonprofit Corporation or Association but has a 
business location in Sonoma County, California (2 points) 

2 additional points will be given if the Proposer is not a 501 (c)(3) Nonprofit 
Corporation or Association but partners with a non-profit for selVices proposed to 
be provided in connection with the SCWMA Electronic Waste Collection Events. 
(2 points) 

Please list the Nonprofit Corporation or Association the Proposer is partnering 
with and the selVices that shall be provided by this Nonprofit. 

Request for Proposals for Electronic Waste Collection Event Services for the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

54



(4) 	 (3 points) How much time is needed between notification to proceed and the first 
collection event? 

(5) 	 (3 points) What will be the duration of the event? Please include the proposed 
days of the week the events are to be held on. (1 of 3 possible points will be 
given if one of the event days includes a Saturday or Sunday.) 

- 1 day (1 point) 

- 2 days (2 points) 

- 3 days (2 points) 

- Other (1-2 points) 


(6) 	 (3 points) What would be the collection hours for the event? (A full day, 8-9 
hours will be given 3 points, more than 9 hours will be given 2 points, and less 
than 8 hours will be given 1 point.) 

(7) 	 (12 points) What items will be collected at the events? 

(8) 	 (15 points) How much would be paid (charged) to the SCWMA for recycling the 
materials described in question (7)? The payment (charge) should include all 
costs (recycling, labor, equipment, transportation, etc.). 

(9) 	 (12 points) Please list specific locations/addresses that can be provided as 
venues for E-waste collection events. 

Is the Proposer willing to use locations that the SCWMA can provide? These 
locations include County-wide Park & Ride lots, Community Centers and 
Fairgrounds, City Corporation Yards, and Home Improvement Center parking 
lots. 

(The score for this item will be based on whether the SCWMA finds the proposed 
locations to be acceptable for (1) holding E-waste collection events and (2) 
servicing the needs of Sonoma County residents. A higher score will be given for 
Proposers who are willing to use locations provided for by the SCWMA in 
addition to locations proposed by the Proposer.) 

(10) 	 (15 points) Describe, in detail, the final destination/market for collected items. In 
addition, please also address the following: 

a) Will any of the items collected be recycled or reused? Please describe. 

b) How are collected hard drives to be handled? 

c) List any materials which are sent to the landfill or shipped overseas for 


processing. 

Request for Proposals for Electronic Waste Collection Event Services for the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

55



1 point will be given for each category below (maximum 2 points out of 15) to 
Proposers that: 

1. 	 have ISO 9000 or 14001 Environmental Management Systems 
2. 	 have obtained environmental, health and safety certifications. Provide a list 

of any current certifications or qualifications, for example the e-Stewards 
Certification (which includes ISO 14001 certification) or the e-Stewards 
Pledge. 

(The score for item #10 will be based on assurance that the Proposer upholds 
the highest social and environmental standards in their business practices.) 

(11) 	 (4 points) Describe any additional support the Proposer is willing to provide to 
assist in the organizing, advertising, marketing, and public outreach for the 
events. (Create and distribute press releases etc.) 

(12) 	 (4 points) What existing advertising products does the Proposer have available 
for use? (A frame signs and/or banners etc.) 

(13) 	 Does the Proposer have any exceptions or changes to the requested services or 
contract language? (An excessive number of requested changes to the contract 
language will be disfavored and may be a basis for non-awarding of the 
Agreement.) 

(14) 	 Is the Proposer interested in signing a "back-up" Agreement if not selected as the 
"primary" vendor? (Insurance shall only be required if Notice to Proceed is issued 
by Agency. Back-up vendor shall not be guaranteed any amount of work.) 

E-waste RFP/Contract Language 

INTENT 

The Sonoma County Waste Management Agency (SCWMA) implements the following 
criteria as due diligence to increase the oversight of electronics recycling and to assure 
legal, safe and beneficial recycling occurs with Sonoma County's electronic waste. The 
following criteria must be included in the successful Proposer's contract. 

Contract Requirements 

1. 	 Contractor must be 1) an Approved Recycler with the State of California 
Integrated Waste Management Board (CIWMB) and maintain this designation 
throughout the term of the contract or 2) registered with the CIWMB as an 
authorized E-waste Collector and partner with an Approved Recycler with the 
State of CIWMB and both the Collector and the Approved Recycler must 
maintain this designation throughout the term of the contract. Loss of 
Approved Recycler and Collector designation shall be considered a breach of 
the contract. 

2. 	 The Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State, and/or Local Regulations. 

3. 	 The Contractor shall not allow any characteristically hazardous material 

Request for Proposals for Electronic Waste Collection Event Services for the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

56



accepted to be sent to solid waste (non-hazardous waste) landfills or 
incinerators for disposal or energy recovery, either directly or through 
intermediaries. 

4. 	 The Contractor is to assure that all materials that test as characteristic 
hazardous waste under California Law remain within the United States until 
the waste has been processed to the point at which it can be considered a 
commodity ready for use in a new product. This requirement applies to all 
characteristic materials, including those with exemptions, such as circuit 
boards. 

5. 	 To ensure integrality of the entire recycling chain, including downstream 
intermediaries and recovery operations such as smelters, the Contractor shall 
not utilize a company that is not in complete compliance with all applicable 
National, Regional and/or Local environmental and health and safety 
regulations. 

6. 	 For Contractor and each of the proposed subcontractors, include copies of all 
notices of violations, administrative orders, or other enforcement actions 
taken by any regulatory agencies during the past three years and within 30 
days of any new violation during the term of this Agreement for Contractor 
and each of the proposed subcontractors. Also, provide copies of any letters 
of recommendation or other awards of recognition. 

7. 	 Contractor must make all of its facilities and related documentation available 
to the SCWMA for onsite and paper audits by SCWMA or designated 3m 

m 

party auditor. Additionally, Contractor must arrange for all 
contractors/vendors involved in the downstream recycling process, 
regardless of location, to make their facilities and docume

party auditor. 
ntation available for 

onsite and paper audits by SCWMA or designated 3

8. 	 Contractor must provide a downstream chain-of-custody-and-disposition 
report of all waste collected within ninety (90) days of the collection event. 
The downstream report shall include both hazardous and non-hazardous 
components, including but limited to, Identity of vendor(s) who purchase final 
recovered materials, and a description of each material's final reuse or 
disposition by volume and composition. 

9. 	 Contractor shall provide Agency staff with a list of Contractor's "Down-Stream 
Vendors", identified by material processed, and shall provide written 
notification to Agency of any change to the list. Contractor shall provide thirty 
(30) days notice to Agency of any change to the list that is initiated by 
Contractor and seven (7) days notice of any change not initiated by 
Contractor. 

Request for Proposals for Electronic Waste Collection Event Services fDr the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

57



Proposer 

I 
Responsive
Yes or NO"' I ITOTAL 

Goodwill Industries of the Redwood Empire YES 11.3 12 5 2.7 , , 11.3 10 11.3 13 , ,., No BB.9 

ECS Refining YES g., 12 2 , 1.7 2.' 10.7 9.3 7.' 12 3 , No 75.6 

Electronic Recyclers International YES 10.7 10.7 o 1.7 2 , 10 14 B 10.7 2.7 0.' No 73.B 

Universal Waste Management, Inc. YES 11.3 12 0.' 1.7 , 1.7 11.3 5.' 7 10.3 ,., 3 Ye, 70.2 

Scores for each category are based on the a.verage of the combined scores from three evaluators. 

58



AGREEMENT FOR ELECTRONIC WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR 
SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

This agreement ("Agreement"), dated as of ,2010 ("Effective 
Date") is by and between the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency, (hereinafter 
"Agency"), and Goodwill Industries of the Redwood Empire (hereinafter "Contractor"). 

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is dulYillllfljified and experienced in 
Electronic Waste ("E-Waste") Collection Event Servict;~i@d'related services; and 

WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Boaf(;\i8,~illlll~b~'i\-\s of Agency, it is 
necessary and desirable to employ the service~8~\gdhtractor'H)IJ;tRld E-Waste Collection 

Events, dlllill!li!!" 'f
i
:ii ::!!,!!" 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideHitHm of the foregoing redHU~,and the mutual 
covenants contained herein, the parties hereto"J(k\;t;e as f()Ji~ws: "!Wi' 

,;1j;~;" 'i!j!l!ih~!I'jllW' "1lj,!i)' 
''!iiARIl,R,E. EM ENil]!!',',',!,:

[1! i:' if! t,' ,',''ill, "ii ii':" 

I, 	 s~~~~!~~.service~i ,!lii::'i:iilllliillillll!i:,L ";dl!::::". 
,i i! Illliliili!i!+lR!1}ractor' s' S,Br.ci~ffR!Ii':er\l!Rr.~" !hisiAgreement is entered 

into for the purpO:s~!pf establl~lfutg a contr:4ill1 !fqtiE-Waste!Qpllection Event Services. 
Contractor shall p~*9,W1 servi6~~!as definedlimiExhibit "A"; Proposed Scope of Services, 

The sq~d,m~!QqHnty'~M!~~IMUM~M~%~~tAg~]!~!(SCWMA) implements the following 
crititHi~W~iHu~'liilig~~we t~'i~~~",ase theib'V~!\'ljg)1Hjf electronics recycling and to assure 
leg@!~afe and beneifill!~!,recybHhgoccurs wi'ti!!'Sonoma County's electrorric waste. 

tiW;' Iq1Ilhi;, 'ql~!;:~h 
"!i!!!!:, a, ContradpJ; must b~!1J an Approved Recycler with the State of 

"'''. 1"~" ",,;
"i!i!!" Californi~lJptegrateifWaste Management Board (CIWMB) and 

"i!jj!:"rnaintain 'W1~ designation throughout the term of the contract or 2) 
i!nlr<;:gistere,~l#fith the CIWMB as an authorized E-waste Collector and 

p®n.t;pi\}lIUl an Approved Recycler with the State of CIWMB and both 
tl1''' " " ,"

the'lIlR!fector and the Approved Recycler must maintain this 
desigriation throughout the term of the contract. Loss of Approved 
Recycler and Collector designation shall be considered a breach of the 
contract. 

b, 	 The Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State, and/or Local 
Regulations, 

c, 	 The Contractor shall not allow any characteristically hazardous 
material accepted Lo be sent to solid waste (non-hazardous waste) 

59



landfills or incinerators for disposal or energy recovery, either directly 
or through intennediaries. 

d. 	 The Contractor is to assure that all materials tllat test as characteristic 
hazardous waste under California Law remain within the United States 
until the waste has been processed to tile point at which it can be 
considered a commodity ready for use in a new product. Tills 
requirement applies to all characteristic materials, including tllose witll 
exemptions, such as circuit boards. 

.djjH1~ 

e. 	 To ensure integrality ofilie entire reyy'bi~ilg chain, including 
,n"dh

downstream intermediaries and req{jy¢hY, operations such as smelters, 
the Contractor shall not utilize aJ~~mpfuW:\\1at is not in complete 
compliance witll all applicaql~I~lltional, R'Mgjqnal and/or Local 
environmental and health;;ilil:ip~lifety regulatliJil~~ 

'!f!!liH" 	 '!tJdhH, 
f. 	 For Contractor and each '6:fithe proposed subcontra~tRr:~, include copies 

of all notices ofviolations:'~l:i:W.jnistr'!Ri~\",.orders, or'gU)'~Lenforcement 
actions taken ,by, ,any regulatcitYI~g~l}HI~~'during tile pasNhl;ee years 
and wiiliin 3o':~~Y'4iRfany new vljiJ~~~jil~ during tile tenn o'ttl1is 
Agreement for'ciiHtp;\'ctorand eacli'b~ithe proposed subcontractors. 
Also, provide C~~~~R ~¥':lli~~~,\\ers of'fM~\lmmendation or oilier awards 

.~O liilf:iI~I;:j~n. ";11:;:",' "::::!!IIIIIII!!ii!i ,'il!!II!!:, 
g,n f!l0htractor!~~j1Il make~,9,:fii);Sifacilitie$::Wd related documentation 

, ~j.1!!j1able to)il:\e SCWMA!!fq(onsite and paper audits by SCWMA or 
&~lm!!ted i,1?!pAfI:Y auditi:lH!!Additionally, Contractor must arrange for 

;j iHjHH, , all cdn!1l~?~0,t~NgilRRmJnvdi~~p, in tile downstream recycling process, 
niP ""nn i!Ji~gardles~i{jf!ocatiiliimi.$i!;l1akeitheir facilities and documentation 

''it~:W1;\ble rbiibnsite and'~\i~~r audits by SCWMA or designated 3rd 

IHi; parlYlfl»~itor'.iqI!l1k . 
"linl \llllL 'lHUih 

'j 	Hl.h. Contractqti~hall provide a downstreanl chain-of-custody-and
'IHi, '" dispositicjnlh:port of all waste collected witllin ninety (90) days of the 

q!;~RJlectiorll~Yent. The downstream report shall include botll hazardous 
'~~Aqlimllliardous components, including but limited to, Identity of 
vetid~tt:lrwho purchase final recovered materials, and a description of 
each'Wlaterial's final reuse or disposition by volume and composition. 

I. 	 Contractor shall provide Agency staffwiili a list of Contractor's 
"Down-Streanl Vendors", identified by material processed, and shall 
provide written notification to Agency of any chffilge to the list. 
Contractor shall provide thirty (30) days notice to Agency of any 
change to the list that is initiated by Contractor ffild seven (7) days 
notice of any change not initiated by Contractor. 

60



1.2 Cooperation with Agency. Contractor shall cooperate with 
Agency and Agency staff in the performance of all work hereunder. 

1.3 Performance Standard. Contractor shall perforn1 all work 
hereunder in a marmer consistent with the level of competency and standard of care 
normally observed by a person practicing in Contractor's profession. If Agency 
determines that any of Contractor's work is not in accordance with such level of 
competency and standard of care, Agency, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to do 
any or all of the following: (a) require Contractor to meet with Agency to review the 
quality of the work and resolve matters of concern; (b) reqNi!l~,Contractor to repeat the 
work at no additional charge until it is satisfactory; (c)}~mnlhate this Agreement 
pursuant to the provisions of Article 4; or (d) pursue My!1fud all other remedies at law or 

in equity. 	 "I !J!H"i!Uilllllll!I"il' 
1.4 A§.§J~lli~~ 

cOlnpl~teJat perso~!~ttq perform work 
~g;YAcy, in its scimilliscretion, 

person o~iIR~t~i'~'I'i's"'assigned by dJtitt'actor to 
,Co,ntJ:actor's1($]'" such person"or persons 

~M'Ptten notill~l~\om Agency. 

b. 	 , th;~l~~~yment or any exhibit 
:, oiHh professional 
",' to be key personnel 

U~\""Clll to Agency to enter into this 
Agency would not have entered 

not remove, replace, substitute, or 
ke:Y!J\~l1~R}mEli without the prior written consent ofiiI! liI!l!~ij~,"W'H<;'9 

h, '!filf; 
jj'H, t!fin~ 'illlh,
'!iiij,:,' L c. In t!i~ir,vent th~\!\\llY of Contractor's personnel assigned to perform 

H!i;services unde~ithis Agreement become unavailable due to resignation, 
"T'''} l"";
"(sickness or otl16t factors outside of Contractor's control, Contractor shall 
iig~~~ponsib,l~!for timely provision of adequately qualified replacements. 

2. ;~~~J~WiiP~ontractor shall pay Agency in accordance with Exhibit 
"A" which sets out the payment terms. Contractor shall pay Agency within 90 days of 
each event. Contractor shall include with the payment for each event, a report listing the 
number, type, and amount by weight of items collected. 

3. Tern1 of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall be from June 
16,2010 to June 16,2012, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of 
Article 4 below. 

4. Tennination. 

61



4.1 Termination Without Calise. Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Agreement, at any time and without cause, Agency shall have the right, 
in its sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement by giving ten (10) days written notice 
to Contractor. 

4.2 Termination for Cause. Notwithstanding any other provision 
of this Agreement, should Contractor fail to perform any of its obligations hereunder, 
within the time and in the manner herein provided, or otherwise violate any of the terms 
of this Agreement, Agency may immediately terminate thj~imgreement by giving 
Contractor written notice of such termination, stating the:~~~on for termination . 

.... ."" 

,dl!!lllillih
4.3 Delivery of Work Productitihd Rinal Payment Upon 

Termination. ".,1,.l,.,!.:,',:.,!•.,L,L,h 'ip 'i!~llh; 
. :", lqi1!l: 

In the event of termination, Contractor, witHi!~1'4 days following ii\~i~ft1e of termination, 
shall deliver to Agency all materials and wQf1{jprodllct subject to Sedion:9.9 and shall 
submit to Agency payment up to the date oft~tmination." " "'lin!: 

, " ,t ' 'q ijjl 

5. Indemnificati6~.:lc\?,Il,\nlctor agr~.J~~Hi~~cept all responsibility for loss 
or damage to any person or entity:\jnRllitlmg,.~ut not liilil\1~C;\to Agency, and to defend, 
indemnify, hold harmless, reimburselMnd rele~MT1M?:gencY:!l~~IRtficers, agents, and 
employees, from and,agli!P.st any and alhfictions; !cl1tims, da.ri'ia'gYR, disabilities, liabilities 
and expense inciudilYMJil!ilii!H(jj:Jimited tU!i!lttor.n~Y,§r::fd~$\ijl).d tim!cost of litigation 
incurred in the d~t~n¥e of ci~tiJi~!as to whl!4'h~Wr~deniliJ.t)\j~pplies or incurred in an 
action by Agency 'toi~nforce the,IWdemnitYR[<!\yisions herein, whether arising from 
personal injury, propgj~!c\~\\~~!9JiKconorrllH!!R~S of any type, that may be asserted by 
any P~f~~jjjfm;~/!;~\ty ariiil#~iRmil)f!IiHW::9,w;mecHR~,with the performance of Contractor 
hef!;)tii1(i~f;b'ut:'tOlj:lie,exterltir~:CLuired b'yif<l,WIH'il'clliding liability due to the sole 

~"l;;';; ,I""" '.' ... , ." ...... 
neghMnce or willft\]ifui~condURtiRfAgency! Hf'there is a possible obligation to 
indetrt!}N\Y, Contractor;~iH4ty to[~I:¢If~ with legal counsel acceptable to Agency, exists 
regardre'sM!~fwhether it isiU!pmateiYi~~t,eITllined that there is not a duty to indemnify. 
This indenfulp,<;ation obligai~Q.n is not'llmited in any way by any limitation on the amount 
or type of d~M~f(~ or comp¢))~ation payable to or for Contractor or its agents. 

'1 1';ni' i;;;n 
6.iWJlltanc~!liWith respect to performance of work lIllder this Agreement, 

Contractor shall mainHl\»lilllCi shall require all of its subcontractors, consultants, and other 
agents to maintain, insill~ce as described below: 

6.1 Workers' Compensation Insurance. Workers' compensation 
insurance with statutory limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California. 
Said policy shall be endorsed with the following specific language: 

This policy shall not be cancelled or materially changed without first giving thirty 
(30) days' prior written notice to the Agency. 

62

http:and,agli!P.st


6.2 General Liability Insurance. Commercial general liability 
insurance covering bodily injury and property damage using an occurrence policy form, 
in an amOlmt no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) combined single limit for 
each occurrence. Said commercial general liability insurance policy shall either be 
endorsed with the following specific language or contain equivalent language in the 
policy: 

a. The Agency, its Board of Directors and staff, is named as 
additional insured for all liability arising out of the operations by or on 
behalf of the named insured in the perform@9:",ofthisAgreement. 

', .... ; " 

.d1!HnW 
b. The inclusion of more than 0It~Jln~m!id shall not operate to impair 
the rights of one insured against anC\~liWjin'sl\iiy,~? and the coverage 
~fforded shall a~ply a~ though ,~r~ffi'ate poli?iesl~W.?, been issued to each 
msured, but the mclUSlOn of rriotfl!than one msurei:l:shall not operate to 

increase the limits of the co,fuWilly's liability. 'qnl!',:',: .•.'.:.';'" 
'~Hm 

c. The insurance provid~'~l~b:J;f;in is Rnmary cover~~~ifQ:the Agency 
with respect to' or ~'~l~i,n,s!H!~ce programs m;JHtained by 
the Agency. '""l:",

:qlillllL 
d. 	 dt!ffiflterially changed without 

. notic~it'o;,the Agency. 

AutJ!JJggile ';:~bility insurance 
amount ~~ less than One Million 

occurrence. Said insurance shall 
vehicles. Said policy shall be 

CaJllp~:j1e:Q or materially changed without first giving thirty 
"n'iffpn n01ticE:iio. the Agency. 

Professional liability 
arising out of or in connection with this 

Agreement in _an~c~~;;;~illfQms!~;id than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single 
limit for each 0 policy shall be endorsed with the following specific 
language: 

This policy shall not be cancelled or materially changed without first giving thirty 
(30) days prior written notice to the Agency. 

6.5 Documentation. The following documentation shall be 
submitted to the Agency: 

63

http:1,000,000.00


a. Properly executed Certificates of Insurance clearly evidencing all 
coverages, limits, and endorsements required above. Said Certificates 
shall be submitted prior to the execution of this Agreement. Contractor 
agrees to maintain current Certificates ofInsurance evidencing the above
required coverages, limits, and endorsements on file with the Agency for 
the duration of this Agreement. 

b. Signed copies of the specified endorsements for each policy. Said 
endorsement copies shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of execution 
of this Agreement..::!!!, 

"d!!!!W:" 
c. Upon Agency's written reques,tj!ilWtifIed copies of the insurance 
policies. Said policy copies shall btti~HbfuWl~~i~thin thirty (30) days of 
Agency's request. ',' 

.''iiiliIIHli 
6.6 !:Q!!l£DdQ!!llilli! Contnlct()r's mdemru.W,ill1d other 

obligations shall not be limited by the insurance requirem~tit~li.
in 1 

6.7 Material Breach. If'i¥~r any reason:;t~s to 
maintain insurance coverage whiclhs'reguired this Agreement, the same shall 
be deemed a material breach of this:~gtee~ynt. its sole option, may 
terminate tius Agreement and obtaii(aamages~fr!lm , resulting from said 
breach. Altemativelyp:~gep:cy may p~1Wase suc1(iT~rj!Iired : ,'- coverage, and 
without further n9,~jR~~/ji(tjq!hfHctor, A~~W,9y n:W:~i~6\1~~~flt,9m due to Contractor 
any premium CO$t~!~dvanced'9'y,i.f\.gency fOJ!~@1Hnsurano~liiTIlese remedies shall be in 
addition to any otli~~lt!imedies%!ailable to 'Ag~ncy. ., 

'nll" Of"; \""
'ljl il, ·'ni! ;::ii, 

"iH!!i!!!!liii~liiP'ros~i!llt!~~i~f!Wdtk,!!iit;pe ~~~Alttion of this Agreement shall constitute 
COf\@fJlof's'aiithqR\W,to pro:4~nP immeai~~~tx,»,ith the performance oftius Agreement. 
PeH(~llilance ofthe'S\;Ifujr,es h~rMlt!1der shall'b\;!tompleted witinn the time required 
hereir\\lpr,<?vided, howev~r,:,that iNh~tperformance is delayed by earthquake, flood, high 
water, on'dther Act of Goii!or, by strike}Jockout, or similar labor disturbances, the time for 

'tlliii !i<;" ,t,w
Contractor'siPtJrformance of~his Agreeii1ent shall be extended by a number of days equal 

''fll!, !"':i
to the numberl{jli;days ContriiCtor has been delayed. 

': :l1it! !! 1n~ 

8. 'i~WttaorlltW:bged Work. Extra or changed work or otiler changes to 
tile Agreement may be!~\\#Jbrized only by written amendment to this Agreement, signed 
by both parties. Minor changes which do not increase or decrease the amount paid under 
the Agreement, and winch do not significantly change the scope of work or significantly 
lengtllen time schedules may be executed by the Agency's Executive Director in a form 
approved by Agency Counsel. All other extm or changed work must be autilorized in 
writing by the Agency Board of Directors. 

9. Representations of Contractor. 

64



9.1 Standard of Care. Agency has relied upon the professional 
ability and training of Contractor as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. 
Contractor hereby agrees that all its work will be performed and that its operations shall 
be conducted in accordance with generally accepted and applicable professional practices 
and standards as well as the requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws, it 
being understood that acceptance of Contractor's work by Agency shall not operate as a 
waiver or release. 

9.1.1 Change in Information. Contractor shall notify Agency thirty 
(30) days prior to any change to the information providedp#tftpant to Section 10 of 
Exhibit A, Proposed Scope of Services, that is initiated .l?y,I~'6'ntractor, or within seven (7) 
days of Contractor becoming aware of a change to th~illii~bnation provided pursuant to 
Section 10 of Exhibit A that was not initiated by Cq~~MWmlih 

,. \i'" <;ilHL 
,d~nj; '~nnil 

9.2 Status ofContractojllHThe parties intenf:!l1!:lat Contractor, in 
performing the services specified herein, ~~Ujli~ct as an independert~:4pptractor and shall 
control the work and the marmer in which if,~h?erformed. ContractciH~lnRt to be 
considered an agent or employee of Agency atiClijs,pot t;nt!~led to particip~t~iin any 
pension plan, worker's compens?,tipn plan, insudmq~, !B~\}li~, or similar belfb'fjts provided 
to Agency staff. In the event A~J»~yi ~rrf:!rcises its ffg1mtp terminate this Agreement 

'.n, ''i'''''', ~"l'".
pursuant to Article 4, above, Cont\;~9~dr!e~m;r,ssly agre'e~itp!lt It shall have no recourse or 
right of appeal under rules, regulatio#s;. ordihhliq~s, or laVi:M~pplicable to employees. 

di1WWlih). '!!!lk, ·qlHlll!lHll~. "l!1jIlI!h 
,ilillH9iBnmaxes. Contt~Rlor aml~e:S'toHmt:.federal and state tax returns 

and pay all appli~~lH~taxes6n:!~ounts p't)ii;1,p:\1tMtlant td;tlli'~:Agreement and shall be 
solely liable and ig!;'P,6,l;\sible toip~y such t<&~~i1lnd other obligations, including, but not 
limited to, state and f~'~~R~ irlR~mH!ftl1d FICA.!fl!ftes. Contractor agrees to indemnify and 
hold A,g\1M5lj];jW;mless from:WlWlllilliil'tiYt,~hich'~iirrray incur to the United States or to the 
Sta\\1Wi1GMllfb'Hli~I~~.,a cor1'~~g~~nce ~fBbf1it:\\yt6~"s failure to pay, when due, all such 
taXe~i~~d obligatioii~·.!!nn, case'~~,rpcy is miHi'td:1 for compliance regarding any 
withlW\tIing or other a'pi\iic,?lblei~~~. Contractor agrees to furnish Agency with proof of 

,.~"" <1n,' ,,,;fl. 

paymentiqf:t.axes on thesei~¥.nings:'iHJ::, 
t\i!m~:. iii,.,!,'!,,!; 'n,' 

'i P!!' ."
"'ii!!" 9.4 Rec'0rds Maintenance. Contractor shall keep and maintain full 

and complete ddij\'lm~ntati9RH#\d accounting records concerning all services performed 
that are compensabl'~iYAC\~mp\s Agreement, as well as information provided pursuant to 
Section 10 of Exhibit'Ali!,?illposed Scope of Services, and shall make sllch docUl11ents and 
records available to Agency for inspection at any reasonable time. Contractor shall 
maintain such records for a period offour (4) years following completion of work 
hereunder. 

9.5 Conflict of Interest. Contractor covenants that it presently has 
no interest and that it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a 
financial conflict of interest under state law or that would otherwise conflict in any 
manner or degree with the performance of its services hereunder. Contractor further 
covenants that in the perfomlance of this Agreement no person having any sllch interests 

65



shall be employed by Contractor. In addition, if requested to do so by Agency, 
Contractor shall complete and file and shall require any other person doing work under 
Contractor and this Agreement to complete and file a "Statement of Economic Interest" 
with Agency disclosing Contractor's or such other person's financial interests. 

9.6 Nondiscrimination. Contractor shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations in regard to 
nondiscrimination in employment because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, 
religion, sex, marital status, age, medical condition, pregnancy, disability, sexual 
orientation or other prohibited basis. All nondiscrimination!itlles or regulations required 
by law to be included in this Agreement are incorporatelii~J~Min by this reference . 

.i!jlilllil!;:
9.7 AIDS Discrimination. ¢,qn1fadQlli\\grees to comply with the 

provisions of Chapter 19, Article II, oftlle SOl\\1IDf: 'County CO:~~prohibiting 
discrimination in housing, employment, and~~wrces because o'f1X);I)S or HN infection 
during the term of this Agreement and any,!W¥~~sions of the term:"!!!h" 

,. <' H,
'nUh -'i
·'nm. . '!ink 

- 9.8 Assignment OfRlgHt~"Contr~q~pr assigns t8!~gency all 
rights throughout the world in PtfHP,~\Uity in the ntltl»;Y,(~~~gpyright, traden{llJ.~J patent, 
right to ideas, in and to all versidll~i~n;lJ;l,e plans andi~~¥¢rfications, if any, now or later 

""\ '1''':'1. .,.1,,_
prepared by Contractor in connectip!i\5viil1itlJ..i,s AgreementL. Contractor agrees to take 

'~ ... , "",1.., ..... .. 
such actions as are necessary to Protii9~,the 'hgjiltl,flssignecl!tpj:4\.gency in this Agreement, 

1•. _" ,JL.,.," ! .. ". 

and to refrain from t<H~gl\\l1Y action ~~¥,~h wcillil1l~air thb~iii\ights. Contractor's 
responsibilities lll!li~Hjtiilll:P,hl,yision indli~~, bvt~~iiiIH!!j.mite(ff8, placing proper notice 
of copyright on a)RW,firsions 'd~me plans ~~!~p~llificatioH~I~$'Agency may direct, and 
refraining from dl~c~9Ring any~~bions ofth'~plans and specifications to any third party 
without first obtainiriglw.),tten!ii~b~!,ion oiA.g~ncy. Contractor shall not use or permit 
anoth~~:!RmM~lfueplans'tllt~I~J1~1!ifil\~nPlJllin ~dHh(;!ction with this or any other project 

Wi~~r:f::! fu~i 'dBi~l»ilfm I:itt~«In~~iSslgW !}W!~f;~W~y. 
'jill:', 9l9,lhOwnetsmp And Disclosure Of Work Product. All reports, 

originalia~myings, grapl.Jb~lw,lans,hlt4f!ies, and other data or documents ("docunlents"), 
in whateve'vif6pn or formafJ!¢l~embled'6r prepared by Contractor or Contractor's 
subcontractoi!i,1 i~;9,l,1sultants, !#).~ other agents in connection with this Agreement shall be 
the property of Ag~n(;y. Ag~r~y shall be entitled to immediate possession of such 
docunlents upon cdthtll!;;tiRA;6'f the work pursuant to this Agreement. Upon expiration or 
termination oftllis Ag¥~~m~nt, Contractor shall promptly deliver to Agency all such 
documents which have ~~t already been provided to Agency in such form or format as 
Agency deems appropriate. Such documents shall be and will remain the property of 
Agency without restriction or limitation. Contractor may retain copies of the above 
described documents but agrees not to disclose or discuss any information gatllered, 
discovered, or generated in any way through this Agreement Witll0ut the express written 
permission of Agency. 

10. Demand for Assurance. Each party to this Agreement undertakes the 
obligation that tlle other's expectation of receiving due performance will not be impaired. 

66



When reasonable grounds for insecurity arise with respect to the perfonnance of either 
party, the other may in writing demand adequate assurance of due perfonnance and until 
such assurance is received may, if commercially reasonable, suspend any perfonnance 
for which the agreed return has not been received. "Commercially reasonable" includes 
not only the conduct of a party with respect to perfonnance under this Agreement, but 
also conduct with respect to other agreements with parties to this Agreement or others. 
After receipt of a justified demand, failure to provide within a reasonable time, but not 
exceeding thirty (30) days, such assurance of due perfonnance as is adequate under the 
circumstances of the particular case is a repudiation of this Agreement. Acceptance of 
any improper delivery, service, or payment does not prejui!!;¢~lthe aggrieved party's right 
to demand adequate assurance of future perfonnance. t{pj:));i'iig in this Article 1 0 limits 
Agency's right to terminate this Agreement pursuanHbi*Ht:icle 4, 

'!11IJ!!!l1't 11 Il!!;;" 
II. Assignment and Delegation,lit{eilher pariY:t\ltl[eto shall assign, 

delegate, sublet, or transfer any interest in o!!i~«HH.\l1der this A~b:~p;\ent without the prior 
written consent of the other, and no such t~~rb'r shall be of any f6jiC'~:pr effect 
whatsoever unless and until the other party'~]jiau have so consented. 'liii!iiih 

'i1Hi:;tL. .dl~llll; ':~!iHh, 
12. Method and J?Jace of Giving NiitictiHSlibmitting Bills ariiliMaking 

Payments. All notices, bills, an(jlll~:\lfu!lnts shall be'ii)~a~ in writing and shali be given by 
personal delivery or by U.S. Mail '~iifblli1l~{I~ervice. N~~!fi7s, bills, and payments shall 
be addressed as follows: 'qi;,! ·"inil!!:li. "'!i!!:,,, 

.!lnllllil", '\\Hi, "\jjliHll],. _ "lqj\jl, 
Agencx!li@o!l.l?!Aq. County V{a~te IvJii!l~gem.ep.t Agency 

n!lll!p'Attent1i9~1lLisa ste1#mm}1!IW' "lj!HI!tU1 
';:::::,:;1300 Cd@ty Center'Elffive, Suite IOOB 

"iq~~ma ~RM~,s:;t'- 95,40,3%" 

,.:iii! Ii ii! in Hil" Pl\l?!;t;"if!liW07):~RRr,~6~2 'jill:.

"ll"''''''' '"'''',''' FA "H.',l,,',!i(707) 565L3,'710,1 ';:ill;,',l!IIIIIlPP""'",,'" fi.A:. ,',t; :-.;{~.,-. ','

"::~ ; ';;1 Ili!!ll' "11lllhjL '''(jjHWi 
'qil!i{;;?nsultant:GI?;9j~wilJ"It\RH~tries of the Redwood Empire 

'il '" Attention: MilTJ.;t.Ibde 
'iHill: 651'1(1~landa AY~hue

i:!n!!, SandlR6sa, CA 95404 

.':,,',. PhondHi(707) 523-0550 


"QlliRHtl1HiBi'(707) 523-0552 

""WH!ji' 

'lHHP' 

When a notice, bill or pclyment is given by a generally recognized overnight courier 
service, the notice, bill or payment shall be deemed received on the next business day. 
When a copy of a notice, bill or payment is sent by facsimile, the notice bill or payment 
shall be deemed received upon transmission as long as (I) the original copy of the notice, 
bill or payment is promptly deposited in the U.S. mail, (2) the sender has a written 
continnation of the facsimile transmission, and (3) the facsimile is transmitted before 5 
p.m. (recipient's time). In all other instances, notices, bills and payments shall be 
effective upon receipt by the recipient. Changes may be made in the names and 

67

mailto:Agencx!li@o!l.l?!Aq


addresses of the person to whom notices are to be given by giving notice pursuant to this 
paragraph. 

13. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

13.1 No Waiver of Breach. The waiver by Agency of any breach 
of any tenn or promise contained in this Agreement shaH not be deemed to be a waiver of 
such tenn or provision or any subsequent breach of the same or any other tenn or promise 
contained in this Agreement. 

13.2 Construction. To the fulle~~i~~Mkt allowed by law, the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be construed and gi,il~1ti~ffect in a manner that avoids 
any violation of statute, ordinance, regulation, or 1~*l-l!Ilfjl~ifl!mies covenant and agree 
that in the event that any provision of this Agr(!f)inf)tlt is heldl1:jYif\,court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforce~BWj!ihe remaindet6~!he provisions hereof 
shall remain in full force and effect and sI1~Ulij{no way be affected;l!impaired, or 
invalidated thereby. Contractor and Agencyi:~fll~owledge that they lll<ly,¢L~ach 
contributed to the making of this Agreement atitlj:t;\:\at, inem~i"vent of a cllSR4te over the 
interpretation of this Agreement,;~l:\~ language oft«~jj~gt~~lhent will not b~il!6nstrued 
against one party in favor ofthe'g»~~~.IH~,?ntractor rlH~i1N-gency acknowledge'timt they 
have each lmd an adequate opportumtyiqi~qH~ult with'C8!m~el in the negotiation and 
preparation of this Agreement. ell[! '''q!ii: ''!ilil", 

this Agreement df:!fqr the thereof shall be brought and tried in the forum nearest to 
the city of Santa Rd':l~hiIl:'

'l,,"H" 
of Sonoma. 

I'j:~ Captions. The captions in this Agreement are solely for 
convenience of reference. They are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect 
on its construction or interpretation. 

13.7 Merger. This writing is intended both as the final expression 
ofthe Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the included tenns and as a 
complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the Agreement, pursuant to Code of 
Civil Procedure Section 1856. No modification ofthis Agreement shall be effective 
lmless and lmtil such modification is evidenced by a writing signed by both parties. 

'!rnr, 

~w;~elnejit the consent or approval 
of one party is i\\l)!)!Jent or approval shall not be 
unreasonably 

~lI!ill<llil~~!kii$\W.@!:~. Nothing contained in this 
do not intend to create any rights 

'qnif~,
"H!!", 1 This Agreement shall be 

construed aD:CI,wterpreted substantive law of California, regardless of 
the law of c~H&\\%~to the rei'i!j.,,,,, in any jurisdiction. Any action to enforce the tenns of 

68



13.8 Time of Essence. Time is and shall be of the essence of this 
Agreement and every provision hereof. 

69



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of 
the Effective Date. 

AGENCY: 	 SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT 
AGENCY 

By: -----,-------::-c--,----
Christa J olmson, Chair 

CONTRACTOR: 

Hl 

Iii 

70



Exhibit "A" 

Proposed Scope of Services 


Goodwillll/dustries oftlte Redwood Empire (GlRE) sit all provide all e-waste collectioll 
services required for the operatioll ofsuccessfill Electrollic Waste Collectioll Events for 
the Sonoma Counly Waste Mallagement Agel/cy (SCWMA). Services shall illclude all 
staffil/g, I/ecessary packagil/g materials, trallsportatiol/ al/d equipmel/t. Collection, 
pr.ocessillg, tral/sportation and Iwndlil/g ofall e-.waste I~lftmf,ials shall be COl/sistellt 
lVltlt all local, state andfederallalVs alld regulatlOlls. A''''events shall be staffed alld 
supervised by well-trained and experiellced employ,e,iiJ!I!lili

'Q1l!PP' 1f;,Pill, 

COLLECTIO~I~~RVICES'!qilliiii',
!lIlli/::, 	 i~;iinlh\ 

Goodwill shall host Electronic Waste colle2tidhiEvents for,e-waste de'WSes (CEW and 
UWED) as well as clothing and household itelri~!!tbr. Soriilli!k County res'iHgrtts during 

,!" 'Fin, "HOi!;;' 	 'ill"; 
monthly as well as other specia1ie,Y,e.JJ,t~ agreed updtilWm~SCWMA. MonthlY'countywide 
events will be properly supervisehl!:;\Wdi~t1/ff,ed with e\!.p;4tienced GIRE employees and 
supported by the GIRE TransportaH~h ffii\:ll'Q,perations i~furli,Each event shall have a 
mutually agreed upon predetermined!$b:~ ~dH~lirs,of ex~(lli~o,l). to guarantee appropriate 

inclusion of all are~ri;9:«mM!fj~unty. G~ empiRM~~~;~R~1 P'e~n?rm the collection, 
palletizing, proCt;s~mg'ani:l'tT!m~portatioil!R(t11\l:e.iW~ste:ml\\~,rials at all events. 
Goodwill's metl11J~~,\lf collect~qt, transpo'f!UHpp;'and pr02~~'sing services shall be 
consistent with all ib~hl" state aHa Federall~W~ ,and regulations. 

'.·D':'.·eUt' an \11.'0'if''.' 'i'o!!'e"c\!tiJi,o'lin'".S':e;'rv;l! :J!ciielIsJl!' "1'::;!i 
ll! \U 1tinlHiH: 'iBli 

:l! nw' "'Q1H1Ill!liL 'il!!!llh, 'ilnljWi 
'" a) A preS's!r~l~aseS1\ii\\.be developed and submitted to all appropriate media 
Hi;, markets ':i\Y,~'u,t the t#it'oming e-waste event. Information about the 
" iiilb. SCWMA ~~ihHRE tg~itboration, event dates and otller pertinent 

"qiit:\formation sAWI be included in the press release. 
b) ''G~ ~ana&~~~!shall assess ~ll proposed sites in advance of the event and 

detei1mlf1eU!~i]Jest configuratIOn for event set-up. 
c) 	 The GIgJl1~~iUn shall arrive prior to tlle advertised start time for the event 

and sets'%J'A-frames, banners and all otller e-waste event identification 
materials. 

d) 	 Safety cones shall be set-up to direct tlle flow of traffic though the site to 
maintain a safe and well-paced event. 

e) 	 Pallets and containers for all e-waste, CEW and UWED, as well as 
containers for clothing and household items shall be strategically staged to 
maximize efficiencies during the event. 

f) 	 Materials shall be palletized and wrapped on-site and removed to a 
waiting truck as they fill during the event. 

71

http:preS's!r~l~aseS1\ii\\.be


g) 	 A canopied area with tables and chairs shall be provided for the comfort 
and ease of the donors, 

h) 	 GIRE Customer Service personnel shall be on hand in the canopied area to 
provide information and written materials about SCWMA and Goodwill. 
A tax-deductible donation receipt shall be prepared and given to each 
donor. 

i) At the close of an event, GIRE staff shall pick-up the entire area and shall 
ensure that the site envirornnent is left clean and in proper order. 

j) A press release shall be prepared and submitted to the appropriate media 
markets announcing the success of the eventianc:ilisting the next scheduled 

event. 	 ,dlill'llii,r,r,:!P' 
"1''' L 

•••• <> • Ii ll1 i 
1. 	 Event Details ,,' ",' ',,',,: '",'":",, ',,!,'!!i' ,,,"',, '1111!! 1,

td!!Il!P! 'hi,j;, 
Event start time shall be 8 hours!))Jjilimgth running from"S;!PQ am until 4:00 pm

."",. 	 oj,''''
on a proposed Friday and SaturiliiYlqr Saturday and Sunday;!rQ"allow for 
maximum participation of commulY#hl!memb,e~$b!;unIess othe'fWl~~mutually 
agreed upon by AgeIC\TI~lf!D~ ~ontraci6tlili!i!iim!il' "ifill, 

2. 	 It.~ C',::;;:"!'i::::::""iii!!!iiiiiii iii,',',' Iiilll!iii II1Ii' 
Go~d~jHi~dli~ff~,shali pro1,ifie ~?'!I~Rtibi)jqt!i1~wasle (CEW andyWED . 
devlCeljJb,'61othmg;i)Jj)pks, shoe$l!tQ;yliiihouse Wat~s, and any other Items which 
it wo~Iti!*Rept in it~!Attended D~IJ~i:ion Centers' or Retail Stores. 

·',;in· ilj'" .

'lnn,. ,tHi i::,~, 


.···F···· , nnil, li!H ''''''n" 

1~1i!i~!~Ymu»~fffi~~~~«ili! in,," lin,! ,I; iilli Ill:'! ,,!. 

\, GIRE shan'H~!icharg(!!S~WMA to provide the e-waste events under this 
'i!i!iR~ntract. Indi\\\~~\lls briHw!5 items to these events shall be able to do so free

"o~i\Warge. Indivlt!!lflls shal1'be able to obtain tax donation receipts for non
reimbursable items!; 

"l!l!lfh .:I!!!P 
GIRE ~w~lIWYI~~\vMA a fixed rate per pound for the CRTs collected during 

••... " •• ,!

these events\!~IRE shall pay SCWMA fifteen cents ($0.15) per pound, Shall 
the state reimbursement rates change, resulting in a reduction in the 
reimbursement that GIRE receives from GIRE's recycler, a revised rate shall 
be mutually agreed upon by GIRE and SCWMA. 

72



4. Event Locations 

GlRE shall make available all of its Training Center Store and Attended 
Donation Centers CADCs) as e-waste event locations to the SCWMA. These 
sites shall be available without prior approval from other partners. 

Additional event locations, not included in the table below, shall be mutually 
agreed upon by SCWMA and GlRE. 

The sites where Goodwill has daily operations, or where '~!~'h,;"!:-"~ standing arrangements 
to hold drives are listed below: 

73

JDSU 



Oalanont ADC 650 J Oakmont Drive, Oakmont 

.N(lrthCounty Regi(ln. ". . 
. 

Cloverdale Training Center Store 792 Cloverdale Blvd., Cloverdale 
Healdsburg Training Center Store 513 Healdsburg A venue, Healdsburg 
Windsor ADC 9040 Brooks Road, Windsor 

74

5. Final DestinationlMarket for Collected Item~lii!:. 

CRT Devices: 

All non-working CRTi~~iYices shalL.be palJetiiga\\!'ihrink wrapped 
and staged indoors for sHip!Ilen!iCiiaHiapproved ce¥Hlied recycler. 
Working !.<ilR;r~ shall be r~~'9;I~J!~p~eused on a limlfglI basis and 
where appt,RPf!;~~~Jless thalii!\j{v,o percent of the total weight 

collected)·::II!I::": iiiH! IllHi ii! .'ill iillll! 

CPU DP.... \i!h. ·""!!i:,·. ,. i" 


rl:;;~fHR~~l:f I,,;;, :;n~!lil!llh. ',;:1

;,n\ pi ''''':iJlLL ·q~1;. ,d!IHHF "i;~:~., ... 
'T!!, All CPtUidevices shiiiHb~Hiorted arilns~nt to GIRE's recycler where 
"'!! Ihfuey are :~~-manufacitiJ!Jd on-site at the recycler's location . 

.. [ ::'Q~:~i!Mm\tiH~.recyt1~*hshall recycle the CPU components and 
lin nnil:" theHlhl:illdidri,ie's:s'liiIllbe slfre"dded. 

"":'ii"·A d¥Hb.cate oiD'b'~iliucti6V; shall be issued and shall be provided 
'f);q~, qHp. 'Hii": 
''iiUimn recj4~~tfor everY'liard drive. 

"',;, {qlllh-. 'illUiltL 
"iiilil!I!i~ousehold'~1~ffis (inC1~p,jng house wares and small electronics) 

"·.!ii;,. All h9,U~ehold items collected at the events shall be containerized 
'lnH,.and:~I#pped from GIRE's warehouse to one of GIRE's retail 

"nlibdiibhs. The items shall then be sold in one of GIRE's stores. 
'D~H~tions which are not suitable for sale shall be recycled 
whenever possible. 

Clothing Items 

All clothing items collected at the events are containerized and 
shipped to one of GIRE's retail locations for sale. The items shall 
then be sold in one of GIRE' s stores. All unsold clothing is baled 
and recycled. 

http:shalL.be


Any items collected that are not sold in GIRE's retail stores shall be sold in 
GIRE's Outlet Center. Any items not sold in GIRE's Outlet Center shall be sold 
in bulk to salvage buyers or recycled. Items not salvageable, recyclable, reusable, 
or characteristically hazardous, shall be put into GIRE's trash compactor and sent 
to the landfill. 

GIRE shall not allow any characteristically hazardous material accepted to be sent 
to solid waste (non-hazardous waste) landfills or incinerators for disposal or 
energy recovery, either directly or through intermediaries. 

,!ill!!l 
6. Advertising, Marketing, and Public Outr~~~UlS'~pport provided by GIRE 

for Events: ·"lHll1' 

'!i II ilill ili11111111' 
GIRE shall create and distribute pr~~~p;rr~'ases anii.(i~lAcing the event and shall 
create a follow-up press release mmpjillcing the succ'i:'~~:qf the event and 
detailing such information as numlY~r of pounds collecH!tjilmd diverted from 
landfill.'iii!!i, ""1' 

'j Hi ~l, 
":" t, ,;iHh. 

GIRE shall provide b,aJ).Il,ers and A-fr~~slt~Mld~yofthe event'rl!llibuncing the 
E-waste Drive and sH~li!Histribute both "&iWHwiIl and SCWMA m~keting

tHli'lHr;i::. 'Piih 

materials to all donors.'i~1lf0rilj~~iRn about tl\.~l~r,waste events and SCWMA 
shall be made ~vailable illlNJile p"(i1:iI!Rlin,~IRE;s'~~lnil training center stores, 
attended c\cmauon centers ill1Ciother lO¢il.tions throngnout the county. GIRE

_,,,,,,,,,1;<\, no<, d(llq"ll. """, 

shall cqg~~)r'c]B$~ly withSeW,\vfAJft!~yeiiY:~tHP to establish and organize 
""':l. · ... l.ll '".. .,., .. ,,' ,I ... ,,,, 

event~I~~t best m~~Mhe needii:~f:~}~iehtire C'6TIjjji.unity in a timely and 
efficieiitiW'l-Y. GIRIii~\1all provicf~l[ti!e following for each event: 

:illliiiil~ili~2~r~~!!1ii~f '" ,11 moo;, eod", ill S,mm, 

liH, c, Fly~t~i~bag '§'&1ff"rs in GIRE's Retail Stores. 
"'lIIIL d. FIyers'&lbag stUffJ\is,at GlRE's Attended Donation Centers 

'''.n,,!:,'' ..'',' Utilizati6~'ofinterrlYi & external newsletter 
t"", . nil! 
'l~i\\'lEmml blariM,o shoppers & donors 

fi~[~;:~!Mtt:~h boards 

i. Tn"I"tRliWiih E-waste graphics 
." 

7. Support Agency Shall Provide 

Agency shall provide the following support to GIRE to hold the events: 

a. Provide signed Proof of Designation fonn. 

b. Provide promotional support including: 

75



Notify all appropriate public agencies (police, fire, etc.). 

Arrange for a flier to be placed in a citywide mailer for each event (i.e. 
utility bill) or a local newspaper advertisement or radio ad if mailers 
are unavailable. 

c. 	 Promote event on Agency website. 

d. 	 E-mail event announcements to Chamber of Commerce and other 
community organizations. ",ii!:.

,dnlllI PP ' 
e. 	 Agency shall provide at least thr~~i'~«wy,eks notice prior to event 

unless Agency subscribes to an@/ilia(e~~m calendar, or any modified 
version of an annual event ci})~R-dar agreeclit6::after proposal is 
accepted. limp:' <';;lillj!~,

in 	 tp' "fH '" 
\ "'qinl 
" .;:: 

:Hi! ~, 

76



RESOLUTION NO.: 

DATED: June 16, 2010 

RESOLUTION OF THE SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY ("AGENCY") 

AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF THE REDWOOD 


EMPIRE ("CONTRACTOR") FOR ELECTRONIC WASTE (E-WASTE) .COLLECTION EVENT 

SERVICES. 


WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is duly qualified and experienced in 
Electronic Waste ("E-Waste") Collection Event Services; and 

WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Directors of Agency, it is 
necessary and desirable to employ the services of Contractor to hold E-Waste Collection 
Events. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Sonoma County Waste 
Management Agency hereby authorizes the Agency, Chairman of the Board to execute 
a two-year Agreement with Goodwill Industries of the Redwood Empire for E-Waste 
Collection Event Services. 

MEMBERS: 

Cloverdale Cotati County Healdsburg Petaluma 

Rohnert Park Santa Rosa Sebastopol Sonoma Windsor 

AYES NOES ABSENT ABSTAIN 
SO ORDERED 

The within instrument is a correct copy 
of the original on file with this office. 

ATIEST: DATE: 

Elizabeth Koetke 
Clerk of the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 
Agency of the State of Califomia in and for the 
County of Sonoma 

77



AGREEMENT FOR ELECTRONIC WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR 

SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY 


This agreement ("Agreement"), dated as of ,2010 ("Effective Date") 
is by and between the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency, (hereinafter 
"Agency"), and ECS Refining (hereinafter "Contractor"). 

WHEREAS, Agency desires the services of a "bacl,Htlp" Contractor to hold 
Electronic Waste ("E-Waste") Collection Events; anddiiiilW; 

dl!IH!lBh, 
WHEREAS, "back-up" Contractor shall onINl)J'e'ii'i1!1~~d in the event that the 

"primary" Contractor is unable to provide the t:t{W~Mte recycljHk~ervices required by its 

contract with the Agency; and::!!ii;::;' ·;'lIlliillli:. 
WHEREAS, "back-up" Contractor 'sll~JLnot be gu¥anteed an'Y!i@ount of work; 

'Hlp; ,,,,~ -Hit!,.
and 

WHEREAS, Contractorr@~&'~~l1ts that 'i~'i;IUthlll~~:alified and eX;~;i~;~ced in E-
Waste Collection Event Services aH~;&I:1ltedservices; 'iiIiil" 

~qllh, qqnUilHh, ;ql!llll;, 
WHEREAS",ltl!ID!,;judgment bfitf\e Bo'at~iq~J?irect6'i~!9,fAgency, it is necessary

..... " .• .1 ... , ",", , ......... ! '1..-., 


and desirable to emi?1:<?'Y~H~i~~}"Vices ofCflptras\~@6'n:~~q,~-Wliste Collection Events. 
li,H"; 

'fnHt. TiiL 'Hmn~jp' 'in)' 
NOW, TfIE::~FORE, ii\iconsiderai:\9'~'ofthe foregoing recitals and the mutual 

covenants contained 'H~f~jl1' tl),e'p'a};\it;!s heret6iW&ee as follows: 

,,"":,ij'i':"""ii!!!:nin 
,, n1'A"':G i,i"on,"', '.',E" .M"!I1!: iRi i':"'N T 

!HH,,!J' '"··";,qlli,!",l,i,~l""", 'Hql: ,-D E,;,l.',~"';l1.,,;p' ,',," ---It""""i""")7""--" t,l,,;, .,,':;, . ,lilt,?
:n'" 'qUijl "j\1;;L, '" 

'iiJiJ:;;, L Sco\!>'eibf seniiHes. Upon receiving Agency issued Notice to Proceed, 
':-',.. "'r'-', .... ,t. 

Contraa~t!Rl;all provide ii1!1}:yaste dill~Rtion services needed for the operation of 
successfu!'fr~R,f:I1d conveni~nhElectroiiic Waste Collection Events for residents of 
Sonoma Couii.t)\\h,?,ervices sltfln. include all staffing, necessary packaging, materials, 
transportation, iiIi~:¢Huipm~lltl!' The Contractor shall act as collector, handler, and 
recycler of the enti'tgiEhWiM~W'stream collected. The Contractor shall provide all labor, 
transportation, and m!lll~M~:any state required reporting. The Contractor shall facilitate 
the disposal of any unsoilcited or abandoned material that comes to the collection event 
site in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and shall provide written 
documentation in the form of a Receiving Acknowledgment of pounds collected by type 
(SB20 Material, CPUs, and Brealmge) and proceeds derived from the collection events. 
The Contractor shall provide complete clean up services (collect all signage from site and 
surrounding area, clean and sweep up) upon completion before leaving. The Contractor 
shall perform all collection, transportation, and processing services consistent with all 
local, state, and federal laws and regulations. 

78



The Sonoma County Waste Management Agency (SCWMA) implements the following 
criteria as due diligence to increase the oversight of electronics recycling and to assure 
legal, safe and beneficial recycling occurs with Sonoma County's electronic waste. 

a. 	 Contractor must be 1) an Approved Recycler with the State of 
California Integrated Waste Management Board (CIWMB) and 
maintain this designation throughout the term of the contract or 2) 
registered with the CIWMB as an authorized E-waste Collector 
and partner with an Approved Recycler with the State of CIWMB 
and both the Collector and the AppH/lfep Recycler must maintain 
this designation throughout the te;r.A!9f'the contract. Loss of 
Approved Recycler and Collepi~n!a:¢:&ignation shall be considered a 

t' ,"1t ri 'll' 'iLbreach of the contract ,,'if'P' 'liii!i, . itt!l: '\ll!!h" 
,d!nh '~nHh 

b. 	 The Contractor shall ~Qfupry with all Fedt@I;,State, and/or Local 
Regulations. ilmiW i	 ;lln!!!jiit> 

"Hili· 

c. 	 The Contractor shall ndtUrtiJ.ow any !&1J~racteristicail{Hlwzardous 
material 49,9,ypted to be s~iillH?ifldi~di{yaste (non-hazat~9us waste) 
landfills dii!W~ijwrf!tors for ciispb§~l or energy recovery, either 
directly or t1itR~'~b!imiermediari~~li!L 

'lIi 'qpm 'l!iiii. 

d. !Ihei,<;::ontracto~ilho as~illUlb~a~,all m'it(6~i!\ls that test as 
ii Ii ldi:i&«R~\1~'istic hai~j:<;\ous ,w:ll1I~ ili#(!f!f, ,CaHf6rnia Law remain within 

:: "i;,~"i: the Uiiit~fl., States Uiil)M«~!Waste H~S'i~een processed to the point at 
!:Which it'~~p be consi'd)!:~~d a commodity ready for use in a new 
!!ph!!:luct.djwlWi,requirell'i~n.t applies to all characteristic materials, 

'illl!,i:::! ilb, iriHIH~~~1tbdM~:Wh~1.ex~~~~ions, such as circuit boards, 
"1;H11n, ':~;,!j". "':lj;;;il"" ;" 
'~!iHrnR ensli¥6! ro.tegrality' '8tHIle entire recycling chain, including 

Ij!;, 'd\?:{wtstredHi!lntermediaries and recovery operations such as 
!d!l!. srrig,r,~rs, th~!q~lltractor shall not utilize a company that is not in 

'!iillli!!; comp;~~~~ compfiimce with all applicable National, Regional and/or 
!, LocalWA'vironmental and health and safety regulations. 

;jilj!!, ,"" 
lOP" .,HUH 
'ill.l! iFodIldlitractor and each of the proposed subcontractors, include 

." H~~~6~'of all notices of violations, administrative orders, or other 
eriforcement actions taken by any regulatory agencies during the 
past three years and within 30 days of any new violation during the 
ternl of this Agreement for Contractor and each of the proposed 
subcontractors. Also, provide copies of any letters of 
recommendation or other awards of recognition. 

g. 	 Contractor shall make all of its facilities and related documentation 
available to the SCWMA for onsite and paper audits by SCWMA 
or designated 3rd party auditor. Additionally, Contractor must 

79

http:ndtUrtiJ.ow


arrange for all contractors/vendors involved in the downstream 
recycling process, regardless oflocation, to make their facilities 
and documentation available for onsite and paper audits by 
SCWMA or designated 3rd party auditor. 

h. 	 Contractor shall provide a downstream chain-of-custody-and
disposition report of all waste collected within ninety (90) days of 
the collection event. The downstream report shall include both 
hazardous and non-hazardous components, including but limited 
to, Identity ofvendor(s) who purch!l~~tfinal recovered materials, 
and a description of each materiq!f~!1iilihl reuse or disposition by 
volume and composition. ,!iiii!!!!i: 

~ 11111 i!jjlllll!11 !!1~ 
1. 	 Contractor shall provided~gency staffWiih,a list of Contractor's 

"Down-Stream Vend,?~MWiIdentified by ~\'~~~lijal processed, and 
shall provide writte.Qiii(jtification to Agency'ofl\m.y change to the 
list. Contractor shali'~~qy;ide thirty (30) days ~bti9:e,to Agency of 
any change to the list tHHii!~,initia,te:cl!\Jy Contractdtmhd seven (7) 
days notic;\'\:qfany change'iiqt:jn~)lWt~d by Contracto{·UHi' 

.,.", ••• H <"'-", ••

':"",:,'" . ':J"","
:~lH:(Hnb;. "'lnlii, 

1.1 ContraCfbr"g\S'pecified serViCes. This Agreement is entered 
into for the purpose of establishing '!t!'4RptiHi.!iifop,p-Wastg!¢,ollection Event Services. 
Contractor shall perfom~w;eJVices as defined beHlWlll", '""" 

dnn~WlWh, ;nHl dnHli!~ h.
,U'!H'- "":;', 	 " ... ,'". 

ii'~lp Day'l:ifiEve!iCii'Hl!li'
"," '\imP"
'Hji 

• 	 Event start tiiH~i$R!llll;\~i~~wws in leHifflJ.running from 8:30 am until 4:30 pm on 
:?:ptRPp~~~Satuialj.,Xlmtp'S1ill(U1Yl,tq allH0:for maximum participation of 
""'''!H(''F,''''': "1.1":'" ":"d,,,. .~"'! 

," !9ofumiiiiit)!!m~mbersliWlless otli:e!iW~,e,piiltually agreed upon by Agency and 

inn !D;~ntractor.' ilj iii ilIIIIiL' 'illl!1 'I,;;,," "Hi! 

• 8O,:ij\filctor shall prQ~ipe alllli4¢,i<:s, equipment, and staffing for entire event. 
'qqllhb, \lj!I!\ ,pi 

• 	 ContnictR~'i~ staff sh~1Hpe on site one hour prior to event start time to set up and 

prepare. 'q!iI!h',;i:lII!lil) 
'H;i;!:;P>

• 	 Contractor shalliip,tbvide one truck driver and three (3) or more otller workers per 
event to help direct traffic, unload and palletize material, handle state paperwork. 

• 	 Contractor shall provide and set up directional signs and orange cones to help 
direct traffic. 

• 	 Contractor shall provide staffing to unload items for collection from vehicles of 
those participating in the event 

80



• 	 Contractor shall separate, palletize, shrink wrap, and label all material collected 
on-site. 

• 	 Contractor shall provide truck or large container for the entire duration of the 
event and will transport truck/container at the end of the event to Contractor's 
facility. 

• 	 Each site shall have a field manager who shall be at designated location at all 
times during event hours to manage the entire operati,on. 

djjlllllJ
• 	 Contractor shall clean-up site before departing l?l'iJili:iall material and shall not 

.,. 	 ,!i!,n!l:
leave the SIte untIl clean-up IS completed. ,!!i!iiiiHii!l. 


" :q[!l!P' "qWl!" 

> 	 - ',' i 

1.1.2 After Evetifi:,' ''ink 
• >" c,,' r' ,_ _ _ 

,dliilll/' "q!i!l[;,
• 	 Contractor shall collect, handle, disp:O:~e of unsolicited andl6'i!~qllildoned material 

left at site up to one week post evenE''ii!i!. ." .... 
.ld!nl); 

• 	 Contractor shall act as til~j~~rtJfied weigl;'i-H~~~~~llll~d record weight~jgl' record. 

• 	 Contractor shall dismantlehllirri~m(i\\\la.ccordiu'~ltq!~,\ate regulations. 

,d.", \!lhL ';'!lHlll!!i!l', "qnUlh, 
• 	 Contractor ~1j~1liRr~~\ICe a Rece~Y\ng AcWil(jwJ~f!gmerit:l!)at documents pounds 

collected):>y:tYpe(SB~:91MateriaJ;!!IlPU~H~Hd Bi-~m\f\ge) llild proceeds derived 
from the ·c6TIection. '1"" '''iii' 

, ' . ' ''''i,illliiil /JI~!Bii!Items t~![ieicollected
....•...... ,.,. l;:, 1~:.. 1" ".;,;1- ''l': .......•.. ,. """
'"., 	 "'In, ::'1' 

Cqp~~~~U:~"(p·ci:&ilU~p,top'i)lIil!lll."H::in·Hi: .•.• 
Conl~;~~~tr Monitors 'lqnUl\ ';l!l!llljL 
Compuf~Heripherals (in:4),\\~ing l(e~RP,ards, printers, SCllimers, cables, mice) 
Fax MacHill.~~and small taQ!~itoP c6p~:machines 
Televisions'lJjiiill sizes '!!iii 
Kitchen Appl;illl~~s, (includWM\microwaves, blenders, toaster ovens, coffee makers) 
Telephones, CellP«~p~s, .4!IWWering Machines 
Electric TypewriterS"!iHuiiniW 
Radios, Tape Players,StMt~o Equipment, DVD's, VCRs, Call1corders 
General Household Appliances (including hair dryers, irons, vacuum cleaners, lamps) 

Contractor shall collect, handle, and dispose of unsolicited and/or abandoned 
material responsibly. 

1.1.4 Payment/Charge to tile Agency 

81



Contractor shall not charge Agency for recycling, labor, equipment, or 
transportation, 

Contractor shall pay Agency the below listed price per pound for material 
collected at events: 

Contractor Pays Agency 

10,000 lbs, or less collected per event of SB20 Material: $0,06/Ib, 
,liih 

Over 10,000 lbs. collected per event of SB20 Material: $0iiii2J1b. 
I,l!!!;;' 

!'''lH-

CPUs: $0.08/Ib. :!I,i.lillili!l!!:!:; 
',.:. ,",;, 

No pay/no charge for brealmge " (including fa:~iffiacilines, prii\i~ts, keyboards)
,!p"'li' ""iii 

,;,; 'iE i'"'' 
* Brealcage refers to all items listedl~b,~ve not including cRr!\i!';pus and cell 
phones """ "'11:,). 

'qnll~i' 
**SB 20 Qualified Matel'i@(monitors, tele\;i~i~n~',"laptops, flat pan~{!iisplay 
screens) "E,"::"'" 'n",!" 

'Hjj; -:H -'ill!!l);",
l!j!l, 'qq :"''';';, 

Contractor Charges Agencyii!h":nUli,,, "ql!b 
dIHnn;". 

Unless Ag~H~y:g6Wl{~~i~ontrac{cill~7y~~'W)"~~~1(~i1;p~i'to event, Contractor 
shall collectltj1e folloWing items ari(!!~»':l.n charge Ag~ncy the following price per 

Pound: '''In.':. ' i" 'En,.-_. -- ,ii j q -j ill;, 

'"t;mt~i'@~~I~?r~~ili~\i~~\,'!',$:~:.!8ii1i~!I"" 'iillll",:, 

'~Compacf'RlUbrescelitsii$6.50/1b nH!lh


''l in,t' 
ll~~atteries: " l1nl!!lL 'q~lIiht; 

iill4l,kaline: $1.231;\11,,(chaig~)ii " 


'l!!lll1L '111111 :tq~. 

* TH~~:~:~~ems shall rl:g~,be advertised as part of the Collection Events. 

"nip-. illi!1 
"Hili!!" :!!i!iT.1.5 Proposed Site Locations and Dates 

.(i 1\111 i! II III r" 
Contractor shall'HtHo, at the least, monthly (calendar) E-Waste Collection Events at 
locations mutually agreed upon by Agency and Contractor. Event locations shall vary 
to most conveniently serve population centers and the unincorporated areas of 
Sonoma County. Contractor shall be responsible for the selection, location, and 
management of event site and shall obtain Agency staff's written concurrence for the 
location. Contractor will handle all the coordination for the selected site guaranteeing 
an optimum location for a "drive-in" and "drop-off' turn-key event. 

Contractor shall be responsible for any pernlission, permits, fees, insurance and/or 
indemnification required by the properly owner(s) of any selected location. 

82

mailto:t;mt~i'@~~I~?r~~ili~\i~~\,'!',$:~:.!8ii1i~!I


1.1.6 Final Destination/Market for Collection Items 

No e-waste shall be shipped overseas or buried in a landfill. Obsolete electronic 
equipment shall stay at the Contractor's plant located in Santa Clara until it is processed 
back into the primary materials of copper, steel, aluminum, plastic, glass and precious 
metals. Hard Drives shall be shredding and mechanically separated. No hard drives 
collected shall be reused. 

Computer monitors and televisions shall be manually dismMUed. The outer plastic shall 
be baled and shipped to a plastics recycler. The metal y,~~j~gi~hall be baled and shipped 
to a metals recycler. Tubes shall be broken into largl?,pJ,~¢:~.~ and shipped to a computer 
monitor manufacturer to be made back into comput~frP\'~tiH~H:glass. The yokes and 
circuit boards shall be shredded in the Contracto~l~'§Ystem a'HH!~eparated primarily into 
copper and printed circuit board fraction. ,. ,'!'!;'" ''litiii!' 

Computer towers shall be manually dismj\~e~;." The metal shells s;~~IH~:e'paled and 
shipped to a metals recycler. The computer C'dl~imnents,stiwl be remov~~itind either sold 
for their component value or shrmWed and sent t8:~'!W~~i~Hs metals smeltd!.'i" 

'll!llHH!iH H,. '~jnllll:, 
Any lamps collected shall go to m'et'i1:lrY(l~nm recyclei's;!4,ny lead acid and non-lead acid 
batteries shall go to certified batterY'~~Fci'~i~~ili:ii::, "'iii!!:" 

PI' .. ,," 
,1:;;;"'1'''(, if") ,!;",;;l;;. '[;,1:; 

Con tractof, Rll~llipro'y,iqt Agency' ~t[lff \y,illii hi 1i'~ti 9{,~ontl'actor's "Down -Stream 
Vendors"i:f~~'ntifiedbyHwaterial pHI\;~~s~C!; andsHHjj!provide written notification 
to Agenc/b'fj1ffiy chang~lto the 1i£q~~tractor shall 'provide thirty (30) days 
notice to Ag~liq~i9,f lli}<J!;dlmttge to th~iW~t that is initiated by Contractor and seven 

di 	 l!ff~I~~~~i~ii!~\~e O!i~f!!t~fug~~?ijim:~li~,iqijiffY Contractor. 

'iii ""::::1:, "iqW!~. AdditidH~jisupporti Advertising Products Contractor 

1~~1~1l Provide ';~:1111' 111 ::;;111'1 

'ijj!llL 'lHl!; ~~mh 
Coiitt~mor shall pf(j~mle the following promotional/advertising support: 

'qlH~\L_ IH!H 
• 	 Contract6ij!$!)!!.11 prq*,'d~ signs clearly marking the entrance and exit to the event 

as well as cdHM~,w!~~signate the lanes for drop-off traffic and exiting. Contractor 
shall provide si~nind cones. 

• 	 Contractor shall provide at least two (2) arrow signs to be placed at strategic 
traffic areas for maximum exposure directing traffic to event site. 

1.2 Support Agency Shall Provide Agency shall provide the 
following support to the Contractor to hold the events: 

• 	 Provide signed Proof of Designation form. 

83

http:Contract6ij!$!)!!.11


• 	 Provide promotional support including: 
NotifY all appropriate public agencies (police, fire, etc.). 
Arrange for a flier to be placed in a citywide mailer for each event (i.e. 
utility bill) or a local newspaper advertisement or radio ad if mailers are 
unavailable. 

• 	 Promote event on Agency website. 

• 	 E-mail event announcements to Chamber of Commerce and other community 

organizations. 	 ,<illilillii!:' 
• 	 Agency shaH provide at least two (2) week~p~t1F~Il?rm to event unless Agency 

subscribes to an annual event calendar, or ali~li!nodifi;el:tversion of an arumal 
event calendar agreed to after propos~:j~i~c~~pted. ":':n':;;, 

!JllH!j1~; -qnJJh, 
1.3 Cooperation witb'lA:gencv. Contractor sH~l1,cooperate with 

Agency and Agency staff in the performan2gl~f:flil work h~reunder. ';:q'B:,. 
)HH', 

1.4 PerfOJinance StandardHiq9~itagior shall perfor;W'hll work 
hereunder in a nuumer consistent N0lij{:tllt)evel of d;H)R~iency and standard of care 
normally observed by a person pnibti!:;i\\'g'i'i\:g,ontractof'~lprpfession. If Agency 
detemlines that any of Contractor's W9l"1( is'il.b~U~1,<lccordaI\'4~!»,ith such level of 
competency and staqq<l\"fhRfcare, Ag~Wqy, in ii!;"~~)~:fli.scretlbHl!~l1all have the right to do 
any or all of the foU~wmg;!H(a), require C'9'l;,traCt~f,~diffig~t:With 'A'gency to review the 
quality of the wdr,l~I~!id resoiV~Ullatters ofWlJrtRWW; (b) ~b:~{H;'e Contractor to repeat the 
work at no additioHw':);4arge u@i it is satis'f~9r6ry; (c) terminate tIus Agreement 
pursuant to tIle provi:§l~p~,ofAtHble.4; or (d)'R\#~ue any and all other remedies at law or 

in equity[jilililil !li!I'" 'i!liiliH!P" 'm,!!, !Hili!!;, ''Ii!!:; 
'ililli,!;!!" !iiilllnf~I!!:~lYl~n~h!~er~~~bti! 

a. Coiitractor shall aifsijW only'coinpetent personnel to perfOJID work hereunder. In 
the event tll~i!ilt any time Aig~!1cy, in ii~' sole discretion, desires tIle removal of any person 

11,,<1\ .,.,!,: 
or persons assilW~~ by Con\t~~tor to perform work hereunder, Contractor shall remove 
such person or pe~~!m~ imw:~:wately upon receiving written notice from Agency. 

'i1nnhdlHllH i -
b. Any and all p~'t~q#1tidentified in tIlis Agreement or any exhibit hereto as the 
project manager, project teanl, or otIler professional perfomling work hereunder are 
deemed by Agency to be key personnel whose services are a material inducement to 
Agency to enter into this Agreement, and without whose services Agency would not have 
entered into tIlis Agreement. Contractor shall not remove, replace, substitute, or 
otherwise change any key personnel witIlOut the prior written consent of Agency. 

c. In the event that any of Contractor's personnel assigned to perform services under 
this Agreement become unavailable due to resignation, siclmess or other factors outside 

84



of Contractor's control, Contractor shall be responsible for timely provision of adequately 
qualified replacements. 

2. Payment. Contractor shall pay Agency in accordance with section 
1.1.4 Payment/Charge to the Agency within 90 days of each event. Contractor shall 
include with the payment for each event, a report listing the number, type, and amount by 
weight of items collected. 

3. Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall be from the 
effective date to June 16,2012, unless terminated earlier ini~bcordance with the 
provisions of Article 4 below. .':iiiHiP' 

4. Termination'i:lll!iilillllil:nHiL 

4.1 Termination Withtltlrl'Cause. Norn:iiji~t?pding any other 
provision of this Agreement, at any time aiii1IWithout cause, Agen'I:Yi~hflll have the right, 
in its sole discretion, to tenllinate this Agreem~nt by giving ten (10) day~written notice 
to Contractor. ·;i;i'~;;,. .dlijlh "",'. 

4.2 Tem~immonfor caus~:iiUrgl~~hstanding any oth~r provision 
of this Agreement, should Contrag\SrJ~\I~(u:)erfonll <iiiylbf,its obligations hereunder, 
within the time and in the mmmer hgH~in p'l'iNH:1ed, or otl~Mti.\ii~e violate any of the terms 
ofthis Agreement, Agegcy.may immg~l1\tely t~lWl\nfll~ thisA~t~ement by giving 
Contractor written.riqll'ceh.W:s)l,ch temIilWtipn, stdHHg'we: ,e,asori ifor termination. 

'''''''r "t:F'" 

·:jUiiHI.3 D~lmery of wJtWW~~duct mIdWl~a1 Payment Upon Termination . 
.1Hfl 'Wi, 

1n thet;;V:~!ip:6:mfiffi1inat'iiJj~H;\~11ijfamg~d!W,ithi~i~kjq.ays following the date of tenllination, 

sh~i~i#~ji%Ff8iA&l~l\?f, aln\i;*~YI;ials aridU~~f~iRr~liu~t subject to Section 9.9 and shall 
submIt to Agency pa'Y;it\",nt up't~mre date ofterrrnnatlOn. 

'lj!!l' ",n' 'iw" 
::HH" ':QlllL qnit"
''iiii':. 5. Indemriification. Gpi1tractor agrees to accept all responsibility for loss 

or damage't\i>iia,ny person ori~Htity, inc'!'Sding but not limited to Agency, mId to defend, 
indemnify, I~gli~!;tflrmless, r~\Mburse and release Agency, its officers, agents, and 
employees, froirti!ffi\lagain~~!Uby and all actions, claims, danlages, disabilities, liabilities 
and expense includiBglib)l~~~t limited to, attomeys' fees and the cost oflitigation 
incurred in the defens~i~"~\'aims as to which this indemnity applies or incnrred in an 
action by Agency to enforce the indenmity provisions herein, whether arising from 
personal injury, property damage or economic loss of any type, that may be asserted by 
any person or entity arising ont of or in connection with the performance of Contractor 
hereunder, but, to the extent required by law, excluding liability due to the sole 
negligence or willful miscondnct of Agency. If there is a possible obligation to 
indemnify, Contractor's duty to defend with legal counsel acceptable to Agency, exists 
regardless of whether it is ultimately determined that there is not a dnty to indemnify. 
This indemnification obligation is not limited in any way by any limitation on the amount 
or type of damages or compensation payable to or for Contractor or its agents. 

85



6. Insurance. With respect to performance of work under this Agreement, 
Contractor shall maintain and shall require all of its subcontractors, consultants, and other 
agents to maintain, insurance as described below: 

6.1 Workers' Compensation Insurance. Workers' compensation 
insurance with statutory limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California. 
Said policy shall be endorsed with the following specific language: 

This policy shall not be cancelled or materially changed ~WiQut first giving thirty (30) 
days' prior written notice to the Agency. ,diliJIJlpr' 

iidHlnnl1, 
6.2 General Liability Insunilill~!r'C~fuI]1ercial general liability 

insurance covering bodily injury and property~~)p,age using:ii«!~Ecurrence policy form, 
in an anlOunt no less than One Million Doll;tt,41t-$t,000,000.00)'cqli;\J;lined single limit for 
each occurrence. Said commercial generam~8.b'l!ity insurance policyr~hall either be 
endorsed with the following specific languHg~'or contain equivalent liti\'gllage in the 

I· "Ii" ";, 'llHb.po ICY· 'il>.;·.i.~. ,il'U;. 
• "i ~l:. ,dHHH'" 

a. The Agency, its Board oBilliI;e'ctors and sta&HW*~med as additional i'l~sured for 
all liability arising OLlt of the operat!oris'by,oron behalfiJ'f.the namcd insured in the 
performance of this Agreement. ',niiiH:i!::" 

b. Thc inclusidf{'QfiHlqre:t,han onem~llredsli~!i'hQt:o'perate:'t:o impair the rights of 
one insured agaii)~li!rliother 'iH~~'v;ed, and t1\~,c;oyethge aff6t4~d shall apply as though 
separate policies ll':l'c),,been issu~iiito each ilis\\)led, but the inclusion of more than one 
insured shall not op~~:~t~:W inpt~Hs,e}he limiiYiQ(the company's liability. 

!! ~Uil !llIlaUHlll,. 'ljQHlllmlllnijj ~llI!ilj lil~, 'ij !lill, 
C.,d!i!!Tl\'e'ins\'u"\»:¢~,provrq¥~Jlerein is'jJ!:WWrY'c6verage to the Agency with respect to 
anYi~lirance or self+W;:?)ITand~~mgrams nl~illt8.ined by the Agency. 

"q!l!Ilh. ';ljill!L 'l[j!nlL 
d.TW~ijJolicy shall nqlil?e cancellffP or materially changed without first giving thirty 
(30) days p~o/~;~tten noti'Cffl}r the Ag~ncy. 

'qHH~\ WHl,
'':Ub, 6.3 AUtomobile Insurance. Automobile liability insurance 

covering bodily i~JUtili:'1A~~ti:lperty damage in an amount no less than One Million 
Dollars ($ J,000,000) 2dm.~iired single limit for each occurrence. Said insurance shall 
include coverage for owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles. Said policy shall be 
endorsed with the following language: 

This policy shall not be cancelled or materially changed without first giving thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to the Agency. 

6.4 Professional Liability Insurance. Professional liability 
insurance for all activities of Contractor arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement in an amount no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single 

86



limit for each occurrence. Said policy shall be endorsed with the following specific 
language: 

This policy shall not be cancelled or materially changed without first giving thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to the Agency. 

6.5 Documentation. The following documentation shall be 
submitted to the Agency: 

a. Properly executed Certificates ofInsurance clearlY"er:0-.qencing all coverages, 
limits, and endorsements required above. Said Certifi~mfi~~H\ill be submitted prior to the 
execution of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to mll'iimiih current Certificates of 
Insurance evidencing the above-required coveragesjlH!iWtYJi$cl endorsements on file with 
the Agency for the duration of this Agreement.dii:,·"" ":i);, .. 

• t • • • • • • 

""'-'''''''', .... ,. 

b. Signed copies of the specified endo~~il!W!~~s for each pOI:i~Y)!lsaid endorsement 
copies shall be submitted within thirty (30i'\'i~y,sof execution ofthisA~kement. 

c. Upon Agency's written r\!,qllest, certified't!dpiq(@Hle insurance policies. Said 
policy copies shall be submitteci\\iililil~:thirty (30) dtiY~9f Agency's request. 

6.6 POlicyJ~Ii'~~W8ii~:!icpntrac;~\1'~lil)demnity and other 
obligations shall notqeril!!hl,jted by th~;~~T~goingni~1~~1~?\nCe r~tt'uMtments. 

:nlllin:~:~n:~Uierial Bre~gjjti;tiiillgllt~~l\W~Hfor ~~y reason, fails to 
maintain insuranc~!t,\iy,\,!rage ~m~h is requif~«:pursuant to tilis Agreement, the same shall 
be deemed a materiarQtAit~h qjj~~)~.greemdith!Agency, in its sole option, may 
termin,\\\M1ij~~gr!,!emert~iWi\~i~lHtiHil~~mf!gesf¥,OPl Contractor resulting from said 
breflqiimWitelWti'ti:y~ly, AgiHi6)i!;11ay pw-thlt~e,;~u6W~equired insurance coverage, and 

.. '1"-" ·,.h:p. '.p .. ; .:1.,)'" 

witli!J\'\~ further noti·ce!t;o;,Confr@~.Qr, AgencY'riHly deduct from sums due to Contractor 
any 'ilt~r~,i,um costs ad\i\lltRfid by"AjgS!'\cy for such insurance. These remedies shall be in 
additiOll,!tQlany other rem~i!l~s avaijtiU!~.to Agency. 

'1qnll!~L 'lillij, '!iI' 
'iFlll.ProsecutionibfWork. The execution of this Agreement shall constitute 

Contractor's autimlliw to prs1H~ed immediately with the performance of this Agreement. 
Performance of th~i!':~~'Y~\1~~IH~reunder shall be completed within the time required 
herein, provided, hOWe~~[Jthat if the performance is delayed by earthqualce, flood, high 
water, or other Act of God or by strike, lockout, or similar labor disturbances, the time for 
Contractor's performance of this Agreement shall be extended by a number of days equal 
to the number of days Contractor has been delayed. 

8. Extra or Changed Work. Extra or changed work or other changes to 
the Agreement may be authorized only by written amendment to this Agreement, signed 
by both parties. Minor changes which do not increase or decrease the amount paid under 
the Agreement, and which do not significantly change the scope of work or significantly 
lengthen time schedules may be executed by the Agency's Executive Director in a form 

87

http:avaijtiU!~.to
mailto:noti�ce!t;o;,Confr@~.Qr


approved by Agency Counsel. All other extra or changed work must be authorized in 
writing by the Agency Board of Directors. 

9. Representations of Contractor. 

9.1 Standard of Care. Agency has relied upon the professional 
ability and training of Contractor as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. 
Contractor hereby agrees that all its work will be performed and that its operations shall 
be conducted in accordance with generally accepted and applicable professional practices 
and standards as well as the requirements of applicable fe~\i~I, state and local laws, it 
being understood that acceptance of Contractor's work byiA!g~ncy shall not operate as a 

waiver or release'dlll!I!!II!liilli\!, 

9.2 Stahls ofContractor}i\IIig'parties'iHt~I1d that Contractor, in 
performing the services specified herein, sl;~Hmpl'as an indepe;i&~!}h\contractor and shall 
control the work and the manner in which:i~~s:performed. ContractCir)is not to be 
considered an agent or employee of Agenc'Y'@d is not entitled to pm:tftljJ[ite in any 
pension plan, worker's compensation plml, ing{jt~nce, bQliU~; or similar 'b~~e,fits provided 
to Agency staff. In the event Agenc:y exercises i¥s'i~glim3:t'~nllinate this Al!teement 
pursllmlt to Article 4, above, CoHti~cf6,L~xpressly ~~\:~'~~'that it shall have no recourse or 
right of appeal under rules, regllla'ttb;~s'}'8~9illances, o~'Ili{ys,applicable to employees. 

'niL 'lEn if" 'qWL. 
",9,~",Taxes. Cd~trflctor'Rgt~~~;tp file'f~«~l,'al mld state tax rehlrns 

and pay all applica]:iWIHL~~W6:l}amounts'\)'ltid P\lr~(iliNiitqtl)is Agi'~ement mld shall be 
solely liable mld ~M~~bnsible"ld,iI?ay sllch t~~~~I\Wij'othei-"6'b,ligations, including, but not 
limited to, state aridite,c;leral inCiiHle and FICl;\itaxes. Contractor agrees to indemnify and 
hold Agency harmleS~~fP!.n aJ,ly,lllflRi!ity whi'6~1~1 may incur to the United States or to the 
State q~jg,3Mtqm\\\as a cb»il~tl)i~iitglclMiR!ltraCiR~'\s failure to pay, when due, all such 
tax\;~!!md"6b1igaHqR.:~i,In ds~lM\gencyi's'[-mqit,trd%r compliance regarding mly 
wHiU.~qJding or oth~tlqj:jIljicabW~~es. ConiIliBtbr agrees to furnish Agency with proof of 

··!nn .,,,,,, >,oJ,,, 
payITi~fitlPf taxes on the~~I~arnirig~Hi, 

'=qlll!L, '!1mb, 'qf!!illl
'iHiil" 9.4~~~ords Mitintenance. Contractor shall keep and maintain 

full and compl~t~\4ocument~n:\1l1 and accounting records concerning all services 
""1'" 01:;,

performed that ar~:c.9.mpens.~pJe under this Agreement, and shall malce such doclll11ents 
and records availam~lf9,.N~~IY<';y for inspection at any reasonable time. Contractor shall 
maintain such records'fqtiliiperiod offour (4) years following completion of work 
hereunder. ... 

9.5 Conflict ofInterest. Contractor covenants that it presently has 
no interest mld that it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a 
financial conflict of interest under state law or that would otllerwise conflict in any 
manner or degree with tile performmlce of its services hereunder. Contractor umher 
covenants tllat in the perfonnance of tllis Agreement no person having mly such interests 
shall be employed by Contractor. In addition, if requested to do so by Agency, 
Contractor shall complete mld file mld shall require mly otller person doing work under 

88



Contractor and this Agreement to complete and tile a "Statement of Economic Interest" 
with Agency disclosing Contractor's or such other person's financial interests. 

9.6 Nondiscrimination. Contractor shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations in regard to 
nondiscrimination in employment because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, 
religion, sex, marital status, age, medical condition, pregnancy, disability, sexual 
orientation or other prohibited basis. All nondiscrimination rules or regulations required 
by law to be included in this Agreement are incorporated herein by this reference. 

" ,
,rd!llh 

9.7 AIDS Discrimination. Conth4R~pr'agrees to comply with the 
provisions of Chapter 19, Article II, of the Sonoma<;;p~~ifode prohibiting 
discrimination in housing, employment, and servio~slR'e'cati~~s)l AIDS or HIV infection 
during the teml of this Agreement and any exteJ,isioil~ ofthe'ti!im. 

cO''';''' "ni'l, 

9,8 Assignment of;n!ml~ts, Contractor a~~'ii~~sJo Agency all 
rights throughout the world in perpetuity iini1~illature of copyright, ii'hd~J11ark, patent, 
right to ideas, in and to all versions of the plalltlitilld speci;fiG~tions, if aI;YHHp~v or later 
prepared by Contractor in conne9tipn with this Am~(mi~liFCol1tractor agr&~ho take 
such actions as aI'e necessary toi3tk\~~cttl1e rights aS~:fHl~d to Agency in this Agreement, 
and to refrain from taking any actrd~\.~Vjiiq1\;}Xpuld imp'~\~'J110se rights, Contractor's 
responsibilities under this provision'i\i.blude\!b\'Jta,re not Iijjjj~ed to, placing proper notice 

;d" "",;on, -"'1"_
of copyright on all veFs,i(ll1~ofthe plaii~!and spedpc,\!.tjons as~g~ncy may direct, aIld 
refraining from dis~IQ:smg'\ii\Yiversionsi~bhe plal\,:\ihj\d!'sp~cifiUiiions to aIly third party 
without first obta@H~ wTitt~tlJR~rmissioa'(lfi;f\.~,ei\,cy, Cbji'«~ctor shall not lise or permit 
aIlother to use the'pta~l,S and speC;ifications iiiii1(innection with this or aIly other project 
without first obtain\lig!~11Ei,tteqrjj~h!.1.\~sion of~g~ncy. 

. ! nl Ii ,! .1 ;,: ~,: ~,: ;,: .1,1 ,~ :,' " " , -, j d ~,:, ;,f :,' .~ I, i,~ ~.; ,I ,n IinlHl!!,I .•,i ,h,: '" ',i: " , ' q',;',t, ,L,~ ',i ,,11HllHj " . 
,,"iliP" ""qrHHH!ir, 9.9 "Ownership 'AHdHDiscl'dsure Of Work Product. All reports, 

l'p'l'" -'"":}" "'(", "p"".
origmm drawings, grQB!1ips, pT:W:~h~tudies, anclibther data or documents ("documents"), 
in wHatever fOTffi or foITii~1;, assd\1lJled or prepared by Contractor or Contractor's 

""n, ''''",. ("HI,

subcontra~~ors, consultan't$1;fand otlJelliiLgents in comlection with this Agreement shall be 
the property,!~f,Agency. Ag~n~y shall'lbe entitled to immediate possession of such 
documents u~id~\9pmpletio~;9fitlle work pursuant to this Agreement. Upon expiration or 
teTffiination of tl1illiAgreementJIContractor shall promptly deliver to Agency all such 
documents which i'iiti!e:;l1.Q11lIllhdy been provided to Agency in such fOTffi or fOTffiat as 
Agency deems approptlMWJI'such documents shall be and will remain the property of 
Agency witll0ut restriction or limitation. Contractor may retain copies of tlle above 
described documents but agrees not to disclose or discuss any infoTffiation gatllered, 
discovered, or generated in any way through this Agreement without the express written 
peTffiission of Agency. 

10. Demand for Assurance. Each party to this Agreement undertakes the 
obligation that the Otller'S expectation of receiving due perfoTffiance will not be impaired. 
When reasonable grounds for insecurity arise with respect to the performance of eitller 
party, the otller may in writing demaIld adequate assuraJ1ce of due perfomlance aIld until 

89



such assurance is received may, if commercially reasonable, suspend any performance 
for which the agreed return has not been received. "Commercially reasonable" includes 
not only the conduct of a party with respect to performance under this Agreement, but 
also conduct with respect to other agreements with parties to this Agreement or others. 
After receipt of a justified demand, failure to provide within a reasonable time, but not 
exceeding thirty (30) days, such assurance of due performance as is adequate under the 
circumstances of the particular case is a repudiation of this Agreement. Acceptance of 
any improper delivery, service, or payment does not prejudice the aggrieved party's right 
to demand adequate assurance of future performance. Nothing in this Article 10 limits 
Agency's right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to ArtHHe 4. 

,d:lHllF" 
11. Assignment and Delegation. Neitl}¢Hhl{1U:tY hereto shall assign, 

,!:l:,lrr"""!
delegate, sublet, or transfer any interest in or duty 1iR-:q;er tHi~li'}(7eement without the prior 
written consent of the other, and no such transferish'iill be ofanJiforce or effect 
whatsoever unless and until the other partyslifililiii~ve so conseiitg~iL

.,jp~j:P ',','," 

12. Method and Place ofdwmgNotice. Sllbmitting"~WiS'and Making 
Payments. All notices, bills, and payments sl;'Ml'!b,~ made.m,writing an(nH~lI be given by 
personal delivery or by U.S. Maii:9l' courier servld~:U'l<m'tes, bills, ffild pllYHients shall 
be addressed as follows: """'" """'''', 

Ag""~ S:i;;;m~~i~~~i~~l1~ti~I;;;~;~i!!i 
'l'i)'hone: (,WI) 565-363,2::


'::tlAX:,G~QZ),~65-370 L:n 

"~jjj .""... ,ll'''''''i1;;;;' '1nL 

mr:nW~~m~)li~ili~I~~:~~iW~!,pa:ic'i~;~~U~p' 
"'!!';, "7'051 JReed' jsth~et 

'ql!l!i!!!!!; ~:~~nt:ai;~~£;~~~ direct 


Tiii:!\', Phon~lIt~08) 472-7589 mobile 

'il i!il,,Fax:,,(ffg:8) 988-5154 


When a notice, bill"~~'~a~hl:~~t is given by a generally recognized overnight courier 
service, the notice, bill 0;: payment shall be deemed received on the next business day. 
When a copy of a notice, bill or payment is sent by facsimile, the notice bill or payment 
shall be deemed received upon transmission as long as (l) the original copy of the notice, 
bill or payment is promptly deposited in the U.S. mail, (2) the sender has a written 
confirmation of the facsimile transmission, and (3) the facsimile is transmitted before 5 
p.m. (recipient's time). In all other instances, notices, bills and payments shall be 
effective upon receipt by the recipient. Changes may be made in the names and 
addresses of the person to whom notices are to be given by giving notice pursuant to this 
paragraph. 

90



13. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

13.1 No Waiver of Breach. The waiver by Agency of any breach 
of any term or promise contained in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of 
such term or provision or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term or promise 
contained in this Agreement. 

13.2 Construction. To the fullest extent allowed by law, the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be construed and giveI]i~t,ht;Pt in a manner that avoids 
any violation of statute, ordinance, regulation, or law. 1JI~iP1iiiies covenant and agree 
that in the event that any provision of this AgreemeIWiM~ib~(i by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, t1;(~W~li';!lH1~~r ofthe provisions hereof 
shall remain in full force and effect and shall il);)i.o, Why be affe:¢t.~p, impaired, or 
invalidated thereby. Contractor and AgencY,Mlllil1wledge thatU\'~y)1ave each 
contributed to the making of this Agreemei1~\:liid that, in the event'6fh,dispute over the 
interpretation of this Agreement, the langL;ig~'qfthe Agreement wil!''A'b't,be construed 
against one party in favor of the other. Contr~t~~J::mld Agg!ipy ackno\~lgdg(!that they 
have each had ml adequate opportlpnty to consuif\\~th:¢gl\Hsel in the negoiltitlbn and 
preparation of this Agreement. "H;'i:lli","',,!ll" 

13.3 Conse;itl!iWli6tg~er,in tlnsA~t¢~ment the consent or 
approval of one pm1y,igeqpired to aI\:'~cJ of ti~g'Htixel;.party:'§Wch consent or approval 
shall not be unrea~PA~)YIY,\~lnl/:eld or d~X~yed ....n;!::il!!L"·" 

·'''mlhJ3.4 Nd'llilnrd Pm-tYiBMI1~ficiaries.Nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall be c\Y~$~\peq,tPiHnrNe and tH~lpfU1:ies do not intend to create any rights 

in ~~il~lvftfffi~~Il!!!: iin ii" .,qml!I!I!:;'!;:niJ illillllillln::,HII!!, 
'!!lili"::mp,.5 Applicable Law'iilid ForLl111. This Agreement shall be 

"".!. '",,-, .. ,,,,, 
constt4~\!,and interpreteq!~EcordiiigltR the substantive law of California, regardless of the 
law oft\.I\ttlicts to the coii.b1WY in aiiYUurisdiction, Any action to enforce the terms of this 
AgreemedHH~lfor the brea~HIUlereof ~HMh be brought ffild tried in the forum nearest to the 

1",,11 :'1"\ 
city of Santa RO:$f!, in the CO:®.ty of Sonoma. 

'qnn, ,~mll 

"iHi!qh~B!t:'aptions. The captions in tins Agreement are solely for 
convenience of referdiq~!liThey are not a part of tllis Agreement and shall have no effect 
on its construction or inte'rpretation. 

13.7 Merger. TIns writing is intended both as tile final expression 
of tile Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the included terms ffild as a 
complete and exclusive statement of the ternlS of the Agreement, pursuant to Code of 
Civil Procedure Section 1856. No modification of this Agreement shall be effective 
unless and until such modification is evidenced by a writing signed by both parties, 

91



13.8 Time of Essence. Time is and shall be of the essence of this 
Agreement and every provision hereof. 

92



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as ofthe 
Effective Date. 

AGENCY: SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT 
AGENCY 

By: _________________________ 

Christa Johnson, Chair 

CONTRACTOR: ECS REFINING 

By: ------, 

APPROVED ASTOSUBSTA~~lliBy",i 
AND CERTIFICATES:OF INSURANCE 
ON FILE WITH:'qi:: :'1 HI!:!!!. i:\mh! 

., 'in :Iu I:! 1m:!!. 

93



RESOLUTION NO.: 

DATED: June 16, 20"10 

RESOLUTION OF THE SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY ("AGENCY") 

AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH ECS REFINING ('CONTRACTOR,) FOR ELECTRONIC 


WASTE (E-WASTE) COLLECTION EVENT SERVICES. 


WHEREAS, Agency desires the services of a"back-up' Contractor to hold Electronic 
Waste ('E-WastEi') Collection Events; and 

WHEREAS, "back-up' Contractor shall only be utilized in the event that the "primarY' 
Contractor is unable to provide the E-Waste recycling services required by its contract with the 
Agency; and 

WHEREAS, "back-up' Contractor shall not be guaranteed any amount of work; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is duly qualified and experienced in E-Waste 
Collection Event Services and related services; and 

WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Directors of Agency, it is necessary and 
desirable to employ the services of Contractor to hold E-Waste Collection Events. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Sonoma County Waste Management 
Agency hereby authorizes the Agency, Chairman of the Board to execute a two-year Agreement 
with ECS Refining for E-Waste Collection Event Services. 

MEMBERS: 

Cloverdale Cotati County Healdsburg Petaluma 

Rohnert Park Santa Rosa Sebastopol Sonoma Windsor 

AYES NOES ABSENT ABSTAIN 
SO ORDERED 

The within instrument is a correct copy 
of the original on file with this office. 

ATTEST: DATE: 

Elizabeth Koetke 
Clerk of the Sonoma Counly Waste Management Agency 
Agency of the Slate of California in and for the 
County of Sonoma 

94



      
     
     
     
 
 

       
 
  

 
         

        
             

         
     

 
        
          

 
          
           

              
        

      
        
             

       
  

           
           

    
 

           
           

    
 

          
           

    
 

  
 

           
    

           
            

            
           
       

           

Agenda Item #: 14 
Cost Center: All 
Staff Contact: Klassen 
Agenda Date: 6/16/2010 

ITEM: Revised Sixth Amendment to Petaluma Services Agreement 

I. BACKGROUND 

In November 2004 the Board approved an agreement with the City of Petaluma in which 
the Agency agreed to provide Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) services to Petaluma 
residents for calendar year 2005. The cost for this service was paid directly by the City 
of Petaluma, instead of through the tipping fee surcharge, as Petaluma’s solid waste by-
passes the County disposal system. 

The 1st Amendment to the Agreement, approved in November 2005, extended the term 
until the end of FY 05-06 (June 30, 2006). 

The 2nd Amendment (revised) to the Agreement, approved in April 2006, extended the 
term until the end of FY 06-07 (June 30, 2007) and added all Agency surcharge-funded 
services, in addition to HHW services. At the April 19, 2006 SCWMA meeting, the Board 
approved adding all services beyond the use of the Household Hazardous Waste facility 
such as: educational efforts, recycling and other waste diversion services, compliance 
with AB 939 reporting requirements and any updates necessary to state and/or county 
planning documents on behalf of the City of Petaluma as required by the Countywide 
Integrated Waste Management Plan, the Joint Powers Agreement and state regulations. 

The 3rd Amendment (revised) to the Agreement, approved in May 2007, extended the 
term until the end of FY 07-08 (June 30, 2008) and added all Agency surcharge-funded 
services, in addition to HHW services. 

The 4th Amendment (revised) to the Agreement, approved in May 2008, extended the 
term until the end of FY 08-09 (June 30, 2009) and added all Agency surcharge-funded 
services, in addition to HHW services. 

The 5th Amendment to the Agreement, approved in May 2009, extended the term until 
the end of FY 09-10 (June 30, 2010) and added all Agency surcharge-funded services, 
in addition to HHW services. 

II. DISCUSSION 

At the request of Vince Marengo, representative from the City of Petaluma, the Revised 
Sixth Amendment to Petaluma Services Agreement is being brought back for Board 
consideration. The City of Petaluma will continue to pay directly for Agency services as 
it has for the past five years. The requested change is modification of the basis for 
charging for the services. The payment will be based on actual tons of solid waste 
disposed per month instead of using the prior calendar year’s total tonnage. Under the 
requested arrangement, the tons would be reported by Petaluma’s franchised hauler, 
Petaluma Refuse and Recycling, by the 20th of the succeeding month. The reported 

95



 

tonnage disposed would be used by Agency staff for production of an invoice to be 
submitted to the City of Petaluma. 

If the SCWMA Board approves this revised amendment, the City Council of Petaluma is 
scheduled to consider the Revised Amendment on June 21, 2010. This schedule allows 
for potential approvals from both parties to the amendment to be in place for the July 1, 
2010 rate change. 

III. FUNDING IMPACT 

Beginning July 1, 2010, the invoice will be calculated on the reported monthly tonnage 
using the Board approved rate of $5.95 per ton. The invoice would then be submitted to 
the City of Petaluma for payment. The payment would be due and payable to the 
Agency ten days after receipt of the invoice. This would have the City of Petaluma on 
the same schedule and basis of calculation and payment as the rest of the jurisdictions, 
who use the County system for reporting of tonnage disposed and payment of the 
surcharge tipping fee. 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION/ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the Revised Sixth Amendment to the Petaluma Services Agreement and direct 
staff to work with Petaluma's representatives to present the Revised Sixth Amendment 
to the Petaluma City Council for its approval. 

V. ATTACHMENTS 

Draft Revised Sixth Amendment to the Petaluma Services Agreement 

Revised Exhibit A 

Revised Resolution 


Approved by
 
Susan Klassen, Interim E/e1tive Director, SCWMA 


96



 

 

 
     

 
    

 
 

         
            
             

    
 

          
        

     
 

            
               

 
           

          
             

          
 

            
           

          
 

             
           

          
 

          
           

          
 

         
            

              
  

 
      

      
 

 
         

  
 

 
  

          
          

            
       

 

REVISED SIXTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT 

Household Hazardous Waste and AB 939 Program Services 

This Revised Sixth Amendment to Agreement, effective the1st day of July, 2010, (“Effective 
Date”), is made and entered into by and between the City of Petaluma, a municipal corporation and a 
charter city, hereinafter referred to as "CITY," and the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency, a 
joint powers agency, hereinafter referred to as “AGENCY." 

WHEREAS, CITY and AGENCY entered into an Agreement effective January 1, 2005 and 
terminating on January 1, 2006, governing the use of AGENCY’s Household Hazardous Waste 
Facility (hereinafter the "Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, CITY and AGENCY approved the First Amendment to the Agreement to extend 
the term of the Agreement for an additional six (6) months, until June 30, 2006; and, 

WHEREAS, CITY and AGENCY approved the Second Amendment to the Agreement to (1) 
add additional services for compliance to the requirements mandated by AB 939, (2) compensate the 
Agency for services managed and performed by the Agency, and (3) extend the term of the 
Agreement for an additional twelve (12) months, until June 30, 2007; and, 

WHEREAS, CITY and AGENCY approved the Third Amendment to the Agreement to 
compensate the Agency for services managed and performed by the Agency, and  extend the term of 
the Agreement for an additional twelve (12) months, until June 30, 2008; and, 

WHEREAS, CITY and AGENCY approved the Fourth Amendment to the Agreement to 
compensate the Agency for services managed and performed by the Agency, and  extend the term of 
the Agreement for an additional twelve (12) months, until June 30, 2009; and, 

WHEREAS, CITY and AGENCY approved the Fifth Amendment to the Agreement to 
compensate the Agency for services managed and performed by the Agency, and  extend the term of 
the Agreement for an additional twelve (12) months, until June 30, 2010; and, 

WHEREAS, CITY and AGENCY wish to amend the Agreement a sixth time (in this Revised 
Sixth Amendment) to adjust the compensation to the Agency for services managed and performed by 
the AGENCY, and extend the term of the Agreement for an additional twelve (12) months, until June 
30, 2011. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and conditions 
contained in this Sixth Amendment, AGENCY and CITY agree as follows: 

Section 1. Section 2. of the Agreement, “Compensation; Business Tax Certificate,” is amended 
to read as follows: 

2. Compensation 

A.	 For the full performance of the Services as described herein, City shall compensate 
Agency One Hundred Sixty Eight Thousand, Four Hundred forty-six dollars 
($168,446) under the terms defined in Exhibit A. Payment of this amount is due in 
monthlyfour equal quarterly installments, upon invoice, beginning August July 1, 
2010. 

97



 

 

          
          

       
            

         
 

               
 

            
           

  
 
           

     
 

        
         

 
           

 
_________________________   __________________________  

        
 
 

         
 
_________________________   _____________________  

        
 

    
 
 
_____________________  

  
 
 

 
 
 
______________________  

 
 
 

 
 
 
______________________  

  
 
 

 
 
_______________________  

  

B.	 Agency shall be compensated for services in addition to those described in Exhibit 
A, only if Agency and City execute a written amendment to this Agreement 
describing the additional services to be performed and the compensation to be paid 
for such services. In no case shall the total compensation under this Agreement 
exceed $168,446 without prior written consent of the City Manager. 

Section 2. Section 3 of the Agreement, “Term,” is amended to read as follows: 

3. Term. The term of this Agreement commences on the effective date of July 1, 2010 and 
terminates at midnight on June 30, 2011, unless extended or terminated sooner pursuant to the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

Section 3. Except as expressly amended hereby, all the remaining provisions of the 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Revised Sixth Amendment to 
the Agreement to be executed as of the date first set forth above. 

CITY OF PETALUMA	 SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

City Manager	 Agency Chair 

ATTEST:	 APROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Clerk	 Agency Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

APPROVED: 

Department Director 

APPROVED: 

Risk Manager 

APPROVED: 

Finance Director 

98



  
 

 
 

 
     

     
  

  
  

 

 
   

   
 
 

   
   

   
  

     
       

     
       

    
 

      
    
         

    
  

 
 

     
    

      
 

Exhibit “A” – Revised Sixth Amendment 

Services and Compensation 

Under the terms of this agreement, the Sonoma County Waste Management 
Agency (SCWMA) shall allow the City and its residents the use of the Household 
Hazardous Waste (HHW) Facility at the Central Disposal Site, without additional 
charge during the term of the Agreement.  City residents shall be provided any 
other privilege or right enjoyed by other member agencies of the Sonoma County 
Waste Management Agency regarding the promotion and use of the HHW 
Facility at the Central Disposal Site. 

Services provided by this agreement shall also include educational efforts, 
recycling and other waste diversion services, compliance with AB 939 reporting 
requirements and any updates necessary to state and/or county planning 
documents on behalf of City as required by the Countywide Integrated Waste 
Management Plan and state regulations. 

The annual compensation for services shall be calculated by applying the 
SCWMA tipping fee surcharge rate on the actual tonnages of solid waste 
disposed of by the City of Petaluma’s franchised waste hauler, Petaluma Refuse 
and RecyclingGreenWaste Recovery, Inc. during the period of January 2009 
through December 2009. The amount of solid waste disposed for each month 
shall be reported to SCWMA for invoicing purposes by the 20th of the succeeding 
month. The SCWMA approved rate of $5.95 per ton will be used for calculating 
invoices. Payment of each monthly invoice shall be due and payable to the 
Agency 10 days after receipt of the invoice. 

Petaluma’s franchised waste hauler disposed of 28,310 tons of solid waste 
during the period January 2009 through December 2009.  The tipping fee 
surcharge will be $5.95/ton during the term of the Sixth Amendment; therefore, 
Petaluma’s compensation for solid waste tonnage to the Agency is not to exceed 
$168,446, due in four equal quarterly installments, or upon invoice, beginning 
July 1, 2010. 

During the 2010 calendar year, the City of Petaluma shall provide the Agency 
with monthly reports of solid waste tonnage disposed by its franchised waste 
hauler by the 20th of each following month for AB 939 reporting purposes. 

99



   
    
            
 

        
         

         
        

 
            

       
           

 
        

      
      

 
        

         
              

           
        

 
          

      
      
 

           
       

      
 

 
  

--  --  --  --  -- 

         

         

--  --  --  --  -- 

           
 

         
    

  
 

  
 

                               
 
_________________________________________  

 
  

  

RESOLUTION NO.: 2010-

DATED: June 16April 21, 2010 

RESOLUTION OF THE SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY
 
("AGENCY") APPROVING THE REVISED SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT
 

FOR AB 939 AND HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE FACILITY SERVICES, BY
 
AND BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND THE CITY OF PETALUMA
 

WHEREAS, on November 17, 2004 the Agency authorized the Agency Chair to 
sign a contract with the City of Petaluma, which was subsequently amended in 
November 2005, April 2006, May 2007, May 2008, May 2009; and 

WHEREAS, the contract, as amended, allows the citizens of Petaluma the use of 
the Household Hazardous Waste Facility and includes other Agency services funded by 
the Agency’s tipping fee surcharge; and 

WHEREAS, the amount of the contract is $168,446.17 for FISCAL YEAR 10-11, 
the basis of calculation for payment of which is an alternative funding source in lieu of 
the portion of tipping fees no longer available with the City of Petaluma’s will be paying 
shall be the actual tonnage of solid waste disposed calculated at $5.95 per ton and 
invoiced on a monthly schedule outhaul of solid waste; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Petaluma and the Agency agree to extend the Agreement 
for Household Hazardous Waste program and other Agency services for an additional 
twelve (12) months, until June 30, 2011 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Agency hereby approves the 
Revised Sixth Amendment to the Agreement for AB 939 and Household Hazardous 
Waste Facility Services with the City of Petaluma. 

MEMBERS: 

Cloverdale Cotati County Healdsburg Petaluma 

Rohnert Park Santa Rosa Sebastopol Sonoma Windsor 

AYES -- NOES -- ABSENT -- ABSTAIN --

SO ORDERED 

The within instrument is a correct copy of the original on file with this office. 

ATTEST:   DATE: 

Elizabeth Koetke 
Clerk of the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 
of the State of California in and for the County of Sonoma 

100

http:168,446.17


Agenda Item #: 15
Cost Center: Education 
Staff Contact: Chilcott 
Agenda Date: 6/15/2010 

Waste 
H<lnilgemenr 
AgEn[), 	

ITEM: Award Spanish Language Outreach Services contract 

I. BACKGROUND 

Spanish language outreach is identified in the Education component of the Countywide Integrated 
Waste Management Plan (CoIWMP), as well as the Agency Work Plan 10-11. 

At the April 2010 Board meeting, the Board directed staff to distribute a Request for Proposals (RFP) 
for continued Spanish Language Outreach activities. The current contract with C2 Alternative Services 
for Spanish Language Outreach expires on June 30, 2010. 

II. DISCUSSION 

On April 30, 2010, staff posted the RFP for Spanish Language Outreach Services on the on the 
Agency's web site and em ailed .pdf copies to the California Household Hazardous Waste Exchange 
list serve, to the Sonoma County Latino Service Providers list serve and to the existing contractor. 

In response to the RFP, which was due May 21, 2010, Agency staff received one proposal from the 
current contractor, C2 Alternative Services. Agency staff has had a long history with C2 Alternative 
Services, working with Hugo Mata, and has been extremely pleased with their performance. 

III. FUNDING IMPACT 

This is a two-year agreement from July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2012, with annual extensions based on 
mutual agreement. The Work Plan for FY 10-11 allocates $24,000 for Spanish Language Outreach 
funded by the HHW Cost Center with CalRecycle Used Oil Grant money ($18,886) and the Education 
Cost Center ($5,114). It is anticipated that a similar level of funding will be available in the FY11-12 
budget. 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 1ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION 

Agency staff recommends awarding a two-year contract for Spanish Language Outreach Services to 
C2 Alternative Services and authorizing the Chair to sign the agreement. 

V. ATTACHMENTS 

• 
• 

Resolution for Spanish Language Outreach Services 
Agreement for Professional Services-Spanish Language Outreach Services 

Approved by"c-

Susan Klass 


2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, Calirornia 95403 Phone: 707.565.2231 Fax: 707.565.3701 www.recyclenoworg 101

www.recyclenoworg


RESOLUTION NO.: 

DATED: JUNE 15, 2010 

RESOLUTION OF THE SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
("AGENCY") APPROVING C2 ALTERNATIVE SERVICES TO CONDUCT SPANISH 

LANGUAGE OUTREACH SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the Agency, as the AB939 regional agency, is responsible for the 
Countywide Integrated Waste Management Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Sonoma Countywide Integrated Waste Management Plan includes as 
one of its objectives the identification of effective communication strategies and to implement 
programs to encourage behaviors that reduce, reuse, and recycle products and materials in 
non-English speaking communities; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency staff completed a competitive RFP process for Spanish 
Language Outreach Services; and 

WHEREAS, only one proposal from C2 Alternative Services was received; and 

WHEREAS, Agency payment to C2 Alternative Services shall not exceed $48,000 for the 
term of July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency's FY 10-11 Budget has adequate funds in the HHW Cost Center 
($18,886) and the Education Cost Center ($5,114) to fund the outreach program. 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the Agency's FY 11-12 Budget will allocate a similar 
amount from the HHW Cost Center and Education Cost Center to fund this outreach program. 

WHEREAS, the Agreement allows for annual extensions upon mutual agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Sonoma County Waste Management 
Agency, hereby approves an Agreement with C2 Alternative Services to conduct Spanish 
Language Outreach Services and authorizes the Chair to execute the Agreement on behalf of 
the Agency. 

MEMBERS: 

Cloverdale Cotati County Healdsburg Petaluma 

Rohnert Park 

AYES - NOES 

Santa Rosa 

ABSENT --

Sebastopol 

ABSTAIN 

Sonoma Windsor 

The within instrument is a correct copy 
of the original on file with this office. 

SO ORDERED. 

ATTEST: DATE: 

Elizabeth Koetke 
Clerk of the Sonoma County Waste Management 
Agency of the State of California in and for the County of Sonoma 

102



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

SPANISH LANGUAGE OUTREACH SERVICES 


This agreement ("Agreement"), dated as of , 2010 ("Effective Date") is by and between the 
Sonoma County Waste Management Agency, (hereinafter "Agency"), and C2 Alternative Services a 
(hereinafter "Contractor"). 

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is duly qualified:~Hi:i'experienced in Spanish Language "I",,,,
Outreach Services for Used Motor Oil/Filter and Solid Waste REl~Wc!i!ig and related services; and 

,iili!HW1ql!lh. 
WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Dire,qtor~!of Agenpy,Jt is necessary and desirable to 

employ the services of Contractor to conduct Spanish la.~'iili$ge outreacniaC!ivities in Sonoma County 
ditliii" 'i;Hh

,nnnH' 'lHnl. 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of thlHD'regoing recitals and tnellnutual covenants contained 

herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: "nn" "i:in" 
'lilih .. """,

iij;;' ,lnn, ."::,,
·'qWh. 

1. Scope of Services. 

1.1 Contractor's SpedlH~d s~l-\lWilSiJhis A~Vki~l);lent is entered into for the purpose 
of establishing a contract for$,Rf!!li,9,~.,Language!Q\.1treacliiS~r,y!FElS. Con@r;tor shall perform services as 

defined in Exhibit "A", pr~fJu~~~!SCbp,~mr!service~1Ihiii,!!iiIIIIPn!!Hli!!i:,::,'i!i 
1.2i!Cooperatior\!with AgencylH!;1ontractor shall 'cooperate with Agency and Agency 

staff in the performance of aWW6.rk hereUHiler. 'iii! • 

. ,uiiilIliHiiHl3" pe~~;;IiJ~HM~IMmHHMh:l:i,co~\VMctor shall perform all work hereunder in a manner 
consistent wiit\!~hiJtle;;eiigfi~ompeteriCy!c!nd stanil~WiQfJGar~"normally observed by a person practicing in 
Contractor'~!pX~fession. If Ari~9:9y' detiN!:tii.f;\\ls that anyibfContractor's work is not in accordance with such 
level of compemnFY and standa·rii:\l\.care,'~~,\1(lcy, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to do any or all of 
the following: (a)!m,quire ContractotilR meetw!!o,/\gency to review the quality of the work and resolve matters 
of concern; (b) requlrE?"Contractor toir,~'peat the'W6rk at no additional charge until it is satisfactory; (c) 
terminate this Agreelt\~h! pursuant t6!\~e provisions of Article 4; or (d) pursue any and all other remedies at 
.. 'n'il}. !innIaw or In equity. 'lnlH. nll!l 

'~H!jl! Innn! 

, , '.' ,~,'~ ,l ,',' ",',; "'!p, " " it': : , 


.I! n; l i ~ [ ~ ~ [i'

1.4 Assiijnea Personnel. 

a. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform work hereunder. In the 
event that at any time Agency, in its sole discretion, desires the removal of any person or 
persons assigned by Contractor to perform work hereunder, Contractor shall remove such 
person or persons immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency. 

b. Any and all persons identified in this Agreement or any exhibit hereto as the project 
manager, project team, or other professional performing work hereunder are deemed by 
Agency to be key personnel whose services are a material inducement to Agency to enter into 
this Agreement, and without whose services Agency would not have entered into this 
Agreement. Contractor shall not remove, replace, substitute, or otherwise change any key 
personnel without the prior written consent of Agency. 

Request for Proposals for Spanish Language Outreach Services for the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

103



c. In the event that any of Contractor's personnel assigned to perform services under 
this Agreement become unavailable due to resignation, sickness or other factors outside of 
Contractor's control, Contractor shall be responsible for timely provision of adequately 
qualified replacements. 

2. Payment. For all services and as defined in attachment Exhibit A, attached hereto and included 
herein by this reference (hereinafter as "Scope and Budget Table"). Agency payment to Contractor under this 
Agreement shall not exceed $48,000 for two years or $24,000 for each year. 

Invoices shall be submitted monthly with a quarterly "memo to file" attachment giving a brief update as to the 
progress of the program. At the end of the first six months and the enfl:Rf each consecutive six month term, 
a report containing the following shall be submitted for that months .l~V:6)pe to be deemed complete and 
payable: 1) a concise narrative progress report including marketi,l)g:~'8'd/or advertising materials, 2) summary 
of findings to date, number of calls and origin of calls for repor;\:R~I;!~~,;,.Contractor shall submit invoices to 
Agency's contract manager for review for completeness. dnHP""'H':" 

"-i' 'nili, 

Finally, upon completion of the project, a final report Sh~!IJW~i'submitted ~l!Hilh~,last invoice. The final report 
shall be submitted no later than 45 days following t~!'lIl~Waay of the prograni't@j1} Included in the final 
report shall be an expenditure summary with receiptsiias well as personnel expilNW,ture documentation. 

"f 1i ' "";', 

This project is to be funded, in part, from a Used Oil B106WI' californi~iiH!~grated Waste 
Management Board. Contractor must and conditio~~!~et forth by that 
grant. Contractor is obligated to remain will not be reimbursed for expenses 
that exceed the "not to exceed" limit set Id the California Integrated Waste 
Management Board fail to distribute said g of grant, this Agreement 
similarly may be terminated or 

All expenses that are ensure proper Used Oil Grant 
Manager approval may prior approval, in writing, may be 
considered a AOlen'tv'·. at its discretion, may not reimburse contractor for 
said expense. 

',,,,,,,,,,,',eit"~h,,11 be from July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2012, with 
...3~"~tlili~~annual e: tdi'm;fhl,,~ earlier in accordance with the provisions of 

Article 4, OeIIQW" 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, at any time' Agency shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate this 
Agreement by giving ten notice to Contractor. 

I Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, 
should Contractor fail to perform any of its obligations hereunder, within the time and in the manner herein 
provided, or otherwise violate any of the terms of this Agreement, Agency may immediately terminate this 
Agreement by giving Contractor written notice of such termination, stating the reason for termination. 

4.3 Delivery of Work Product and Final Payment Upon Termination. 

In the event of termination, Contractor, within 14 days following the date of termination, shall deliver to 
Agency all materials and work product subject to Section 9.9 and shall submit to Agency payment up to the 
date of termination. 

5. Indemnification. Contractor agrees to accept all responsibility for loss or damage to any 
person or entity, including but not limited to Agency, and to defend, indemnify, hold harmless, reimburse and 
release Agency, its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all actions, claims, damages, 

Request (or Proposals for Spanish Language Outreach Services for the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

104



disabilities, liabilities and expense including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees and the cost of litigation 
incurred in the defense of claims as to which this indemnity applies or incurred in an action by Agency to 
enforce the indemnity provisions herein, whether arising from personal injury, property damage or economic 
loss of any type, that may be asserted by any person or entity arising out of or in connection with the 
performance of Contractor hereunder, but, to the extent required by law, excluding liability due to the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of Agency. If there is a possible obligation to indemnify, Contractor's duty to 
defend with legal counsel acceptable to Agency, exists regardless of whether it is ultimately determined that 
there is not a duty to indemnify. This indemnification obligation is not limited in any way by any limitation on 
the amount or type of damages or compensation payable to or for Contractor or its agents. 

6. Insurance. With respect to performance of work uQd~r this Agreement, Contractor shall 
maintain and shall require all of its subcontractors, consultants, and,~fH~r'agents to maintain, insurance as 
described below: ";:::,,. 

,i!lnltl1~nj, 
6.1 Workers' Compensation Insurant~:.!iMiofk~r,,: compensation insurance with 

statutory limits as required by the Labor Code of the Statei9f.c:;aiifornia:"$~id policy shall be endorsed with 
the following specific language: diHiiiP' "iiiiih 

d!!l!l!ji' "!!mlL 
This policy shall not be cancelled or materialiy;:c.l;1anged without first givi'r\Jgj~birty (30) days' prior 

·tt r t th A ··'ii". '!"'"wn en no Ice 0 e gencY"!!i!!, ,;!". ''!iiiL 
tInH, " ..... . 

". ':~liL ,dHjliP' l;:n!, 

6.2 General Liabili!Y'lnsurance. Cohii;1iE!rQf$1' general liability insUrance covering 
bodily injury and property damage using aiiiQ99((r:rence policy flil,ffi;in an amount no less than One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000.00) combined single Iiriii~~91'~~qbd9ccurrendlJii$.~id commercial general liability 
insurance policy shall either be endorsed wittliih~ tciifaWihg.specific··!i3nglJage or contain equivalent language 
in the pOlicy: till:::. 'Q! 1Hl!!1l1' 'fl';i:in:

.dnlll!!lill!!lll, 'ml' ,rrllHliHliilt", "in' 
a. TI:l,~t>;gehcY:!it~iS.oard of Di,ElctQ[si$iia stati'iiis,named as additional insured for all 
liability ari'~lHg,out of ttiglpRerations '6'YIRHW~'behalf ofm~ named insured in the performance 
of this Agreern.e ... f1 'ml!.... !.. '11.1.,'.:.1:..,nm 

't~HL, ~dnniW;", 'il:;: . 
. b::n:mUThe inciLisiofl;of!iiiore:lhim.one insUred shall not operate to impair the rights of one 

.,!!i!)HM(jtM81~~~!m~t an61~~H·irsured',:~~~!U).e cb'{!enage afforded shall apply as though separate 
nHlll'policies haa!b~:en. issue~I!9. each in~uie~:lbut the inclusion of more than one insured shall not 
'!HI19perate to increa'$il.the t'i\nli~!pfthe company's liability. 

";:lh;;" "~;iiij;, ''ijlll:;" 
C:"i!Il:!. The insurariq~!providei:JIH~rein is primary coverage to the Agency with respect to any 
insur~fjm= or self-insq(~nce progiams maintained by the Agency. 

qnp~~ 'inn 
d. THi~!~.olicy s~~I:llrot be cancelled or materially changed without first giving thirty (30) 
days prior written no'tic~lto the Agency. 

·'Ql!ldl1!lW 
6.3 Automobile··IW~Grance. Automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury and property 

damage in an amount no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit for each 
occurrence. Said insurance shall include coverage for owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles. Said policy 
shall be endorsed with the following language: 

This policy shall not be cancelled or materially changed without first giving thirty (30) days prior written 
notice to the Agency. 

6.4 Documentation. The following documentation shall be submitted to the Agency: 

a. Properly executed Certificates of Insurance clearly evidencing all coverages, limits, 
and endorsements required above. Said Certificates shall be submitted prior to the execution 
of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain current Certificates of Insurance evidencing 
the above-required coverages, limits, and endorsements on file with the Agency for the 

Request for Proposals for Spanish Language Outreach SelVices for the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

105

http:1,000,000.00


duratian af this Agreement. 

b. Signed capies af the specified endorsements far each palicy. Said endarsement 
co.pies shall be submitted within thirty (30) days af executian af this Agreement. 

c. Upan Agency's written request, certified co.pies af the insurance palicies. Said palicy 
capies shall be submitted within thirty (30) days af Agency's request. 

6.6 Palicy Obligatians. Cantractar's indemnity and ather abligatians shall nat be 
limited by the faregaing insurance requirements. 

6.7 Material Breach. If Cantractor, for any r,e:~~Wr\, fails to. maintain insurance 
caverage which is required pursuant to. this Agreement, the sameiiiHi:iiI'be deemed a material breach afthis 
Agreement. Agency, in its sale aptian, may terminate this Agr,e~\W$'8~a.nd abtain damages from Cantractor 
resulting from said breach. Alternatively, Agency may purch~s:~:Sucil!t~:crl!ired insurance caverage, and 
with aut further natice to. Cantractor, Agency may deduct f[om slims duiiiiiiC.antractar any premium casts 
advanced by Agency far such insurance. These reme,d.i~~I~Kall be in addiii'b'n'J9 any ather remedies available 
to. Agency.dHHiP' 'iq'P

i:;;;Ll. Hili! 
'i"i:i ,;;;;1, 

7. Prosecutian af Wark. The executian icjt\pis Agre~ment shall ccin~\itute Cantractar's 
autharity to. proceed immediately with the perfarmance anili~:Agri?~m:e'nt. Perfarmani!ii:o.f the services 
hereunder shall be campleted within the tim'a: required hereiHURrolliCl~8, hawever, that WiNe perfarmance is 
delayed by earthquake, fiaad, high water,'6'rii~i6'erAct af Gad 6\Hfl~:Strike, lackaut, or similar labar 
disturbances, the time for Cantractar's perf&m~W6~n?fJhis Agre~fii~htshall be extended by a number af days 
equal to. the number af days Cantractar has ti~~n dela~Wd,;" "'iiiiL 

,'lp,p,- llllh; "nql!i!l\l!'l' i!llll!L 
8. Extra ar Chfu:igEid,Wark. Extiijiqr chan9~!iiWcirk.ar athe'r,ichanges to. the Agreement may 

be autharized anly by wriM«iWHenClHi*Wa this A!1'~~~~~~jli!1igh'e'dH9XIRoth parties .. Minar changes which do. 
nat Increase ar decrease·tij~l~maunt pal~lpnder thelfl~mi'ment, and'Whlch do. nat significantly chang~ the . 
scape af work ar slgnlficantlYi!~ngthen tnn!'! scheduleSifti[lY be executed by the Agency's Executive Director In 
a farm approved by Agency CdUH~\i!1. J,11(!6'\l;wr"extra or"Gililnged wark must be autharized in writing by the 

Agency Baa~.~:Nm~irfl~\~m::::", ''lil11illil!:jlHHHI::m.In:,'IIII:: 
d ii!ji'9. RepresEintatians af'Cohtractar. "".,,,,. 

,,;n, "lijli" i);H,' 

·'!iil!!::!,. 9.1 StariCiMrd af ~~r~\!!1l\gency has relied upan the professianal ability and training af 
Cantractar as a 'itl'aterial inducemenilib enter'ilit0'1his Agreement. Cantractor hereby agrees that all its wark 

'::";' l_t": 'I"
will be perfarmed a'nailnat its aperatiQti~ shall be'canducted in accardance with generally accepted and 
applicable prafessian~U'P:rcactices andi~l~ndards as well as the requirements af applicable federal, state and 
lacallaws, it being undeH3jRR~that 'lf~~ptance af Cantractar's wark by Agency shall nat ape rate as a waiver 
or release. 'iqn " .. ;:;~:;:" 

'it; !iiinii 

9.2 St~W~\iilf Cantractar. The parties intend that Cantractar, in perfarming the 
services specified herein, shall act as an independent cantractar and shall cantral the wark and the manner in 
which it is perfarmed. Cantractar is nat to. be cansidered an agent ar emplayee af Agency and is nat entitled 
to. participate in any pensian plan, worker's campensatian plan, insurance, banus, ar similar benefits provided 
to. Agency staff. In the event Agency exercises its right to. terminate this Agreement pursuant to. Article 4, 
abave, Cantractar expressly agrees that it shall have no. recaurse ar right af appeal under rules, regulatians, 
ordinances, ar laws applicable to. emplayees. 

9.3 Taxes. Cantractar agrees to. file federal and state tax returns and pay all 
applicable taxes an amaunts paid pursuant to. this Agreement and shall be salely liable and respansible to. pay 
such taxes and ather abligatians, including, but nat limited to., state and federal incame and FICA taxes. 
Cantractor agrees to. indemnify and hald Agency harmless from any liability which it may incur to. the United 
States ar to. the State af Califarnia as a cansequence af Cantractar's failure to. pay, when due, all such taxes 
and abligatians. In case Agency is audited for campliance regarding any withhalding ar ather applicable 

Request for Proposals for Spanish Language Outreach Services for the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

106

http:chan9~!iiWcirk.ar
http:Agr,e~\W$'8~a.nd


taxes. Contractor agrees to furnish Agency with proof of payment of taxes on these earnings. 

9.4 Records Maintenance. Contractor shall keep and maintain full and complete 
documentation and accounting records concerning all services performed that are compensable under this 
Agreement and shall make such documents and records available to Agency for inspection at any reasonable 
time. Contractor shall maintain such records for a period of four (4) years following completion of work 
hereunder. 

9.5 Conflict of Interest. Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and that 
it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state law 
or that would otherwise conflict in any manner or degree with the perfQ[mance of its services hereunder. 
Contractor further covenants that in the performance of this Agreern~Hliflb person having any such interests 
shall be employed by Contractor. In addition, if requested to do ss\lfij;itlgency, Contractor shall complete and 
file and shall require any other person doing work under Contr.9¢iPI1$'D,Q, this Agreement to complete and file a 
:'Statement of Economic Interest" with Agency disclosing CO~\(Mojoris"9n:r,~ch other person's financial 
Interests. ,. "\ii" 

9.6 l'iN~0~n~di~s~cr~im~in~a~ti~on~',n~~i2~~l~~~,,~silh~~all comply witti'~UI'i\P'plicable federal, state, and 
local laws, rules, and regulations in regard to in employment h'e'G:ause of race, color, 
ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, marital status, I , preg'Hi1~cy, disability, sexual 
orientation or other prohibited basis. All requir~8i.l)y law to be included 

(;;<d,
in this Agreement are incorporated hprpin, 

9.7 ~~~I~i~~~~;;:~~Elnr~~r;; r.nl11nllvwith the provisions of Chapter
19, Article II, of the Sonoma-County Code lim3ticlnTljWR,uisii ,employment, and services 
because of AIDS or HIV i the extensions of the term. 

world in perpetuity in the 
plans and specifications, 
Contractor agrees to take 
Agreement, 

I I 
versions 

the plans !i~j~~!~~~~:~~~shall not use 0 
without first np"mi<: 

i~~~~'iW''~~i all rights throughout the 
iff I in and to all versions of the 

:r.rmh·""inr in connection with this Agreement. 
f1el~eE;saryll:R protect the rights assigned to Agency in this 

',. impair those rights. Contractor's 
I:" to, placing proper notice of copyright on all 

:asrA!~erlCV ;;HlUi,4.i",,,-I and refraining from disclosing any versions of 
.' obtaining written permission of Agency. Contractor 

specifications in connection with this or any other project 

All reports, original drawings, 
graphics, plans, studies: ("documents"), in whatever form or format, assembled 
or prepared by Contractor subcontractors, consultants, and other agents in connection with 
this Agreement shall be the Agency. Agency shall be entitled to immediate possession of such 
documents upon completion pursuant to this Agreement. Upon expiration or termination of this 
Agreement, Contractor shall promptly deliver to Agency all such documents which have not already been 
provided to Agency in such form or format as Agency deems appropriate. Such documents shall be and will 
remain the property of Agency without restriction or limitation. Contractor may retain copies of the above 
described documents but agrees not to disclose or discuss any information gathered, discovered, or 
generated in any way through this Agreement without the express written permission of Agency. 

10. Demand for Assurance. Each party to this Agreement undertakes the obligation that the 
other's expectation of receiving due performance will not be impaired. When reasonable grounds for 
insecurity arise with respect to the performance of either party, the other may in writing demand adequate 
assurance of due performance and until such assurance is received may, if commercially reasonable, 
suspend any performance for which the agreed return has not been received. "Commercially reasonable" 
includes not only the conduct of a party with respect to performance under this Agreement, but also conduct 
with respect to other agreements with parties to this Agreement or others. After receipt of a justified demand, 

Request for Proposals for Spanish Language Outreach Services for the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

107



failure to provide within a reasonable time, but not exceeding thirty (30) days, such assurance of due 
performance as is adequate under the circumstances of the particular case is a repudiation of this 
Agreement. Acceptance of any improper delivery, service, or payment does not prejudice the aggrieved 
party's right to demand adequate assurance of future performance. Nothing in this Article 10 limits Agency's 
right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article 4. 

11. Assignment and Delegation. Neither party hereto shall assign, delegate, sublet, or 
transfer any interest in or duty under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other, and no 
such transfer shall be of any force or effect whatsoever unless and until the other party shall have so 
consented. 

!1\§;imQl,1B!sl!J.q..!:£lYlIl!illt§. All not ices, 
delivery or by U.S. Mail or courier 

service. 

Agency: 	 Sonoma County Waste 

Attention: 

Karina Chilcott 

2300 County Center Drive, 

Santa Rosa, CA 95403 


Phone: (707) 56!j~'$:f:l6.8i!H" 
FAX: (707) 565-'3:i6Hi"'L, 

Consultant: Name -:::1::::'::: illlH", 

~ip18#iillh, .'ii,1iiii):: :~i~~!!iiil!Iiliii'i,. 
When a notice, bill or paym'Jl~:~jRgiven 6'Yi~ generallyt,~-~ognized overnight courier service, the notice, bill or 
payment shall be deemed redliV,~~..on ,\n~ilJ\'l~,\busines-s!l:!fiIY. When a copy of a notice, bill or payment is 
sent by facsim.i!\1.:!ti~:ORtjEe bill o(tl~y)jjI:«nfsn~!!H~~.deeIT(~9Jeceived upon transmission as long as (1) the 
original copy,.o.f:~.lile"i1'6\icei!Rm.or paYm~iit is prciriipl!Y:lj,epd~ifed in the U.S. mail, (2) the sender has a written 
confirmatiqniRVihe facsimneaf,~,Ij1.~missi~tii:f!nd (3) th-~~~c,simile is transmitted before 5 p.m. (recipient's time). 
In all other'liiiitances, notices:'DiI)~,and liayments shall be effective upon receipt by the recipient. Changes 

may be made-.iHilh~ names and 'M9~msses,gmhfl person to whom notices are to be given by giving notice 

pursuant to thiS pqrIT~f,~ph. -ii-,;:,:',:'.:,., 'iJi;: 
'''d!. 

13. Miscellaneous piiiiiisions. 
"iWh, , ,nilll 

13.j'i:No Waiver of Breach. The waiver by Agency of any breach of any term or 

promise contained in this Agre~meHViihall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term or provision or any 

subsequent breach of the same'bH~ny other term or promise contained in this Agreement. 


13.2 Construction. To the fullest extent allowed by law, the provisions of this 
Agreement shall be construed and given effect in a manner that avoids any violation of statute, ordinance, 
regulation, or law. The parties covenant and agree that in the event that any provision of this Agreement is 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions 
hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby. 
Contractor and Agency acknowledge that they have each contributed to the making of this Agreement and 
that, in the event of a dispute over the interpretation of this Agreement, the language of the Agreement will 
not be construed against one party in favor of the other. Contractor and Agency acknowledge that they have 
each had an adequate opportunity to consult with counsel in the negotiation and preparation of this 
Agreement. 

13.3 Consent. Wherever in this Agreement the consent or approval of one party is 

Request (Dr Proposals (Dr Spanish Language Outreach Services (or the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

108

http:copy,.o.f:~.lile"i1'6\icei!Rm.or


required to an act of the other party, such consent or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

13.4 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be 
construed to create and the parties do not intend to create any rights in third parties. 

13.5 Applicable Law and Forum. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted 
according to the substantive law of California, regardless of the law of conflicts to the contrary in any 
jurisdiction. Any action to enforce the terms of this Agreement or for the breach thereof shall be brought and 
tried in the forum nearest to the city of Santa Rosa, in the County of Sonoma. 

13.6 Captions. The captions in this AgreemelJt<;lre solely for convenience of 
reference. 	They are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no.ejtf~Ot on its construction or interpretation. 

'fdlllll W' 
13.7 Merger. This writing is intended 1J9t1iii3!iilhe final expression of the Agreement 

between the parties hereto with respect to the included terms!~H8'as'aiiiqrnplete and exclusive statement of 
the terms of the Agreement, pursuant to Code of Civil PrpGflPiHe Sectiofi\n]856. No modification of this 
Agreement shall be effective unless and until such mq~.i(If±~Hbn is evidenC'&'d![by a writing signed by both 

parties. 	 •iIlIlii:ji''iiiiii!:; p. 

13.8 Time of Essence. Time iii'and shall be,of the essenceiof,this Agreement and 

every provision hereof. 	 ,':iih,,'i!!I\lliii:iilillI1ii\\' "illl!ll!' 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partie~!l)~r.e.to have exe'i:'u~€l'~ this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

lOU, ';Ii ,:lit ''lUlL 

AGENCY: 	 SONOMA COUNtfljiW:'\!MltEi¥ANAG~IM~NT AGENCY 

,,!ll1illl~ll' By· 
'HI!! 

q i1. 
iHHB ll, 

,fill Wl1;,_ 
'q;mh.

'iHW 
1 

' ',"1.,: ,·. ,.. ·,j.11 !Ill!Hn ",:' ,.,.,'.,.,..... •... Chair, SG,WMINHi "; lj lJ HHh'l.. I Ii!! ,I ... •..... .•• 'HHllllnW'1.:., ,1...,1 .. .... "1!jjji'qm " 
,j I.!,; .,~.; ;,: .,z",'lwh, Byl 

,,,
'HjjiW'CONTRACTOR: 	 1 

''til'i ili.,i.•. N.;,~.,~.l.l:~n-jj-l"-IH"':il+ili*.. tc;-n-'."'1_____________ 
'qlHi;::: 

By: _~~-=.l-'i-iP-·~~__~~~~ 
Interim Executive Director, SCWMA 

APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR AGENCY: 

By: _~__~~__~__________ 
Agency Counsel 

Request for Proposals for Spanish Language Outreach Services for the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 

109

http:partie~!l)~r.e.to


task total 

,;c>-';; 

Progress reports as required for reporting to the Sonoma County 6 8 14 $1.110.001 

OUTREACH PLAN AND BUDGET 
Spanish Outreach Services 

TASKS Units Unit 
Price 

C2 Hrs 
@$B5 

C2 Hrs 
@$75 

C2Hrs 
@$40 

Time 
Hrs Total 

Time $ Total Materials Expenses Total Cost 

relationships with appropriate 
media. Determine optimal reach to target audience using available 
budget; solicit rates and special packages where available from 
media outlets; develop promotional ideas, prepare press releases. 

B. Interviews, media appearances, feature stories: continue to 16 16 $1.200.001 $100.001 $1,300.00 

develop and make use of opportunities in both print and broadcast 
media. Includes general recycling, promotion of the hotline, and 
other topics. Interview opportunities may include both Hugo Mala of 
C2, and Agency staff or others with specific expertise, in which 
case Hugo may act as interpreter. Time to be pro·raled with other 
regional related projects wherever possible. 

c. Person to person outreach through such venues as events; 4 16 100 I 120 $5.540.001 $3.000.001 $450.001 $8.990.00 

businesses and other locations frequented by Spanish-speaking 
people; day labor centers; community leaders; etc. Includes events 
arranged by Agency staff. Time to be pro-rated with other regional 
related projects wherever possible. 

task total $17,360.00 

Calls will be answered by Engllsh) gam to 

5pm Monday-Friday. Messages left outside these hours will be 

answered the following business day. AU calls will be logged in the 

Agency- provided Access database. 


B. 	 Consult SCWMA staff and other sources to obtain information for 6 6 $450.001 $450.00 

callers. 

c. 	 Monitor data to determine which outreach methodsl media are 5 5 $375.001 $375.00 
generating calls. 

task total 	 11 52,225.00 

A. 	 Assist in preparation and manage distribution of 
Recycling Guide to residents in Sonoma County. 

B. 	 Provide translation services as needed. 

:ep~'i·rting:·an'd:A.chnhlistraiion ;', ;. '. 
,.l'·:'::"-·':>:':':;;":";·'~<::::':;;;'.:;:!.>..;is,:h':,{;;JE{;::7;j::'~:';L!i,·;_L;':/";'·":";':':',;::!:~:<;{;[~:/L::/:i 

A. 	 Record-keeping including any forms required bv CalRecycle or 
other grantors. 

B. 
Waste Management Agency Board Members and for the 

CalRecycle Used Oil Block Grant program; communications with 

staff. 


task total 10 12 0 22 	 $1,795.00I 51,750.001 545.001 

TOTAL ALL TASKS: 	 18 85 125 22. $14,305.00 59.000.001 $695.00 $24,000.00 

524,000.00 

$1,110.00 

110

m 
><:r 
C' 
;:;: 
» 

http:1,110.00
http:524,000.00
http:24,000.00
http:14,305.00
http:1,795.00
http:52,225.00

	Agenda
	Attachments/Correspondence 
	Item 6.1
	Item 6.2
	Item 6.3
	Item 6.4
	Item 6.5
	Item 8
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15



